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COUNCIL MEETING 
 

12 JUNE 2018 
 
Opening Prayer 
 
Heavenly Father, we ask you to give your blessing to this Council, direct and prosper its deliberations 
to the advancement of your glory, and the true welfare of the people of the Pyrenees Shire. 

Amen 
 
Indigenous Acknowledgement 
 
We acknowledge the people past and present of the Wotjobaluk, Wadawurrung, Dja Dja Wurrung, 
and Djab Wurrung tribes, whose land forms the Pyrenees Shire. 
 
We pay our respect to the customs, traditions and stewardship of the land by the elders and people 
of these tribes, on whose land we meet today. 
 
Apologies 
 
6.00 pm Open Council Meeting   Welcome Members of Public 
 
Notice of Disclosure of Interest by Councillors and Officers: 
 
Confirmation of Minutes:  Ordinary Minutes of Council held on 15 May 2018 
  Closed Minutes of Council held on 15 May 2018 
    
Amendments: 
 
Public Question Time and Submissions on Agenda Items:  
 
Public Representation:  
 
Question Time:  
 
Business Arising: 
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ITEMS FOR NOTING 
 

ASSET AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – PLANNING 
 

1. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
Shannon Meadows – Manager Planning and Development 
File No: 66/02/02 – 08/02/02 – 50/24/02 – 46/02/02 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to update Council on activities, project and compliance issues in 

Regulatory Services during May 2018. This report includes four parts: 

 

 Part A: Planning 

 Part B: Building  

 Part C: Environmental Health 

 Part D: Local Laws 
 

PART A: PLANNING 

The planning activity statistics for April and May are summarized in the table below:- 
 

Month Applications received Applications determined 

April 2018 8 5 

May 2018 10 9 

 

The following chart identifies the total number and phase of permit applications within Council’s 

planning system including applications received in May 2018 and where in the planning system 

each application sits: 

 

STATUS OF PLANNING PERMITS MAY 2018 
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Key Projects  

Planning staff are continuing to finalise draft Framework Plans for six towns across the Shire as part 

of the first stage of the Pyrenees Futures project. In addition to the draft plans, feedback from 

community engagement conducted in Avoca during November-December 2017 is being used to 

develop a streetscape plan for the town centre along High Street. This responds to community 

feedback around the need to address a range of urban design issues, and the opportunity to 

integrate planning for land use and growth in the whole township with urban design improvements 

to improve amenity and foster a stronger sense of character in the town centre. 
 

Summaries of community engagement conducted in Beaufort, Lexton, Waubra and Snake Valley 

have been uploaded to Council’s website. 

 

Statutory Planning 

Council has received a planning permit application for a Telecommunications Facility (tower) at the 

Lexton Recreation Reserve.  As the proposed facility would be funded through the Commonwealth 

Black Spot Program, it is exempt from any notice requirements and third-party appeal rights in the 

Pyrenees Planning Scheme. Council therefore cannot exhibit the application nor consider any 

submissions on the application, and the matter cannot be reviewed at VCAT in the scenario it is 

approved. 
 

A VCAT hearing was held during May following an appeal of Council’s decision in 2016 to grant a 

planning permit for a Telecommunications Facility at 11A Leichardt Street in Beaufort. As opposed 

to the current Lexton application, the Beaufort Optus telecommunications tower proposal was not 

funded by the Black Spot Program, and was thus was not exempt from public notice and or appeal 

rights. Council expects VCAT to hand down a decision on the matter in coming weeks. 

 

Strategic Issues  

Council has lodged its submission to the Victorian Government’s Fast Track Government Land 

Rezoning process, which seeks to rezone three sites from Public Use Zone, including the former 

Beaufort Primary School, to other zones to enable private sale and future land use change and 

development.  
 

Following Council’s adoption of a submission to the process at its April Council meeting, DELWP 

publicly released a heritage report into the Beaufort Primary School that made a number of 

recommendations. Council’s submission to the process  made reference to the heritage report and 

supported the recommendations, including the proposal that the original school building should be 

listed as having Local heritage significance under the Heritage Overlay in the Pyrenees Planning 

Scheme.  
 

The Government’s Standing Advisory Committee will be holding a public hearing in Beaufort on 

Thursday 28 June at the Beaufort Community Bank Complex. Council will be represented at the 

hearing as a submitter.  Following the hearings, the Committee will make confidential 

recommendations to the Minister for Planning regarding planning policy frameworks that should 

apply to each site. Council is not the planning authority for the rezoning of any site included in this 

process. 
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Planning Summary 

1. Council continues to perform above the state regional local government average for permit 
application turn-around times. 

2. Council will be presenting as a submitter to the Government Standing Advisory Committee 
hearing to be held in Beaufort at the end of June regarding proposals to rezone three 
government-owned land parcels in Beaufort. 

3. Draft Township Framework Plans for six towns are now being produced as part of the Pyrenees 
Futures project.   

 

PART B: BUILDING 
 

Activity 

The building activity statistics as at 31/05/2018 are summarised in the table below:  

 

CATEGORY NUMBER COMMENT 

Permits issued by Council 8 Total value $245,507 

Permits issued by private Building 

Surveyor 

13 Total value $1,002,040 

New applications made to 

Council 

 

4 Total value $258,190 

1 x Class 10a 

1 x Class 1A 

2 x Class 7b  

In process 

 

31 These applications (inclusive of new May 

applications) are pending receipt of further 

information requested from the applicants to 

achieve a NCC compliant application for full 

assessment by the Municipal Building Surveyor. 

1 x withdrawn by applicant 

 
The following graph represents monthly building activity (applications received by and issued by 

Council) over the last 12 months.  
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Permit applications
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A more in depth look at the past month’s issued/received permit can be seen below.  
 

 
 

 
 

Key Projects & Compliance  

Council’s Building Inspector attended a house fire at Snake Valley in late May, and   Orders are 

currently being prepared relating to various site management works to minimise risk to the public. 
 

Council issued a Minor Works Order to require repairs to the verandah structures at the Avoca IGA 

supermarket. These works are now underway.  
 

Two old shop front verandahs in Neill Street, Beaufort have been identified as requiring urgent 

repairs, and the property owners notified. Safety barriers have been erected, and Council is liaising 

with the landowner and also VicRoads. 

 

 Auxiliary, 2 

Garages/Sheds, 1 

Dwellings, 1 

Permit applications 
received May, 2018 

6 x Class 10a 
 

2x  Class 1a,  

2 x Class 1a 
$155,000 
 
6 x Class 10a 
$90,507 

Permits issued May 
2018 

1 x Class 1a $86,260 

2 x Class 7b $161,100 

1 x Class 10a $10,830 
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The extension to the Beaufort IGA is progressing, and Stage 1 is nearing completion. 
 

Building Department Officers attended a VBA seminar on the new Building Regulations 2018, which 

come into effect on 2 June 2018.  There are substantial and extensive changes to forms, fees, re-

ordering of Parts and Sections contained within the Regulations; changes to notification 

requirements; and changes to mandatory inspection documentation.  These reforms will entail a 

major revamp of all forms and documents used in the Building Department and overall a 

substantial increase in administrative work and costs to Council. 
 

Currently five building compliance matters are in the hands of Council’s Solicitor for legal 

enforcement. 

 

COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

- Council Plan 2013-2017  
- Building Act 1993 
- Building Interim Regulations 2017 

 

FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 

The Municipal Building Surveyor must have regard to any relevant guidelines under the Building Act 

1993 or subordinate regulations. The building services department must ensure that a responsive 

service is provided that meets the demand of the building industry within the municipality. 

 

Building Summary  

1. In May, 2018 Council received four applications and issued eight permits. 

2. Major reforms to Building Regulations, initiated by the State government, took effect on 2 June 

2018. The reforms will lead to considerable process change within Council’s Building 

Department, and a likely increase in workloads.  

3. Council’s Municipal Building Surveyor, Neil Povey, is retiring from his position on 21 June 2018. 

An interim MBS will be appointed for the remainder of 2018 ahead of a permanent MBS being 

appointed.  

 

PART C: ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
 
Activity: Wastewater 

 

Wastewater activity statistics for May 2018 are summarised in the tables below:  
 

Period 

Applications to 

Install New or 

Alter Existing  

Septic Tanks 

Received 

Permits to 

Install 

Issued 

Approval 

to Use 

Issued 

Fees Paid 

1st - 31st May 2018 4 5 6 $1,140 
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The below graph displays the monthly wastewater activity (applications received, permits to install 
and approval to use issued) over the last 12 months (May 2017 to May 2018).   

 

 
 

The following table shows inspection data for Wastewater related Inspections conducted by the 

Environmental Health Officer in May 2018. 
 

Period Septic Tank Inspections 

Domestic Wastewater 

Management Plan 

(DWMP) Inspections 

1st - 31st May 2018 9 3 

 

Domestic Wastewater Service Agent’s Reports received (below).  
 

Period Service Reports Received 

1st - 31st May 2018 1 

 

Activity: Food, Health & Accommodation Premises 

Food Act 1984 and Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 Premises activity statistics for May 2018 

are summarised in the table below.   
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Tobacco Inspections 

There were 15 Routine Tobacco Education Visit Inspections conducted at food premises during 

May.  Education visits ensure that food premises have appropriate no smoking signage and that 

they are complying with the Tobacco Act 1987.   

  

Mobile and Temporary Food Premises in the Shire (Streatrader) 

At 31st May 2018 Pyrenees Shire had 33 premises registered, 69 low risk notifications and 157 

current Statements of Trade (SOT).    

 

Activity: Immunisations 

Immunisation sessions in May were conducted as normal in Beaufort and Avoca as well as Staff 

Influenza sessions and opportunistic services performed by the Shire’s Maternal Child Health 

Nurses (MCHN) throughout the month.  A total of 117 vaccines were administered for the month to 

90 individual clients.  Immunisation activity statistics for May 2018 summarised in table below:  

   

Session Type 
Number of Clients & 

Vaccines 

2 Month - 

4 Yr Old 

Secondary 

School 
Adult 

MCHN 

Opportunistic 

Number of Clients 16 0 13 

Number of Vaccines  34 0 13 

Beaufort Session 
Number of Clients 4 0 42 

Number of Vaccines  6 0 42 

Avoca Session 
Number of Clients 5 0 10 

Number of Vaccines  12 0 10 

 

Key Projects  

The implementation of the Domestic Wastewater Management Plan continues with inspections of 

some high and medium risk properties within the Shire.  Work continues on the review of existing 

records and the setup of electronic records for all properties within declared potable water 

catchment areas. 

 

Compliance Issues 

Compliance action taken against two Food and Accommodation Premises that failed to renew their 

registration for 2018 continues to be worked on.   
 

Another registered Food Premise was issued with a Notice to rectify issues identified during a 

routine annual Assessment. This notice has been complied with and has since been revoked.  
 

Other minor issues are being monitored with registered food premises with current non-

compliance issues in regard to not keeping regular temperature records, ongoing cleaning issues 

and not having an accredited Food Safety Supervisor.   
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COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

- Council Plan 2013-2017 
- Domestic Wastewater Management Plan 2015-2018 
- Food Act 1984 
- Public Health & Wellbeing Act 2008 
- Tobacco Act 1987 
- Environment Protection Act 1970 
- Code of Practice for Septic Tanks 

 

FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 

The Environmental Health Officer (EHO) must work with regard to various legislative requirements 

with respect to Food Safety (Food Act 1984), Public Health (Public Health & Wellbeing Act 2008, 

Environment Protection Act 1970), Tobacco (Tobacco Act 1987) and Wastewater (Environment 

Protection Act 1970, Domestic Wastewater Management Plan, Code of Practice for Septic Tanks).    
 

It is necessary for the EHO to adapt to any changes in regulations whilst still providing a service that 

both meets the demands of residents within the municipality and complies with legislation.     

 

Environmental Health Summary 

1. EH continues to work on a Public Health and Wellbeing (PHWB) Act Nuisance complaint about 
offensive odour after receiving another complaint and further information about a property 
that had previously been investigated.   

2. EH received a further, separate Nuisance complaint during May in regard to Noise.   
 

 
PART D: LOCAL LAWS AND ANIMAL CONTROL 

 

Key Projects 
 

Council’s Local Law Review project team has received and reviewed a Draft General Local Law. 

 Business improvement projects to strengthen local law administration are continuing. 

 Council continues to investigate a range of complex animal keeping matters. 
 

Local Law Review Project 

Council’s Local Law team has now completed a review of the Draft General Local Law and Draft 

Operating Procedure, prepared by Beck Legal. The Draft General Local Law builds on extensive 

analysis, benchmarking and internal consultation.  
 

Beck Legal will now undertake refinements to the Draft General Local Law based on Council’s 

feedback. Once a complete draft is received, Council will commence informal consultation with 

communities and stakeholders ahead of a formal consultation under section 223 of the Local 

Government Act.  

 

Other Projects 

Council staff is continuing to develop a range of new administrative processes to support the 

implementation of the General Local Law in late 2018. This process includes the development of 
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new permit application forms and checklists; fact sheets that identify application requirements for 

all permit matters; internal referrals; standard conditions; and a new Fee Schedule for all permit 

types.   

 

COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

 Council Plan 2013-2017 

 Domestic Animals Act 1994 

 Domestic Animal Management Plan 2012-2016 

 Council Local Laws No. 2, No. 3 and No. 4 
 

Local Laws and Animal Control Summary 

1. The review of Council’s Local Laws is progressing, with a new (draft) General Local Law and 

Operating Procedure currently under review by an internal project team. 

2. New internal processes are being developed to strengthen Council’s administration of its Local 

Laws. 

3. Council continues to investigate a number of complex compliance matters across the Shire 

relating to public safety, roadside signage and unregistered domestic animals, and is 

cooperating with RSPCA on various issues. 
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ASSETS AND DEVELOPMENT 
 

2. AVOCA HIGH STREET TOILET SEWER BLOCKAGE 
Damien Day – Infrastructure and Mapping Officer 
File No: 217018150 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 
 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to brief council about sewer issues at the Avoca High Street toilet 
block 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Avoca High Street toilet block is located in the road reserve median near the Avoca Information 
& Community Resource Centre. 
 

In 2007 the old toilet block was demolished and replaced with the current structure in a new foot 
print. The contractor was to provide all new sewer lines to suit sanitary fittings and floor wastes. 
Council records indicate that works undertaken at the time complied with the Victorian Water 
Supply and Sewerage plumbing regulations and standards of the Standards Association of Australia, 
and with the regulations and by-laws of the relevant Water Authority. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
During the month of May, council’s Building Maintenance team received requests to attend to 
multiple sewer blockages in the male, female and disabled toilets. Prior to May the last recorded 
blockage was January 2018. Contractors were engaged to unblock the pipework using specialised 
equipment to inspect and remove materials causing the blockages. The primary blockage was non-
biodegradable wet wipes that became lodged on calcium like mineral deposit build-up that had 
accumulated within the PVC sewer pipes. The equipment identified that the calcium like deposits 
were only evidenced in the PVC pipework from the male toilets, the female system was clear of any 
similar deposits. The contractor’s equipment removed these mineral deposits from the PVC piping. 
A sample of the calcium mineral has been collected for testing. More recent blockages occurred in 
Central Highlands Water’s sewer mains.  
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 1 - Roads and Townships. We will plan, manage, maintain and renew 
infrastructure in a sustainable way that responds to the needs of the community. 
 

1.2 - Maintain and renew Council's facilities and built assets in line with community service needs. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Council officers will respond in a manner that’s appropriate and timely to the level of information 
received. A recent report at the Avoca High Street toilet block was described as “toilets are 
overflowing and faeces spilling onto the floor”. The toilet block was immediately closed to the 
public until such time as an investigation could take place from council officers and contractors. 
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Upon inspection the only evidence of any type of over flow was dried dirt around one of the floor 
waste, a CCTV pipe inspection also revealed that the internal sewer system to the sewer mains was 
clear of any obstruction.    
 
CONCLUSION 
Officers will seek to identify the nature and source of the calcium like material. Signage will be 
located in the Male and Female toilet blocks that the disposing of non-biodegradable wet wipes in 
this system is not recommended.  
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Notes this report 
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CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

3. CUSTOMER ACTION REQUESTS – MAY 2018 
Evan King – Director Corporate and Community Services 
File No: 16/08/04 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to update Council on our Customer Action Request System (CARS) for 
the month of May 2018.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Council has operated an electronic Customer Action Service Request system (CARS) for a number of 
years enabling residents to lodge service requests.  Requests can be lodged in person, via 
telephone, via Council’s website or by using a smartphone “Snap Send Solve” application.   
 
Since December 2012, CARS has been promoted on a regular basis in Council’s Public Notices 
published in the Pyrenees Advocate.   
 
Predominantly, service requests have been for maintenance issues – potholes, road condition, 
drainage, signage, slashing and overhanging branches.  Council receives between 400 and 700 
service requests per annum. 

 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
As at the 31st May 2018 the status of CARS was as follows: 

 0% change in 2016 Outstanding CARS 

 14% decrease in 2017 Outstanding CARS 

 31% decrease in 2018 Outstanding CARS  

 20% decrease on total CARS outstanding 

 Of the 123 outstanding CARS 51 relate to natural disasters 

 For the month of May 107 CARS were closed 
 

A CARS working group has been set up to undertake a complete review of the CARS system.  Three 
meetings have been held with a number of recommendations in the process of being implemented. 
 
Additional services have been added to the CARS system including pools, local laws, building 
maintenance and compliance. 
 
To enable better analysis of outstanding CARS and the ability to identify CARS related to natural 
disaster a  report has been created that categorises CARS by request type. 
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Open Requests - Type 

Roads  12  

Streetlights  1  

Drainage  8  

Footpaths/K&C/PL(VR)  2  

Roadside Vegetation  5  

Fire Hazards  1  

Building Maintenance  6  

Parks & Reserves  3  

Local Laws  8  

Building Compliance  2  

Road Maintenance  15  

Roads - Unsealed  2  

Road Maintenance - Unsealed  7  

Natural Disasters  51  

Total  123  

 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 1 - Leadership 
 

1.1 - Communicate the Council's decisions, policies and activities and the reasons behind them, in a 
form relevant to ratepayer needs and expectations in accordance to Council's communication 
strategy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
3.1 CARS Analysis – May 2018 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications associated with this report 
 
CONCLUSION 
There has been continued improvement demonstrated in resolution, inspection and 
acknowledgement of customer requests.  Further focus and effort is required to reduce the level of 
outstanding requests.   
 
OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council: 
 

1. Notes the Customer Action Request update for May 2018 
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COUNCILLOR ACTIVITY REPORTS 

Cr David Clark – Ercildoune Ward 

May 

Wed 2 VicRoads Liaison Meeting Beaufort 

Fri 4  MAV Board Meeting Melbourne 

Sun 6 Lake Goldsmith Steam Rally Lake Goldsmith 

Tue 8  Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Thu 10  CH Prevention Laboratory Breakfast Ballarat 

Fri 11 Compost Week Launch Ballarat 

Mon 14 MAV Audit Committee Meeting Melbourne 

Tue 15 Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Tue 15 Council Meeting Beaufort 

Thu 17 CV GA Board Meeting Wedderburn 

Fri 18 MAV State Council Melbourne 

Mon 21 Federation University Meeting Beaufort 

Tue 29 ALGA Federal Funding meeting – State Election Promos Teleconference 

Wed 30 Stockyard Hill Wind Farm powerline build briefing Ballarat 

June 

Fri 1 MAV Board Meeting Melbourne 

Tue 5 Councillor Briefing Session Crowlands 

Fri 8 Pyrenees Art Exhibition Official Opening Beaufort 

Tue 12 Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Tue 12 Council Meeting Beaufort 

Sun 17-Wed 20 National General Assembly Canberra 

Fri 22 Stockyard Hill Wind Farm Construction Commencement Stockyard Hill 

Tue 26 Special Meeting of Council Beaufort 

 

Cr Robert Vance – DeCameron Ward 

May 

Tue 8 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

Tue 15 Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Tue 15 Council Meeting Beaufort 

Wed 16–Fri 18  RCV Rural Summit Lakes Entrance 

June 

Tue 5 Councillor Briefing Session Crowlands 

Fri 8 RCV Meeting Melbourne 

Tue 12 Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Tue 12 Council Meeting Beaufort 

Sun 17 Moonambel Ceramic Centre Open Day Moonambel 

Fri 22 Stockyard Hill Wind Farm Construction Commencement Stockyard Hill 

Tue 26 Special Meeting of Council Beaufort 
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Cr Ron Eason – Avoca Ward 

May 

Tue 8 Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Tue 15 Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Tue 15 Council Meeting Beaufort 

June 

Tue 5 Councillor Briefing Session Crowlands 

Tue 12 Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Tue 12 Council Meeting Beaufort 

Tue 26 Special Meeting of Council Beaufort 

 

Cr Tanya Kehoe - Mount Emu Ward 

May 

Tue 15 Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Tue 15 Council Meeting Beaufort 

June 

Tue 5 Councillor Briefing Session Crowlands 

Tue 12 Councillor Briefing Session Beaufort 

Tue 12 Council Meeting Beaufort 

Mon 18 Rotary Club of Beaufort Changeover Dinner Beaufort 

Tue 26 Special Meeting of Council Beaufort 
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4. ASSEMBLY OF COUNCILLORS 

MEETING INFORMATION 

Meeting Name Councillor Briefing Session 

Meeting Date 8 May 2018 commenced at 2.00pm and closed at 6.15pm 

Meeting Location Beaufort Council Chambers 

Matters  
Discussed 

1. Council Meeting Index 
 

2. Revised Council Plan 
 

3. Appointment of Independent Member to the Audit & Risk Committee 
 

4. Visit Ballarat 
 

5. Meet and greet new staff members 
 

6. Approval for bankruptcy action against outstanding rates debtor 
 

7. Community Grants Program 
 

8. Reconciliation Action Plan 
 

9. Major Projects 
 

ATTENDEES 

Councillors Mayor Cr David Clark   
Cr Michael O’Connor 
Cr Ron Eason 
Cr Robert Vance  
Cr Tanya Kehoe (via telephone link) 
 

Apologies Nil   
 

Staff Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
Douglas Gowans –  Director Asset and Development Services 
Evan King – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Ray Davies – Manager Economic Development and Tourism – Item 4 
Renee Robinson – Communications Officer – Item 5 
Peter O’Rourke - Library Services and Resource Centres Coordinator – Item 5 
Shane Dwyer - Relief Local Laws Officer – Item 5 
Sean Leyland - Risk and OHS Advisor – Item 5 
April Ure - Property Revenue Officer – Item 6 
Michelle Richards – Community Wellbeing and Grants Coordinator – Item 7 
Laura Buchanan – Reconciliation Action Plan – Item 8 
 

Visitors  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 

Matter No: Councillor 
making 

disclosure 

Particulars of disclosure Councillor left 
meeting 

 

N/A    
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MEETING INFORMATION 

Meeting Name Councillor Briefing Session 

Meeting Date 15 May 2018 commenced at 2.00pm and closed at 5.45pm 

Meeting Location Beaufort Council Chambers 

Matters 
Discussed 

1. Presentation by Steve Bartlett of Securitec 
 

2. Presentation by Chris Barrett - VRC Property 
 

3. Former Beaufort Primary School Site 
 

4. Agenda Review 
 

ATTENDEES 

Councillors Mayor Cr David Clark   
Cr Michael O’Connor 
Cr Tanya Kehoe (left at 5.10pm) 
Cr Ron Eason  
Cr Robert Vance 
 

Apologies Nil 
 

Staff Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
Evan King – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Douglas Gowans –  Director Asset and Development Services 
Ray Davies - Manager Economic Development and Tourism – Item 1 and 3 
April Ure – Property Revenue Officer – Item 2 
 

Visitors Steve Bartlett – Item 1 
Chris Barrett – Item 2 
George Kirsanovs – Item 3 
Pam Wellar – Item 3 
Catherine Thomson  – Item 3 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 

Matter No: Councillor 
making 

disclosure 

Particulars of disclosure 
 

Councillor left 
meeting 

 

N/A    

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the items for noting be received. 
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ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

ASSET AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

5. FLOOD WORKS UPDATE 
Leigh Ditchfield – Acting Municipal Engineer  
File No: 28/06/31 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide a further update following the flood/storm events of 
September 2016, April 2017 and November 2017. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Pyrenees Shire experienced two rain events in 2016, the first on the 13th of September and the 
second on the 11th of October.  Both were not abnormally large rainfall totals in themselves, but they 
followed a particularly wet winter and the ground and streams were already saturated. This resulted in 
rivers and streams overflowing onto low lying areas and impacting on the roads infrastructure and 
community assets. Some primary residences were also inundated.  

The Pyrenees Shire experienced another rain event on 24th of April 2017 which impacted areas mainly 
in the south east of the Shire.  This event resulted in damage to already completed tasks as well as new 
defects. 

The Pyrenees Shire again suffered another event on 23rd of November 2017.  This event impacted an 
area northeast of Avoca. 

The Pyrenees Shire Council Emergency Management Team again was very active during all of the flood 
events undertaking a number of response and recovery roles.  

The additional resources that were required to oversee the flood recovery efforts are still active. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Works Update 

The tables below details the inspections, defects and completed tasks for the 3 events.   

September 2016 

Total number of inspections conducted 6674 

Total number of defects found 5583 

Tasks completed as at 23 May 2018 88% 
 

April 2017 

Total number of inspections conducted 1069 

Total number of defects found 903 

Tasks completed as at 23 May 2018 52% 
 

November 2017 

Total number of inspections conducted 171 

Total number of defects found 171 

Tasks completed as at 23 May 2018 2% 
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Over the 3 separate events, restoration works are now 80% completed when measured by the number 
of defect tasks. There are some larger floodway restoration works yet to be undertaken but are at this 
stage programmed to be completed by 30th June 2019. The funding allows Council to undertake 
restorations up to two financial years following the year that the events occurred.  Therefore, 
September 2016 and April 2017 events are required to be completed by 30 June 2019 and November 
2017 event by 30th June 2020.  It is anticipated that all the works should be completed by 30 June 
2019.  It must be noted that there is now a delay in the supply of concrete culverts of all sizes due to 
the amount of works being undertaken across Victoria. 

Recovery 
The Flood Recovery Plan 2016 was developed to coordinate the flood recovery operation and provide 
an implementation framework and reporting mechanism for the Flood Recovery Committee. 
 

To date the objectives in the Action Plan are complete except for the key recovery areas based around 
Council’s infrastructure and resilience.  These objectives have been commenced and are still ongoing.     
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 1 - Roads and Townships. We will plan, manage, maintain and renew infrastructure 
in a sustainable way that responds to the needs of the community. 

1.1 - Ensure local roads are maintained and renewed in line with adopted plans and strategy to provide 
a safe transport network and meet community needs. 
1.2 - Maintain and renew Council's facilities and built assets in line with community service needs. 
 
Strategic Objective 3 - Community Connection and Wellbeing. We will engage with communities to 
provide responsive, efficient services that enhance the quality of life of residents and promote 
connected, active and resilient communities. 

3.3 - Community Development - Supporting communities to build connections, capacity and resilience. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Council has made a number of claims to the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) following 

approved claim assessments by VicRoads who provide the claim pre-assessment approval. 

 

Please find below a financial summary as at 30th April 2018: 

 Road Infrastructure Expenditure to date $8,225,631: 
o September 2016 - $3,492,323 (2016/17) + $3,779,690 (2017/18) 
o April 2017 - $912,503 (2017/18) 
o November 2017 - $41,115 (2017/18) 
 

 Road Infrastructure Claims to date $7,131,598 
o Emergency works $142,258 
o Asset repairs $7,037,498 
o Less excess $35,000 
o Less emergency works $13,158 
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 Claims and advances paid & received to date $3,796,817 
o Claims paid directly - $353,571 

 Sept 2016 - $198,417 
 Oct 2016 – $27,155 
 Nov 2016 -  $127,999 

o Claims paid via advances 1 & 2 $3,443, 247 
 Dec 2016 - $394,894.22 
 Jan 2017 - $317,023.34 
 Feb 2017 - $226,022.96 
 Mar 2017 - $414,755.90 
 Apr 2017 - $551,898.86 
 May 2017 - $441,095.84 
 Jun 2017 - $934,264.92 
 Jul 2017 - $163,290.56 
 Total - $3,443,247 

 

 Advance 3 received and yet to be allocated against claims  - $2,500,000 
 

 Reconciliation 
 

Expenditure not claimed $1,094,034 

Expenditure claimed $7,131,597 

Total expenditure $8,225,631 

Less claims paid directly $353,571 

Less claims paid via advances $3,443,247 

Total paid $3,796,818 

  

Balance $4,428,813 

Less Advance $2,500,000 

Currently funded by Council $1,928,813 

 

 Claims status 
o September 2016 event 

 Claims have been submitted up to March 2018. 
- April 2018, May 2018 & June 2018 to be claimed 

o April 2017 event 
 To be claimed 

o November 2017 event 
 To be completed 

 

 Department of Treasury & Finance Advice 
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o Department of Treasury & Finance has informed Council of the new requirement from the 
Commonwealth requiring that expenditure incurred in a particular financial year needs to be 
claimed in the same financial year. 

o Any expenditure incurred for an eligible event in 2017-18 will need to be lodged by no later 
than 31 July 2018.  Expenditure claimed after this date will be considered ineligible. 

   

The estimated spend for the flood events is currently $15,791,000 

Year Total Estimate 
Spend as at 30th 

April 2018 
To be Spent 

September 2016 $11,705,746 $7,272,013 $4,433,733 

April 2017 $1,908,514 $912,503 $996,011 

November 2017 $703,067 $41,115 $661,952 

TOTAL $14,317,327 $8,225,631 $6,091,696 

 
CONCLUSION 
A full assessment and cost estimate of the impact of the 2016 and 2017 flood and storm events has 
been completed, and the revised estimated cost of damage to local road and bridge infrastructure is 
$15.791M.   
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Notes the report. 
2. Continues to monitor the claims process ensuring that all expenditure incurred in 2017/18 

is claimed in 2017/18. 
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6. APPLICATION FOR AN EXTENSION TO AN EXISTING UNUSED ROAD GRAZING LICENCE – 
ANDREA STRAWHORN 
Leigh Ditchfield – Acting Municipal Engineer  
File No: 30/02/08 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to advise Council of a request received by Ms Andrea Strawhorn to extend 
a current licence (0513121) on an unused road reserve and provide a recommendation in regards to 
the request. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Ms Andrea Strawhorn is seeking to extend the current licence on an unused road reserve for the 
purpose of grazing.  The portion of unused road reserve is located north east of Ms Strawhorn’s 
property Crown Allotment 172, Parish of Lexton.   
 
The Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) approved the extension to the 
licence subject to Ms Strawhorn not removing any native vegetation, that the intention to grant the 
licence is advertised, and that Ms Strawhorn submit to Council, for a decision in declaring that the road 
is not required for public traffic.  The notice of intention was advertised in the Ballarat Courier on 30th 
December 2017.   
 
Ms Strawhorn then submitted the application to Council officers.  Written advice from the three (3) 
neighbouring property owners/responsible body who abuts the section of the road reserve was 
requested to advise whether they have an objection or are supportive of the proposal, prior to the 
request being presented to Council.  Only one (1) neighbouring property owner/responsible body 
(CHW) provided to Council officers written advice on the 22 May 2018, that they had no objections to 
Ms Strawhorn leasing the road reserve with a condition that the gate remain accessible to them as is 
the existing arrangement.  Council Officers believe that legal points of access to the two (2) 
neighbouring property owners, who did not respond, are not impacted.     

Council officers reviewed the request and can advise that the road reserve requested to have the 
existing licence extended does not provide any strategic access issues. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The aerial map attached shows the area to be leased in red with the adjacent property, owned by Ms 
Strawhorn, south west of the area being requested. As can be observed from the aerial photography, 
the area to be leased does not restrict access to neighbouring properties.   
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 1 - Roads and Townships. We will plan, manage, maintain and renew infrastructure 
in a sustainable way that responds to the needs of the community. 
 

1.1 - Ensure local roads are maintained and renewed in line with adopted plans and strategy to provide 
a safe transport network and meet community needs. 
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Pursuant to s.400(1) of the Land Act 1958, A municipal council may give notice to the Secretary that 
any road or part of a road which is within the municipal district of that municipal council and which it 
considers is not required for public traffic is an unused road and upon the giving of any such notice any 
road or part of a road specified therein shall be an unused road. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
6.1 Aerial map. 
6.2 Copy of correspondence from DELWP, copy of public notice and response letter from CHW – 

circulated separately. 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
It is considered by Council officers that extending the lease and declaring of the road reserve to be 
unused does not offer Council any financial exposure and minimal organisational risk. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The request to extend the licence on the unused road reserve by Ms Strawhorn offers minimal risk and 
does not obstruct access to neighbouring properties. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 

1. Receives the request from Ms Strawhorn to extend the licence on the unused road reserve 
located north east of Crown Allotment 172, Parish of Lexton. 

2. Declares that the unused road reserve located north east of Crown Allotment 172, Parish of 
Lexton is not currently required for public traffic. 
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CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

7. REVIEW OF THE S11 INSTRUMENT OF APPOINTMENT AND AUTHORISATION 
Kathy Bramwell – Manager Governance, Risk & Compliance 
File No: 16/20/08 
Declaration of Interest:  As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to consider a review of the S11 Instrument of Appointment 
and Authorisation. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Local Government Act (1989) (Section 98) requires Council to regularly review all delegations, 
appointments and authorisations that are in force or have been made by Council under this section. 
 

Council is advised by Maddocks Lawyers in preparation of Instruments of Delegation. Advice is 
received after each sitting of Parliament on the changes to legislation affecting local government. 
 

In addition, reviews are undertaken when changes in personnel occupying Authorised Officer roles 
occur. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The S11 Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation has been revised and updated to reflect the 
following changes in officer titles and incumbents within specific roles: 
 

 Changes of officers in a role (resignation and replacement) – Municipal Building Surveyor 
 

This change occurred because Council’s former Municipal Building Surveyor resigned his post and an 
interim arrangement was made whilst long-term recruitment processes are undertaken. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Under Section 98 of the Local Government Act (1989) Council is required to regularly review all 
delegations, appointments and authorisations that are in force or have been made by Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
7.1 S11 Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation - June 2018 – circulated separately 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
It is a requirement under the Local Government Act (1989) for Council to regularly review all 
delegations, appointments and authorisations that are in force or have been made by Council. 
 
CONCLUSION 
In order to legally allow staff other than the Chief Executive Officer to enforce provisions of legislation, 
Council must review its Delegations at regular intervals throughout the year, or when significant 
changes occur. 
 
Amended Delegations once approved by Council will remain in force until further reviews are 
conducted following ongoing legislation changes. 
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OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION 

In the exercise of the powers conferred by section 224 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act) 
and other legislation referred to in the attached S11 Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation 
(the instruments), Pyrenees Shire Council (Council) resolves that: 

 

1. The members of Council staff referred to in the Instrument be appointed and authorised as 
set out in the Instrument. 

 

2. The Instrument comes into force immediately the common seal of Council is affixed to the 
Instrument, and remains in force until Council determines to vary or revoke it. 

 

3. Council staff affixes the Common Seal to the Instrument. 
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8. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER UDATE 
Kathy Bramwell – Manager Governance, Risk & Compliance 
File No: 16/24/06 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide Council assurance that control of risks included within the 
Strategic Risk Register are being appropriately managed and mitigated. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Council’s Strategic Risk Register was reviewed and redeveloped at a Council workshop in March 2017, 

with the final version approved in June 2017.   Existing controls to mitigate those risks were assessed 

and additional planned controls were developed to further mitigate risk where necessary.  Officers 

were assigned responsibility to implement the planned controls with target deadlines. 

ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed in May 2018 and progress against planned controls updated.  

The review included progress against planned controls; identification of new risks or controls needed; 

and re-assessment of risk ratings. 

Changes within the register were implemented as follows: 

Original Register: Changes made: 

R2017-1 9 planned controls 7 planned risk controls completed. 

Review of deadline date for mental health education program 

to allow proper focus and budget allocation. 

R2017-2 9 planned controls No change – progress update only 

R2017-3 2 planned controls All planned risk controls completed. 

Risk status changed to “accept risk & monitor” 

Risk rating re-assessed but remains as high due to external 

nature of threats. 

R2017-4 7 planned controls 4 due dates deferred – still in progress and updates provided. 

2 planned risk controls completed. 

R2017-5 4 planned controls 2 planned risk controls completed. 

2 due dates deferred – still in progress and updates provided. 

R2017-7 1 planned control The planned risk control completed. 

Pyrenees Futures Project added to current controls. 

Risk status changed to “accept risk & monitor” 

Risk rating re-assessed as low 

R2017-11 3 planned controls 2 planned risk controls completed. 

1 due date deferred – still in progress and updates provided. 

R2017-12 5 planned controls 4 planned risk controls completed. 
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Original Register: Changes made: 

R2017-13 3 planned controls 2 planned risk controls completed. 

R2017-17 1 planned control The planned risk control completed. 

Risk status changed to “accept risk & monitor” 
 

Where planned risk controls are completed the information has been transferred to current controls, 

and will be deleted in future iterations of the strategic risk register.  Risks not included within the 

changes table above remain as “Accept risk & monitor” with no changes required. 

The Strategic Risk Register now contains 3 risks rated as High (No change); and the number of risks 

rated as Medium reduced by 1, to 5.   

No new risks were identified for inclusion in the risk register at this review.  A further review of the 

register will take place in April/May 2019; with a full workshop review of all strategic risks (as a basis 

for a new strategic risk register) to be conducted with Council in April/May 2020. 

The updated Strategic Risk Register is now attached for Council’s endorsement. 

 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 1 - Leadership 
 

1.2 - Mitigate risk and improve employee safety through pro-active risk management. 
 

Local Government Victoria’s Performance Reporting Framework requires councils to receive six-
monthly reports of strategic risk to Council’s operations, their likelihood and consequences of 
occurring and minimisation strategies. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
8.1 Pyrenees Shire Council Strategic Risk Register – circulated separately 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Risks are inherent in all business decisions and risk management therefore needs to be integral to 
good management practice.  
 
CONCLUSION 
Council’s risk management strategy sets out a methodology that facilitates sound risk management, 
including the regular monitoring of strategic risks by Council and its Audit Committee. 
 
OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Approves the revised Pyrenees Shire Council Strategic Risk Register. 
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9. PROPOSED BUDGET 2018/19 
Evan King – Director Corporate and Community Services 
File No: 32/26/04 Part 7 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to consider the Proposed Budget for the 2018/19 financial 
year and to declare the rates and charges for that year.   
 
BACKGROUND 
Section 127 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act) requires Council to prepare a budget for each 
financial year and provide the opportunity for people to make a submission under section 223 of the 
Act on any proposal contained in the budget. 
 

The Proposed Budget for 2018/19 has been prepared by Councillors and Council Officers and guided by 
Community Action Plans and Strategies.  
 

Council at its Ordinary meeting held on the 17th April 2018 adopted the Proposed Budget 2018/19 for 
community consultation in accordance with section 223 of the Act.  Council provided 28 days for 
submissions on the budget which were to be received by 5.00pm on Friday 18th May 2018. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The Proposed Budget for 2018/19 has been prepared by Councillors, Council officers and the 
community. As part of the budget process the community was invited to community workshops held in 
Waubra and Raglan.  Council also undertook an online engagement process using OurSay.  The 
community was asked to complete a survey on priority services and indicate where they would reduce 
invest if they had the opportunity.  Council did not receive any submissions on the budget through the 
S223 process. 
 

The budget includes a rate increase of 3.50%, which is 1.25% above the maximum rate increase 
allowed under the rate cap set by the Minister for Local Government under the Fair Go Rates System.  
 

Of the 3.5% rate increase 1.5% of rate revenue has been quarantined specifically for capital 
expenditure on renewing Council's road infrastructure assets.  This year those additional funds have 
been allocated to gravel roads.   
 

In order to balance the remainder of the budget, Council has continued to pursue operational savings 
and efficiencies which has enabled it to deliver high quality, responsive and accessible services to the 
community. 
 

Budgeted Capital Works expenditure will decrease from $7.162 million in 2017/18 to $5.585 million in 
2018/19, predominantly as a result of a reduction in capital grant income of $2.51 million.   
 

The Capital Works Program will be funded by $1.103 million of external grants, $710,000 from asset 
sales and the balance of $3.772 million from Council rates.   

 

It is worth noting that ratepayer funded capital expenditure has increased by $784,000. 
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Highlights of the Capital Works Program include: 
 

 Gravel Road Resheets $1.014 million, an increase of $240,000 or 31.1% 

 Stage 1 Snake Valley Linear Park - $100,000 

 Reseals at various locations - $853,000 

 Raglan-Elmhurst Road 1.5km reconstruction - $450,000 

 Moonambel-Natte Yallock Road 2km reconstruction - $450,000 

 Additional dust suppression graded aggregate total treatment (gatt) seals - $22,000 

 Drainage project 2018-19 - $50,000 

 Solar lighting of township entrances - $10,000 
 
Expenditure on the following project included in the Capital Works Program will be recouped in future 
budget periods as the land is sold: 

 

 Residential Land Development  - Correa Park Stage 4 - $334,000 
 
Council's waste management service is fully funded by waste service and user charges.  The 
Landsborough transfer station is currently uncontrolled and people from anywhere are able to deposit 
waste of all types there without charge.  In order to improve the level of service for waste 
management at Landsborough, Council will actively manage the Landsborough transfer station in the 
same way it manages other transfer stations across the Shire.   
 

Waste service charges will increase on average by 9.2% in order to meet the increased costs of actively 
managing the Landsborough transfer station and the additional cost associated in managing 
recyclables that has arisen as a result of China's ban on the importation of waste materials from 
countries such as Australia. 
 

The focus for the next year is to continue to deliver on the projects and services that make the Shire a 
great place to live, work and invest in, and respond to the challenges we are currently facing.  
 

These challenges include: 
 

 Rate Capping 

 State Government Cost Shifting 

 Maintaining Our Road Infrastructure 
 
Whilst Council has obtained approval for a rate increase that is 1.25% above the 2.25% rate cap, the 
actual rate increases experienced by individual ratepayers will be different due to this being a 
municipal revaluation year.  

 

In a revaluation year, rate increases are impacted by the average rate increase (3.50%) and the 
property valuation increases of individual properties relative to the average valuation increase of 
25.1% across the municipality.  If your property value increased by more than the 25.1% average 
property value increase for the shire, then your rates will increase by more than 3.50%. However, if 
your property value increased by less than the 25.1% average property value increase for the shire, 
your rates will increase by less than 3.50% and may in fact reduce from the previous year. 
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COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 1 - Leadership 
 

1.1 - Communicate the Council's decisions, policies and activities and the reasons behind them, in a 
form relevant to ratepayer needs and expectations in accordance to Council's communication strategy. 
 
Under Section 127 of the Local Government Act 1989, Council must prepare a Budget for each financial 
year.  There are stipulations as to what must be included in the Budget. The Proposed Budget 2017/18 
document meets these requirements.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
9.1 Pyrenees Budget 2018-19 3.5% Council 12 June 2018 – circulated separately 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
All financial implications associated with the Proposed Budget 2018/19 have been accounted for 
within the Budget.   
 
CONCLUSION 
The Proposed Budget 2018/19 has been developed in alignment with the Council Plan 2017/21. The 
2018/19 budget as tabled provides guidance on how Council intends to deliver its strategic objectives 
over the next twelvemonths. 
 
OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION 

1. That Council hereby determines that the budget for 2018/19 be adopted. 
 
2. The Chief Executive Officer be authorised to give public notice of this decision to adopt such 

Budget, in accordance with Section 130(2) of the Local Government Act 1989. 
 
3. That the following details are provided in relation to the 2018/19 budget: 

 
The proposed Budget as prepared by Council: 

 

a. Discloses that as at 30 June 2018 the total amount borrowed by the Council will be $Nil. 
 

b. There are no new borrowings proposed for the 2018/19 financial year. 
 

c. The total amount of borrowings projected to be redeemed during the financial year is 
$Nil. 

 

d. The projected total amount of borrowings as at 30th June, 2019 is $nil. 
 

e. The projected cost of servicing borrowings during the financial year is $Nil. 
 

f. The proposed rate in the dollar for each type of rate to be levied for the period 1st July, 
2018 to 30th June, 2019 is as follows: 
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Type of Rate Cents in $ on CIV 
Vacant and under 2 Ha 1.3530 
Vacant Land – Other (except farmland 1.0147 
Houses, Flats etc.  0.4228 
Commercial (including Shops, Offices and Factories)  0.4228 
Industrial    0.4228 
Farms (all types) 0.3382 
Cultural and Recreational properties     0.2114 

           
g. Proposes to apply a 50% rebate to all properties classified as Cultural and Recreational 

Land 
 

h. Proposes NOT to raise a Municipal Charge. 
 

i. Proposes to levy a Waste Facilities/Disposal Charge of $205.00 for the period 1st July, 2018 
to 30th June, 2019 on improved properties, and a Waste Facilities Levy of $57.00 for the 
period 1st July, 2018 to 30th June, 2019 on unimproved properties. Owners of “farm rated” 
properties will pay a maximum of three “unimproved charges” for farm rate properties. 

 

j. Proposes to levy a Kerbside Garbage, Recycling and Green Waste collection service of 
$356.00 on those properties receiving a service in the Beaufort and Avoca garbage 
districts for the period 1st July, 2018 to 30th June, 2019. 

 

k. Proposes to levy a Kerbside Garbage and Recycling collection service and a Green Waste 
Voucher service of $356.00 in the other urban townships and rural areas for the period 1st 
July, 2018 to 30th June, 2019. 
 

4. That the general rates and service charges referred to in this resolution shall be levied by the 
service of a notice on each person liable to pay such rate or charge in accordance with Section 
158 of the Local Government Act 1989. 

 
5. That in accordance with Section 167 of the Local Government Act 1989, the rates and charges 

declared by the Council for the 2018/19 financial year must be paid as follows: 
 

a) by four instalments made on or before the following dates: 
 

Instalment 1 – 30 September 2018 
 

Instalment 2 – 30 November 2018 
 

Instalment 3 – 28 February 2019 
 

Instalment 4 – 31 May 2019 
 

or; 
 

b) by a lump sum payment made on or before 15 February 2019. 
 

6. That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to levy and recover the general rates and annual 
service charges in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989. 
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10. PROPOSED LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2018/19 TO 2027/28 
Evan King – Director Corporate and Community Services 
File No: 32/02/10 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to consider the Proposed Long Term Financial Plan 2018/19 to 
2027/28. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Proposed Long Term Financial Plan 2018/19 to 2027/28 is one of the key financial planning 
documents for Council. The Plan has a 10-year forward budget, which was first developed in 2007. 
 

The Plan is reviewed twice a year, in November and as part of the annual budget setting process.  The 
financial data that is contained in the Plan has been provided to Council at briefing sessions and 
workshops as part of the review and the Annual Budget preparation process. 
 

In line with best practice and open and transparent governance, the Plan was reviewed by Council 
during the budget process. 
 

The Proposed 2018/19 Annual Budget forms the first year of the Plan, the preceding three years 
2019/20, 2020/21 and 2021/22 make up the Strategic Resource Plan and the remaining six years form 
the 10 year financial plan.    Both the financial data and commentary have been updated in the 
Proposed Long Term Financial Plan to reflect changes over the next 10 years. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The key objective, which underlies the development of the Plan, is financial sustainability in the 
medium to long term, whilst still achieving Council’s strategic objectives as specified in the Council Plan 
2017-2021. The key financial objectives, which underpin the Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP), are: 

1. Maintain existing service levels;       
2. Control and reduce future operating deficits via grant funding for asset renewal; 
3. Maintain a capital expenditure program that will sustain the Infrastructure asset base; and 

Achieve a balanced budget on a cash basis. 
 
In preparing the Long Term Financial Plan, Council has also been mindful of the need to comply with 
the following Principles of Sound Financial Management as contained in the Act:    

 Prudently manage financial risks relating to debt, assets and liabilities;   

 Provide reasonable stability in the level of rate burden; 

 Consider the financial effects of Council decisions on future generations; and  

 Provide full, accurate and timely disclosure of financial information. 
 
Key Financial Outcomes 

 Working Capital is maintained above 100% at all times during the LTFP. 

 Debt is only used in accordance with the Treasury Management Policy. 

 Balanced cash position is provided in all years of the 10 year financial plan. 

 Incremental improvement in underlying result over the life of the plan. 
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Key Capital Works Projects 

 Continuation of the residential and industrial land development. 

 Inclusion of the Moonambel Water Supply project  

 Increase in Council’s investment into infrastructure renewal. 

 Increased investment into recreational assets. 

 Inclusion of the Lexton Community Facility. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 1 - Leadership 
 

1.1 - Communicate the Council's decisions, policies and activities and the reasons behind them, in a 
form relevant to ratepayer needs and expectations in accordance to Council's communication strategy. 
 

Section 126 (3) of the Local Government Act (the Act) sates that a Council must adopt its Strategic 
Resource Plan  not later than 30 June each year, or such other date fixed by the Minister by 
notice published in the Government Gazette.  The option is available this year to adopt the Strategic 
Resource Plan by the 31st August. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
10.1 Proposed Long Term Financial Plan 2018-19 to 2027-28 – circulated separately 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
All financial implications associated with this report have been accounted for in the Proposed Long 
Term Financial Plan. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The Proposed Long Term Financial Plan provides a high level view of Council’s financial position for the 
period 2018/19 to 2027/28.  The plan demonstrates Council’s ability to fund the objectives of the 
Council Plan 2017-2021. 
 

OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Adopts the 2018/19 to 2027/28 Long Term Financial Plan. 

2. Places the 2018/19 to 2027/28 Long Term Financial Plan on Council’s website. 
 

 

  

http://www.austlii.edu.au/au/legis/vic/consol_act/lga1989182/s3.html#publish
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11. AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE MINUTES – 22 MAY 2018 
Evan King – Director Corporate and Community Services 
File No: 16/30/04 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an update of the Audit & Risk Committee meeting 

held on the 22nd May 2018. 

 

BACKGROUND 

In accordance with Section 139 of the Local Government Act 1989 Council is required to establish an 

Audit Committee.  The Committee meets three times a year and the attached report is an update of 

the meeting held on the 24th November 2015. 

 

Section 139 of the Local Government Act requires the following: 

1. A Council must establish an audit committee. 
2. An audit committee is an advisory committee. 
3. An audit committee must be constituted in the prescribed manner. 
4. An audit committee has the functions and responsibilities prescribed for the purposes of this 

section. 
5. (4A) Section 76D and 79 apply to all members of an audit committee as if they were members of a 

special committee of the Council. 
6. The Minister may make guidelines for the purpose of this section. 
7. Guidelines made under subsection (5) must be published in the Government Gazette. 
8. A Council may pay a fee to a member of an audit committee who is not a Councillors or member 

of Council staff. 
 

ISSUE / DISCUSSION 

A brief overview of the issues considered by the audit committee is now provided for Council’s 

Information. 
 

Internal Audit Reports: 

1. Acknowledgment of the passing of Cr Michael O’Connor member of the Audit & Risk Advisory 

Committee. 

2. Acknowledgment of the contribution of Mr Maurice Barwick to the Audit & Risk Advisory 

Committee who has not sought re-election. 

3. Election of chair for the next twelve months. 

4. Outcomes of the Worksafe Audit. 

5. Review of the Internal Audit on the Long Term Financial Plan. 

6. Review of the Internal Audit on Past Issues. 

7. Essential Services Commission – Council Compliance with the Rate Cap for 2017-18. 

8. Commonwealth Home Support Program Quality Audit. 

9. Governance, Culture and Risk Report. 

10. VAGO Audit Strategy for financial year ending 30th June 2018. 
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11. Interim Management Letter for financial year ending 30th June 2018. 

12. Update on Internal Audit Program. 

13. Recent reports and publications report. 

14. Waste Management Update – Ombudsman’s Report. 

15. Compliance Update. 

16. CEO report – Current issues for Pyrenees Shire Council. 

 

COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 

Objective: We will provide community leadership and advocacy to ensure financially sustainability and 

improve the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of the Pyrenees Shire. 
 

Strategy: Communicate the Council’s decisions, policies and activities and the reasons behind them, in 

a form relevant to ratepayer needs and expectations in accordance to Council’s Communication 

Strategy. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

11.1  Audit & Risk Committee Minutes 22 May 2018 – circulated separately 

 

FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 

All financial issues have been addressed in the Issue/Discussion section. 

 

CONCLUSION 

In accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 the Pyrenees Shire Audit & Risk Committee met on 

the 22nd May 2018.  This report summarises the items considered by the Committee. 

 

OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Receives the minutes of the Audit & Risk Committee meeting held on 22 May 2018. 
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12. GENERAL VALUATION CERTIFICATION 
Evan King – Director Corporate and Community Services 
File No: 52/08/02 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to outline the process for the 2018 property valuations and to seek 

Council’s approval to adopt the revaluation to be used for the purposes set out in the Valuation of 

Land Act 1960 and the Local Government Act 1989. 

 

BACKGROUND 

Section 11 of the Valuation of Land Act requires Council to make a general revaluation of rateable land 

within the Shire as at 1 January each calendar year. The last revaluation of the Shire was as at 1 

January 2016. 

 

ISSUE / DISCUSSION 

Council’s property valuations are completed by the Valuer General who in turn subcontracts the 

valuation to VRC Property. VRC Property has officially returned the final revaluation data for use in the 

2018/19 rating period. A valuation report was sent to the Valuer General (See Attachment) and Council 

has received the declaration from the Minister (See Attachment). 

Council must adopt the 2018 General Revaluation of all rateable properties within the municipality.   

 

Overall, valuations for rateable properties within the Pyrenees Shire Council have increased by 25.05%.  

Rate notices will be issued in August 2018, at which point ratepayers will be informed of their new 

property valuation. If any ratepayer feels their property has been incorrectly valued, objections can be 

lodged in the two months after the issue of the rate notice. Initial objections will be considered by VRC 

Property with a further avenue of appeal to VCAT if the matter remains unresolved. 

 

The revaluation of properties every year is a legal requirement. The general revaluation of all rateable 

properties has been completed in accordance with section 13DC (1) of the Valuation of Land Act 1960. 

 

COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 

Objective: We will provide community leadership and advocacy to ensure financially sustainability and 

improve the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of the Pyrenees Shire. 

 

Strategy: Communicate the Council’s decisions, policies and activities and the reasons behind them, in 

a form relevant to ratepayer needs and expectations in accordance to Council’s Communication 

Strategy. 

  

ATTACHMENTS 

12.1 2018 General Valuation – Certification made to the Minister – circulated separately 
12.2 2018 Report of General Valuation – circulated separately 
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FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 

The new capital improved values have been used as the base for rate calculations in the Proposed 

Budget 2018/19. 

 

CONCLUSION 

In accordance with the Valuation of Land Act 1960 and the Local Government Act 1989 the revaluation 

of all properties within the shire has occurred. 

 
OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Adopts the return of the revaluation of all properties within the Shire as at 1 January 2018 

from the Valuer General. 

2. Understands that the adopted Valuations will be used for the purposes set out in the 

Valuation of Land Act 1960 and the Local Government Act 1989, subject to any subsequent 

amendment to the valuation permissible under these acts. 
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13. COMMUNITY SATISFACTION SURVEY 2018 
Evan King – Director Corporate and Community Services 
File No: 44/10/04 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to receive the 2018 Community Satisfaction Survey. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Each year Local Government Victoria (LGV) coordinates and auspices a State-wide Local Government 
Community Satisfaction Survey throughout Victorian local government areas.  
Participation in the State-wide Local Government Community Satisfaction Survey is optional and 
participating councils have a range of choices as to the content of the questionnaire and the sample 
size to be surveyed, depending on their individual strategic, financial and other considerations. 
 
The main objectives of the survey are to assess the performance of Pyrenees Shire Council across a 

range of measures and to seek insight into ways to provide improved or more effective service 

delivery. The survey also provides councils with a means to fulfil some of their statutory reporting 

requirements as well as acting as a feedback mechanism to LGV. 

The survey was conducted by Computer Assisted Telephone Interviewing (CATI) as a representative 
random probability survey of residents aged 18+ years in Pyrenees Shire Council. 
A total of 400 completed interviews were achieved in Pyrenees Shire Council. Survey fieldwork was 

conducted in the period of 1st February –30th March, 2018. 

The Local Government Community Satisfaction Survey has been carried out annually since 1998.  The 

survey from 1998 to 2011 was carried out with the same format. 

For the 2012 survey and onwards the Department introduced significant changes to the methodology 

and content of the survey.  The changes were introduced to provide Councils with more meaningful 

and reliable information.  These changes meant in that instance, Council could not draw direct 

comparisons with previous year’s survey results.   

Pyrenees Shire is listed in the Small Rural Councils group which includes 16 Councils including the 

following shires: 

 Golden Plains 

 Buloke 

 Central Goldfields 

 Gannawarra 
 

 Indigo 

 Loddon 

 Mansfield 

 Mount Alexander 
 

 Queenscliff 

 Strathbogie 

 West Wimmera 

 Yarriambiack 

 Hepburn 

 Hindmarsh 

 Murrindindi 

 Benalla 
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ISSUE / DISCUSSION 

Result Area 

Pyrenees  

Shire 

 2018 

Pyrenees  

Shire 

 2017 

Small 

Rural 

Shires 

2018 

State-

wide 

Average  

2018 

Pyrenees 

Shire 

 2016 

Pyrenees 

Shire 

 2015 

 Overall Performance 62 64 56 59 61 62 

 Community Consultation 
(Consultation/Engagement) 

55 60 54 55 56 58 

 Advocacy (lobbying on behalf 
of the community) 

56 59 53 54 55 57 

 Making Community 
Decisions (Decisions made in 
interest of the community) 

57 62 52 54 56 57 

 Sealed Local Roads 
(Condition of sealed local 
roads) 

54 55 49 53 54 55 

 Customer Service 73 74 69 70 72 72 

 Overall Council Direction 51 55 50 52 54 54 

 

 Pyrenees Shire Council’s overall performance is rated statistically significantly higher than the 
average rating for councils State-wide and in the Small Rural group. 

 

 Residents aged 35 to 49 years are significantly more favourable in their view of overall 
performance compared to the Council average.  

 

 Residents aged 50 to 64 years and those in Mt Emu are significantly less favourable in their view of 
overall performance.  

 

 Perceptions of overall performance among women and residents aged 18 to 34 years are also 
significantly less favourable compared to 2017.  

 

 Around four times as many residents rate Pyrenees Shire Council’s overall performance as ‘good’ 
(35%), than those who rate it as ‘poor’ (9%). 

 

 Areas for improvement: 
 

o Sealed Road Maintenance: 20% (up 1 point from 2017) 
 

o Community Consultation: 10% (up 2 points from 2017) 
 
o Communication: 10% (down 3 points from 2017) 
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COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 
Strategic Objective 1 - Leadership 
 
1.1 - Communicate the Council's decisions, policies and activities and the reasons behind them, in a 
form relevant to ratepayer needs and expectations in accordance to Council's communication strategy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
13.1 Pyrenees Shire Council Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 – circulated separately 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications associated with this report 
 
CONCLUSION 
The 2018 Community Satisfaction Survey provides an assessment of the performance of Pyrenees 

Shire Council across a range of measures and seeks to provide insights into ways to provide improved 

or more effective service delivery. The survey also provides council with a means to fulfil some of its 

statutory reporting requirements as well as acting as a feedback mechanism to Local Government 

Victoria. 

 
OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Receives the 2018 Community Satisfaction Survey. 
2. Places the 2018 Community Satisfaction Survey results on Council’s website.  
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

14. RECONCILIATION ACTION PLAN (RAP) 
Laura Buchanan – Emergency Management Coordinator 
File No: 16/20/06 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to inform Council about the progress of the development of the 
Reconciliation Action Plan and to seek in principle support. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Pyrenees Shire Council is required to develop a Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) as per the Recognition 
and Settlement Agreement between the Dja Dja Wurrung People and the State of Victoria (RSA).  
 

Whilst there is the directive from the abovementioned RSA for Council to develop a RAP, the impetus 
for Council is multifaceted.  According to the 2016 census, 1.9% (135 individuals) of people living in the 
Pyrenees were Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islanders, more than double the state average of 0.8%. 
The Council already has strong connections to local partners on which it can build, including Langi Kal 
Kal Prison (with which we collaborated to install the Beaufort Lake Koori Art Trail) and already offers 
programs for residents that promote reconciliation (such as Aboriginal Storytime at the Beaufort 
Community Resource Centre).  Furthermore, according to the community members, there are many 
undocumented culturally significant sites throughout the Shire. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
In order to meet the requirements of the Recognition and Settlement Agreement, the Reconciliation 
Action Plan has to: 1) adhere to the template and process outlined by Reconciliation Australia; and 2) 
be endorsed by Reconciliation Australia before being made publicly available. 
 

The initial RAP (Reflect) is a 12 month action plan that requires the formation of a working group 
(consisting of Traditional Owners, community members and other relevant parties) to implement a 
number of specific actions that focuses on the three pillars of ‘Relationships’, ‘Respect’ and 
‘Opportunities.’ The action plan will commence from when the RAP is endorsed by Reconciliation 
Australia. 
 

After the Reflect RAP is completed, the Council will be required to progress to a three year ‘Innovate’ 
RAP, which will deepen Council’s commitment to reconciliation. In the longer term, Council will 
hopefully progress onto three year ‘Stretch’ RAPs which result in reconciliation initiatives being 
incorporated into business as usual. 
 

The formal commitment to reconciliation with Reconciliation Australia is an ongoing journey in which 
each RAP provides the basis for which further more meaningful actions can be scaffolded in future 
RAPs. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

12 JUNE 2018 – PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL – ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL 

AGENDA – ITEMS FOR DECISION 

48 

COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 2 - Relationships and Advocacy. We will build and maintain effective relationships 
with community, government and strategic partners, and advocate on key issues. 
 

2.3 - Maintain strategic partnerships, and participate with peak bodies for support and to enhance 
advocacy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Council will have to allocate some funds to allow the implementation of the RAP, in the first 12 months 
and ongoing. 
 
CONCLUSION 
Pyrenees Shire Council is continuing to develop a RAP in consultation with relevant stakeholders that 
will be sent to Reconciliation Australia for endorsement in the coming months. Once endorsed by 
Reconciliation Australia, it will be presented to Council for formal adoption.  
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council:  
 

1. Provides continuing support to the development of the RAP. 
2. Provides ‘in principle’ support of the adoption of the RAP in the future.  
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15. CENTRAL HIGHLANDS COUNCILS VICTORIA 
Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer 
File No: 44/06/12 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to inform Council about Central Highlands Councils Victoria activity and to 
seek approval for the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer to attend Parliament House in Canberra as 
part of the Central Highlands Councils Victoria advocacy delegation. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Mayors and CEOs Forum of the Central Highlands Councils Victoria (CHCV) group provides 
oversight for the activities of the group which are primarily focused on advocacy for regional priority 
projects and issues. 
 
The member Councils are Ararat, Ballarat, Central Goldfields, Golden Plains, Hepburn, Moorabool, 
Northern Grampians, and Pyrenees councils. 
 
The group has in the past been successful in advocating to state and federal governments for funding, 
policy change and support around key regional issues such as road and rail transport funding, 
employment, telecommunications, health and wellbeing, waste, sport and recreation, township 
development and the arts. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
As part of the advocacy program, CHCV is proposing a delegation to Canberra during the period of the Australian 
Local Government Association (ALGA) National General Assembly from 17 -20 June 2018. It is proposed that the 
Mayor and CEO attend as part of the delegation to be party to the advocacy to relevant MPs. The Mayor, Cr 

Clark will also be attending as the MAV Deputy President to attend the ALGA National General Assembly. 
 
The key themes that form the advocacy program this year are: 

 Growing our food and fibre industries 

 Connecting our economy 

 Enhancing our social fabric, liveability and wellbeing 

 Advancing technology 

 Strengthening our visitor economy 
 
Specific projects of interest to the Pyrenees Shire Council that form part of the program are: 

 East Grampians Rural Water Pipeline 

 Western Highway duplication and bypass of Beaufort 

 Melbourne to Ararat rail line 

 Moonambel Water project 

 Developing the Grampians and Pyrenees wine region 

 Grampians Pyrenees Regional employment development project 

 Waste to energy 

 Telecommunications 
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In addition to the delegation to Canberra, CHCV is continuing to advocate to the state government 
ahead to the November 2018 election on these and other key issues. 
 
The growing need for regional cooperation has also lead the group to investigate various models to 
enable Councils to work together to become more efficient and effective in what we do. 
 
One of the models being considered by the group involves the establishment of a legal entity in the 
form of a public company with limited guarantee. The company would be an alliance of municipal 
councils united their its desire to build a strong economic and social future for the region. The 
Company will work collaboratively on issues and advocate for projects of mutual importance to make a 
positive impact on communities in the region.  
 
The principal purposes of the company would be: 

 to maintain a strategic oversight of the priorities and issues of the region,  

 the investigation, planning and facilitation of activities or functions of benefit to Members and 
the region; and  

 to undertake such functions and duties to the benefit of Members and their residents as 
determined by the Mayors and CEOs forum. 

 
Legal advice is currently being sought on the matter and it is proposed that a further report be brought 
to the July Council meeting for specific Council consideration. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 2 - Relationships and Advocacy. We will build and maintain effective relationships 
with community, government and strategic partners, and advocate on key issues. 
 

2.2 - Work with other LGAs to develop strategy for the delivery of Shared Services. 
2.3 - Maintain strategic partnerships, and participate with peak bodies for support and to enhance 
advocacy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Participation with CHCV requires contributions from member councils to meet the cost of the 
secretariat services, legal expenses and for specific project work. The contributions model is currently 
under review, and suggests contributions based on population which, in Pyrenees Shire Council’s case, 
equates to approximately 3% of the costs (in the order of $4110pa) as reported to the May Council 
meeting. 
 
In addition to member contributions, the delegation to Canberra will require Councils to meet their 
own participant costs associated with flights, accommodation, cab fares and meals. These costs have 
been provided for within Council’s 2017/18 budget. 
 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
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Council’s participation with the CHCV group is critical to ensuring the interests of the residents and 
ratepayers of the Pyrenees Shire and the region are well represented to state and federal 
governments.  
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Supports the participation of the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer with the Central 
Highlands Councils Victoria delegation to Canberra from 17-20 June 2018 to advocate on 
key regional priorities as outlined in this report; and 

2. Seeks a further report be brought to the July Council meeting on the matter of the 
establishment of a Central Highlands Councils Victoria legal entity. 
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16. PROPOSED GRANT APPLICATIONS 
Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer 
File No: 56/08/04  
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to inform Council and seek support for the submission of two grant 
applications. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Victoria Government Community Sports Infrastructure Fund (CSIF) provides grants for planning, 
building new, and improving existing facilities for sport and recreation. 
 
The fund seeks to encourage: 
 Increased sport and recreation participation for all Victorians 
 Increased female and junior participation 
 Increased access to sport and recreation opportunities 
 Better planning of sport and recreation facilities 
 Increase integrated school and community sport and active recreation infrastructure 
 Innovative sport and recreation facilities 
 Environmentally sustainable facilities 
 Universally designed facilities. 
 
Funding is available under the following categories: 
 Better Pools – Grants of up to $3 million are available to provide high-quality aquatic leisure 

facilities through new or redeveloped aquatic leisure centres. 
 Major Facilities – Grants of up to $800,000 (where the total project cost is more than $500,000, 

excluding GST) are available to develop or upgrade sub-regional and regional sport and active 
recreation facilities. 

 Small Aquatic Projects – Grants of up to $250,000 are available to improve and upgrade aquatic 
facilities, seasonal pools and develop new water play spaces. 

 Minor Facilities – Grants of up to $250,000 are available for community sport and recreation 
groups, working in partnership with local government, to develop or upgrade community sport and 
recreation facilities. 

 Planning - 
 Recreation Planning or Facility Feasibility - Grants of up to $30,000 for projects focusing on 

recreation planning or facility feasibility in one municipality 
 Regional - Grants of up to $50,000 for regional planning initiatives that demonstrate inter-

municipal needs and financial support from multiple local government authorities. 
 
Council has been successful in the past in sourcing grants through the CSIF including grant for the 
upgrade of the Beaufort and Avoca pools. 

 
Council officers have considered the funding programs and guidelines for each of the programs, and 
following discussion with the relevant funding manager, it is proposed that two grant applications be 
submitted as outlined below. 
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ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The two project proposals described below are proposed to be made to the “Minor Facilities” 
program. 
 
This program requires financial contributions from the applicant of $2:$1 (grant: applicant 
contribution). 
 
Both projects are considered to meet the range of criteria in the program guidelines. 
 
Both projects have been identified in the Pyrenees Shire Recreation Strategy 2017-2022 as a high 
priority. 
 
Project 1- Avoca Play space 
This project involves the creation of an active children’s play space in Avoca. 
 
The facility is proposed to be located in the central median of the Avoca main street and will be a 
prominent activity space in Avoca providing increased opportunity for child play activity, and 
complement existing and proposed assets in Avoca including the shade structure and BBQ in proximity 
to car parking and public toilets. The creation of the space will provide an attractive space for families, 
community events and for visitors. The draft design for the play space seeks to create a unique and 
special experience. 
 
The concept of a play space was identified as a high priority in the community consultation around the 
Recreation Strategy and also as part of the input into the Pyrenees Futures planning project. It is 
however proposed to test the community support with additional consultation during June with the 
view to refining the concept. A copy of the draft design which will be on display in Avoca is also 
attached to this report. 
 
Project 2 – Snake Valley skate Park  
Council has previously considered a report and formalised its support for the Snake Valley Community 
Park. The broad project includes a skate park element, and this is the component that is proposed to 
for funding under the CSIF. The project has high level of community support, and Council has allocated 
$100,000 in its 2018/19 budget towards the community facility. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 1 - Roads and Townships. We will plan, manage, maintain and renew infrastructure 
in a sustainable way that responds to the needs of the community. 
 

1.4 - Maintain, develop and renew the public amenity of our townships in consultation with our 
communities. 
 

3.2 - Physical activity - Ensure our residents have access to facilities and programs that allow them to 
maintain a healthy and active lifestyle. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
16.1 Avoca Play Space concept plan 
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FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The proposed financial contributions required are outlined below: 
 

Project Amount Funding source 

Avoca Play space $208,000 CSIF 

 $30,000 Avoca branch of the Bendigo Community Bank 

 $74,000 Council – sourced from budgeted funds allocated from Recreation 
Strategy implementation 

 $312,000 Total project cost 

 

Project Amount Funding source 

Snake Valley 
shake park 

$250,000 CSIF 

 $125,000 Council – sourced from budgeted funds allocated for SV 
Community Park 

 $375,000 Total project cost 

 
CONCLUSION 
The two projects proposed for funding applications under the CSIF are strong candidate projects for 
funding with close alignment to the funding criteria, and strategic alignment with local strategic 
planning work undertaken. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 
1. Endorses grant applications to be made to the Community Sport Infrastructure Fund for 

the Avoca Play space project, and the Snake Valley skate park. 
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17. COMMITTEE FOR BALLARAT 
Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer 
File No: 22/16/27 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to consider the benefits of its membership with Committee for 
Ballarat 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Committee for Ballarat (CfB) is a membership based organisation established in 2005 with an 
elected board under the leadership of chair, Janet Dore. The Committee has around 100 members 
comprising corporate, small business and community members. 
 

The Committee says the following about itself: 
 

Committee for Ballarat tackles the social, economic and environmental issues of our time and envisions 
innovative ways to address them. We employ intellectual rigour and strategic thinking to solve the 
problems we face now and into the future. We connect and engage with stakeholders, involve and 
inform the community and seek expert advice. And we use our influence and connections to guide and 
progress key projects and programs that are of benefit to our region. 
 

The Committee has a five year Strategic Action Plan with a vision to create a thriving and prosperous 
Ballarat region based around three drivers: 

 Jobs and Connectivity 

 Sustainability and Innovation 

 Community Health 
 
The benefits of membership are described in the three main themes below: 
 

1. Thinking Ahead  
 

The future focus and thought leadership approach of our work is strongly directed at driving, 
developing and safeguarding the future prosperity and sustainability of Ballarat and the region. Our 
projects target areas where we can see major future benefit. Unashamedly, we believe sustainable 
economic prosperity is the driver of the lifestyle we all wish to continue enjoying in this great city and 
region.  
 

2. Influence  
 

Strong involvement in strategic projects and discussions provides members a strong voice and influence 
over development directions. The interests of members are advanced through the direct contact with 
senior local, state and federal representatives and with other leaders of business and industry both at a 
formal and informal level. Our awareness of and access to such contacts is significant. Such 
involvement in planning strategies may identify new business opportunities.  
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3. Leadership  
 

Our membership, comprising most of the leading companies and organisations from across the region, 
including local governments, captures the collective insight vital to planning for a sustainable 
prosperous future. Members can tap into the collective business and strategic insight of fellow 
members at closed forums. As a key investment in the future, we also foster new generations of leaders 
through our programs. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
One of the initiatives of the CfB has been the establishment of the Leadership Ballarat and Western 
Region (LBWR) program which has been successful in providing a highly sought after development 
program for new and emerging leaders in the community.  Pyrenees Shire Council has participated in 
this program annually by sponsoring a staff member and one or two community participants from 
Pyrenees businesses or organisations.  
 

The Committee provides a series of events for its members including Round Table Dinners involving 
high calibre speakers speaking on relevant subjects, as well as member support and networking 
events. Recent events have included speakers such as: 

 The Hon Linda Dessau AM, Governor of Victoria 

 Craig James, Chief Economist, CommSec 

 Craig Lapsley, Victorian Emergency Management Commissioner 
 

Committee Breakfast Briefings have included briefings from key players on major projects such as: 

 The Western Distributor Project 

 Ballarat Rail line upgrade 

 The energy market 

 West Gate tunnel 

 Renewable energy 
 

Council’s membership enables a representative such as the Mayor, CEO Councillor or senior officer to 
attend these events. 
 

The CfB is considered a strategic partner with capacity to influence and the backing of the business 
community. The Committee seeks input from its membership during its strategic planning process and 
has identified a range of strategic projects as part of its advocacy and influence program including: 

 Decentralising government bringing services and jobs to the region 

 Transport connections including improved Ballarat – Melbourne Rail services 

 Attracting and clustering new and innovative industry 

 Renewable energy 

 Ballarat CBD revitalisation 
 

Pyrenees Shire Council has been a corporate member of the CfB for several years, and obtained 
benefits from the membership as outlined above. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 2 - Relationships and Advocacy. We will build and maintain effective relationships 
with community, government and strategic partners, and advocate on key issues. 
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2.3 - Maintain strategic partnerships, and participate with peak bodies for support and to enhance 
advocacy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Council’s budget has provided $3,740 for membership of Committee for Ballarat. 
 
CONCLUSION 
There are a range of benefits to being a member of the Committee for Ballarat as outlined in this 
report, and while it has a genuine regional focus. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Seeks to maximise the benefits of membership with the Committee for Ballarat and to 
utilise the strength of the partnership in its advocacy to government on matters that are 
of mutual benefit to Ballarat and the wider region. 
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18. COUNCIL REPRESENTATION ON COMMITTEES 
Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
File No: 16/02/02 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to consider its representation on a number of committees left 
vacant following the sudden passing of Cr Michael O’Connor. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Minister for Local Government has directed the Victorian Electoral Commission to conduct a by-
election in the Pyrenees Shire on 18 August 2018 to fill the vacancy created by the sudden passing of 
Cr Michael O’Connor.  Council may consider appointing representatives to committees or groups listed 
below where Cr O’Connor was the previously appointed representative. 

 

Group / Committee Existing, other Councillor or Officer 
representative 

Victorian Local Government Association (VLGA) Nil 

Grampians Central West Waste and Resource 
Recovery Group 

Director Assets & Development Services 

Western Highway Action Committee (WHAC) Director Assets & Development Services 

Beaufort Bypass – PEG Public Engagement Group Director Assets & Development Services 

Business for Beaufort CEO 

Beaufort Secondary College Committee Nil 

Langi Kal Kal Community Advisory Group CEO  
Cr Clark 

Audit Committee Director Corporate & Community Services 
Cr Vance 

Emergency Management Planning Committee Director Corporate & Community Services 
Manager Community Wellbeing 

Municipal Fire Management Planning Committee Director Corporate & Community Services 
Manager Community Wellbeing  

Beaufort Community Bank Complex (S86 Special 
Committee) 

 
 

 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Council may choose to appoint a representative or not depending on the need and urgency. 
Alternatively Council may choose to not appoint a representative, and consider the matter further at a 
later date  
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 2 - Relationships and Advocacy. We will build and maintain effective relationships 
with community, government and strategic partners, and advocate on key issues. 
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2.3 - Maintain strategic partnerships, and participate with peak bodies for support and to enhance 
advocacy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Nil 
 
CONCLUSION 
Council may wish to consider appointing representatives to the groups and committees as listed in the 
recommendation below. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
1. appoints the following Councillors as representatives to the following groups and committees: 
 

Group / Committee Existing other Councillor or 
Officer representative 

Proposed Councillor 
representative 

Victorian Local Government Association 
(VLGA) 

nil  

Grampians Central West Waste and 
Resource Recovery Group 

Director Assets & 
Development Services 

 

Western Highway Action Committee 
(WHAC) 

Director Assets & 
Development Services 

 

Beaufort Bypass – PEG Public 
Engagement Group 

Director Assets & 
Development Services 

 

Business for Beaufort CEO  

Beaufort Secondary College Committee nil  

Langi Kal Kal Community Advisory 
Group 

CEO  
Cr Clark 

 

Audit Committee Director Corporate & 
Community Services 
Cr Vance 

 

Emergency Management Planning 
Committee 

Director Corporate & 
Community Services 
Manager Community 
Wellbeing 

 

Municipal Fire Management Planning 
Committee 

Director Corporate & 
Community Services 
Manager Community 
Wellbeing  

 

Beaufort Community Bank Complex 
(S86 Special Committee) 

  

 
 



 

12 JUNE 2018 – PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL – ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL 

AGENDA – ITEMS FOR DECISION 

60 

19. FORMER BEAUFORT PRIMARY SCHOOL SITE PROPOSAL 
Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer  
File No: 515021100 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide opportunity for Council to consider a report from the PS60 
Community group on the former Beaufort Primary School site. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Representatives from the newly formed Community PS60 group recently met with Council and 
presented a report for Council’s consideration titled: 

HERITAGE HILL 
REVITALISATION ACTION PLAN FOR OLD PS6O 

A COMMUNITY HUB incorporating an ARTS AND CULTURAL CREATIVE CENTRE 
 
The document sets out a vision for the site of the former Beaufort Primary School. 
 

The report seeks Council support to assist the group which has significant community support to 
realise the vision for the site to create an active community space focussed on arts and culture. In 
summary, the report states: 
 

“We are deeply committed to a community future for the school. Our vision is for Old PS6O to become a 
Community Hub and Arts and Cultural Centre, within a landscaped recreation reserve, incorporating the 
Beaufort Walkability trail along the Garibaldi Creek that runs through the site. 
 

Old Beaufort PS60 Committee have been working together, in a sustained, consistent manner since 
December 2014. Our commitment to bringing this proposal to fruition has never been stronger. 
 

We look forward to working with council and very much hope that you support our proposal.” 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The site is currently owned by the Department of Education and Training (DET). The site is 2.24 
hectares in size and currently contains a number of classroom buildings and recreational space. It is 
bordered by Leichardt Street, Neill Street (Western Highway) and Hill Street.  
 

It is important to acknowledge that the site is under the control of the state government, and the 
government has deemed the site surplus to requirements.  Council was offered a “First Right of 
Refusal” to express interest in the site for a community purpose. A submission was made to the 
process acknowledging the extent of Council’s interest, but not seeking to be the owner of the site. 
 

The state process to prepare the site for disposal has seen the Department of Treasury and Finance 
(DTF) commence the preparation of a survey plan with the view to consolidation of crown and 
freehold titles, and realigning boundaries to transfer portion of the land for “road” purposes where a 
physical road already exists.  The intent of the plan is also to contain provision for an easement for 
drainage and access in the vicinity of the underground drainage assets. Council officers have been in 
discussions with DTF on Council’s interest in the road, drainage and pedestrian access aspects of the 
plan.   
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The Department of Environment Land Water and Planning (DELWP) has also commenced a process to 
rezone the land, and the Government Land Standing Advisory Committee has given public notice and 
invited submissions on the matter. Council resolved at the April Council Meeting to support a 
submission to be made to the rezone process. A number of submissions were made, and public 
hearings are scheduled to be heard on 28 June 2018 in Beaufort. 
 

The Advisory Committee directed that a Heritage Assessment be prepared, and this Assessment which 
has been completed identified a number of buildings on the site to have local heritage significance. A 
copy of the Heritage Assessment is available on the DELWP website. 
 

Council has been advised that the land is also the subject of a Native Title claim. 
 

There are a number of complexities that will need to be considered if the vision of the Community 
PS60 group is to be realised, and a range of matters requiring careful consideration before Council 
determines its position.  
 

Among the matters for Council to consider include: 

 The need for a community centre 

 The extent of the benefits of the centre 

 The extent of the site required for the community purpose 

 The business case for the community activity to ensure its long term sustainability 

 The condition of the assets 

 The funding necessary to restore the building assets to a suitable condition for use 

 The long term renewal demand of the building assets 

 The extent of community activities to be accommodated on the site  

 The ownership and management options  

 Other potential uses of any portion of the land not required for community purposes 

 The planning considerations and the relationship with adjoining land uses 

 Whether there is a need to prepare a development plan for the site. 
 

It is not suggested that Council make any firm commitment about the site until the above issues are 
appropriately explored, and in particular it is suggested that Council await the outcome from the 
Government Land Standing Advisory Committee on the current rezoning to inform future actions. 
 

It is however suggested that Council continue to work with the Community PS60 group to further 
explore some of the issues and opportunities, and consider a further report on the matter once 
sufficient progress has been made on the above. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 3 - Community Connection and Wellbeing. We will engage with communities to 
provide responsive, efficient services that enhance the quality of life of residents and promote 
connected, active and resilient communities. 
 

3.3 - Community Development - Supporting communities to build connections, capacity and resilience. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
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FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
There are significant financial implications for Council ongoing unless careful consideration is given to 
the issues outlined in this report. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The Community PS60 group has prepared a report which outlines a vision for the former Beaufort 
Primary School site as a Community arts and culture centre. 
It is suggested that, once the Government Land Standing Advisory Committee has made a 
determination on the rezoning for the land, Council officers engage with the group, and once sufficient 
progress is made in exploring the issues outlined in this report, that a further report be brought to 
Council for consideration. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Once the Government Land Standing Advisory Committee has made a determination on 
the matter of rezoning of the site, authorises the CEO to engage with the Community PS60 
group to explore issues and opportunities associated with the group’s proposed vision for 
the former Beaufort Primary school site. 

2. Considers a further report on the matter at a future Council meeting once sufficient 
progress has been made in understanding the range of issues outlined in this report to 
assist Council to make a decision about its involvement if any with the future activity on 
the site. 
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20. BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
File No: 129/04/001 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 

 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to endorse a service review program. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Council has included in its Council Plan an initiative to develop an annual service review plan. 
 

The purpose of reviewing services is to consider: 

 whether the services being delivered are appropriate 

 whether the services are contributing to Council’s identified core business 

 whether the services are satisfactorily meeting the community needs and  

 whether the services are being delivered in an efficient and effective manner 
 

There are a broad range of services that Council delivers, and these services vary widely. It is expected 
therefore that service reviews will be different depending on the particular service.  
 

Most reviews however will seek to involve the following elements: 

 Gathering information (past reviews, service plan, budget, relevant reports etc..) 

 Stakeholder engagement 

 Service analysis 

 Key Performance Indicators 

 Benchmarking 

 Leadership, competencies and culture 

 Continuous Improvement and Innovation 

 Opportunities for Collaboration 
 

Service Reviews may be conducted by staff including a director or manager, or other staff not directly 
responsible for the particular service delivery, or by an external person with relevant expertise.  
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Council’s Business Improvement Program comprises a range of initiatives that seek to develop the 
organisation as a high performing organisation. These initiatives include: 

 Internal audits undertaken to review specific matters identified by Council’s audit committee (at 
least two per annum) 

 External audits on Council activities undertaken by other authorities or government agencies  

 Process improvements as determined by the Senior Leadership Team or by a responsible officer 

 Cultural development activities  

 Staff training and development program  

 Policy review program 

 Risk assessment and mitigation program 

 Occupational health and safety system development program 

 Shared service initiatives 

 Service reviews 
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The following service reviews have been identified for 2017/18: 

 Building Services reviewed in conjunction with the development of a shared service model with 
Ararat and Northern Grampians Councils (completed) 

 Waste Service charge review – involving an audit using Councils internal auditor to assess 
compliance with Council’s obligations under the Local Government Act. (commenced) 

 
The following service reviews are proposed for 2018/19: 

 Customer Action Request System (CARS) – a review of the process used to receive process, 
monitor and report on service requests made by members of the community. 

 Procurement – a review of the processes used to procure goods and services and of Council’s 
Procurement policy 

 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 4 - Financially Sustainable, High-performing Organisation. Our organisation will 
respond to community needs, attend to our core business, and strive for excellence in service delivery 
in an ethical and financially responsible manner. 
 
4.2 - Promote learning and growth that will facilitate change, continuous improvement, innovation and 
efficiency. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
There is a cost to Council where an external reviewer is involved. These costs are met within the 
budgets provided for the relevant services, or from provisions made for internal auditing of services. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The proposed service reviews for 2018/2019 are reviews of the Customer Action Request System, and 
Procurement. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council: 
 

1. Notes the internal review program for 2018/19 outlined in this report. 
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21. TIMBER TOWNS 
Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer 
File No: 22/16/22 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to inform Council about the activity of Timber Towns and to seek 
direction in respect of future membership. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Council considered a report at the May Council meeting about memberships and subscriptions, and 
resolved to seek a further report to be prepared on the matter of Timber Towns for consideration.  
 

It is understood that Timber Towns Victoria (TTV) was initially formed around the 1980s and comprises 
a group of Victorian Councils which have an interest in the timber industry as a result of that activity 
occurring in their shire. The group was formed to provide support and guidance to Councils on a range 
of issues including: 

 Maintaining and developing employment opportunities in the timber and associated industries 

 Implementation of the Victorian planning provisions as they relate to plantation development 
and harvesting 

 The Forestry Code of practice, its application and monitoring compliance with the code 

 Logging and the impact of harvesting on the local road network 

 Seeking funding for road upgrade and maintenance for timber roads. 
 

Member Councils have previously paid membership fees which have offset the cost of secretariat 
services and project work. 
 

The Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) has for many years until recently provided the secretariat 
services and meetings have been held at the MAV offices. 
 

Membership with the state base organisation has entitled members to membership with the National 
body known as National Timber Councils Association, and the most recent activity of the NTCA was the 
National conference held in April 2018. 
 

One of the major projects of the group has been the development of the Timber Industry Roads 
Evaluation Study (TIRES), a study which resulted in a detailed report prioritising local road upgrade 
projects necessary to service the timber industry across the state. This report has for many years been 
the tool used by local government to advocate for funding from the state and commonwealth 
governments to upgrade timber haulage routes. Significant funding was allocated across the state on 
the basis of theses road project priorities including to the Pyrenees Shire Council for the Raglan 
Elmhurst Road. Funding was allocated through Vic Roads to Councils under the Rural Local Timber 
Roads Program. 
 

In the 1990s the rapid expansion of hardwood plantations across south and western Victoria including 
into the Pyrenees Shire had the potential to change the landscape and create social and economic 
impacts, and the potential for impacts on the local road network was far reaching. Within the last ten 
years there has been a decline in the hardwood plantation industry as a result of changing markets and 
failed companies and investments. Many of the hardwood / blue gum plantations that were planted in 
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the Pyrenees shire in the 1990s have since been bought back by farmers and returned to grazing and 
cropping. The anticipated impacts have therefore been reduced as a result. 
 

In February 2016, Council considered a report on the matter and resolved to take up a three year 
membership option with TTV at a cost of $2,500 per annum compared with the year by year amount of 
$3,000 per annum. This decision was made due to the number timber coops in the shire, as well as an 
active timber mill, a timber truss manufacturing plant and a number of firewood suppliers. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Since Council last considered this matter, there has been very little activity by TTV, and it is suggested 
that Council consider not continuing its membership beyond the current three year commitment for 
the following reasons: 
 

 There has been little activity from TTV in the last two years, and the value for membership is 
reduced. 

 The need for membership by Pyrenees has reduced as a result of the number of hardwood 
plantations in our shire being returned to grazing and cropping. 

 The initial work by TTV to develop tools to use for auditing and compliance with the Forestry 
Code of Practice has been completed. 

 The TIRES report was refreshed in recent years; however the priority road projects in the 
Pyrenees are low on the long list of priority road projects under this study due to the significant 
investment needed for timber haulage roads in other parts of the state.   

 The introduction of rate capping has forced Council to review and reduce its operating 
expenses where the benefits cannot be adequately demonstrated. 

 

A further issue for consideration relates to road funding. The state Local Roads to Market program 
which is a funding source for Council currently excludes timber freight roads from consideration for 
funding due to the industry specific fund that was established resulting from TIRES for that purpose. 
However Council’s current priority Local Roads to Market priority projects do not have timber freight 
as a primary reason for the priority. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
 

Strategic Objective 1 - Roads and Townships. We will plan, manage, maintain and renew infrastructure 
in a sustainable way that responds to the needs of the community. 
 

2.3 - Maintain strategic partnerships, and participate with peak bodies for support and to enhance 
advocacy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The cost of membership is currently $2,500 (on the basis of a three year commitment entered into in 
2016). 
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CONCLUSION 
Having considered the relative benefits of membership with Timber Towns Victoria, and the inactivity 
over recent years, the following recommendation is made. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. not continue its membership with Timber Towns Victoria beyond its current three year 
commitment. 
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COUNCILLOR REPORTS AND GENERAL BUSINESS 

 



12 JUNE 2018 – PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL – ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL 

 AGENDA – CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

 

69 

CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 
 

22. CLOSURE OF MEETING TO MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
That pursuant to the provisions of Section 89(2) of the Local Government Act 1989, the meeting be closed to the 
public in order to consider personnel and contractual matters that may prejudice the Council. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the meeting be closed to members of the public under Section 89(2) of the Local Government 
Act 1989, to consider reports on the:- 
 

23.    Greenhill Creek Road Tender;  and 
24.    Approval of Continuation of Debt Management 
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23. REOPENING OF MEETING TO MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

That Council, having considered the confidential item, re-opens the meeting to members of the 
public. 

 
 

CLOSE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting closed at       

 
Minutes of the meeting confirmed  ......  ................................................................. ……….   

 
      2018   Mayor 
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1. INTRODUCTION 
 


Council is required under section 126 of the Local Government Act (1989) to 
prepare a Strategic Resource Plan (SRP) covering both financial and non-financial 
resources, and including key financial indicators for at least four years to support the 
Council Plan.  Council enhances this process by extending the financial for an 
additional 6 years to formulate a 10 year financial plan. 
 


Plan development         
            


The key objective, which underlies the development of the Plan, is financial 
sustainability in the medium to long term, whilst still achieving Council’s strategic 
objectives as specified in the Council Plan. The key financial objectives, which 
underpin the Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP), are: 


 


 Maintain existing service levels;       


 Control and reduce future operating deficits via grant funding for asset 
renewal; 


 Maintain a capital expenditure program that will sustain the infrastructure 
asset base; and 


 Achieve a balanced budget on a cash basis.     
            
In preparing the SRP, Council has also been mindful of the need to comply with the 
following Principles of Sound Financial Management as contained in the Act:  


 Prudently manage financial risks relating to debt, assets and liabilities;   


 Provide reasonable stability in the level of rate burden;    


 Consider the financial effects of Council decisions on future generations; 
and  


 Provide full, accurate and timely disclosure of financial information.   
            


The Plan is updated twice a year through a rigorous process of consultation with 
Council service providers followed by a detailed sensitivity analysis to achieve the 
key financial objectives. The plan was last adopted by Council on the 13th June 
2017. 
 
Council has developed a ten year financial plan with the purpose of ensuring 
ongoing operations, asset replacement/renewal and prudent financial management 
in the long term.  The development of the LTFP incorporating the SRP has been 
done in conjunction with the development of the 2018/19 budget and the new 
Council Plan 2017 to 2021. The LTFP considers the future financial needs of 
Council, opportunities for raising revenue as well as meeting infrastructure 
replacement needs and maintaining rates at reasonable levels. 
 
The introduction of the Fair Go Rates System (FGRS) creates a level of uncertainty 
regarding rate revenue.  The rate cap is set each year by the Minister for Local 
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Government based on the Department of Treasury & Finance’s forecast for the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI).  Councils are able to apply for higher rate caps for up 
to four years.  Estimates for rate caps have been built into the LTFP.  Applications 
for higher rate caps other than current and past applications have not been built into 
the LTFP.  The decision to apply for a higher rate cap is a Council decision that will 
be considered when required.  Council was successful in its application to the 
Essential Services Commission for a higher rate cap of 3.50% in 2017/18 and 
2018/19.  
 
This is a ‘big picture’ or macro financial strategy that will be reviewed twice a year to 
address changes in economic circumstances, to ensure alignment with the Council 
Plan, and that economic parameters remain current.  The LTFP begins with the 
current financial year forecast and the proposed Budget as the base and makes 
forecasts about the impact that a number of economic variables will have on it, in 
addition to modelling the long term financial effect of Council decisions. 
 
The later years of the LTFP are less exact due to the forecast nature of the data; 
nonetheless it provides Council with the probable long term financial impact of its 
decisions, policies, and strategies.  The Plan allows Council to identify possible 
barriers to long term sustainability and model rational solutions for ratepayers. 
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2. KEY FEATURES & PARAMETERS 
  


 Focus on maintaining service delivery for core services. 
 


 Rate Increases: 
 


 Higher rate cap 2017/18 and 2018/19 – 3.50% approved by the ESC 
 


  2019/20 to 2021/22 – 2.25% estimate excluding higher rate cap applications 
 


 2022/23 to 2027/28 – 2.50% estimate excluding higher rate cap applications 
 


 Prudent debt management in line with Council’s Treasury Management Policy. 
 


 Maintenance of a positive cash flow. 
 


 Maximising capital expenditure in line with the Council Plan. 
 


 Focus on infrastructure renewal and increased funding for capital projects in 
accordance with the road infrastructure condition assessment undertaken by 
Moloney Asset Management Systems and the building condition survey 
undertaken by John Dixon & Associates.  


 


 Conservative estimates for increases in grants and user fees and charges. 
 


 Wage and salary increases based on the Enterprise Bargaining Agreement 
(EBA) and actual banding progressions. 


 


 Consumer Price Index (CPI) increases of between 1.50% and 2.50% per annum 
for materials, services and other costs for the life of the 10 year LTFP. 


 


 Income from existing wind farm developments based on confirmed charges in 
lieu of rates. 


 


 Federal Assistance Grants delivered via the Victorian Grants Commission 
indexed annually by 2.50% to 3.00%. 


 


 Income from the Stockyard Hill wind farm has been factored into the plan from 
2020/2021.  


 


  Income from the Crowlands wind farm has been factored into the plan from 
2019/2020.  
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3. Financial Reports 


 
The SRP is presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  
This includes four separate statements serving different purposes. 
 
3.1 Income Statement 
 
The Income Statement is intended to show the result of operations and includes 
non-cash items such as depreciation.   
 
Rate Revenue 
 
Rate revenue is determined by the Minister for Local Government in accordance 
with the FGRS.  Past and current higher rate cap applications have been built in.  
Future higher rate cap applications have not been built in and will be based on a 
decision of Council.  
 
Loans 
 
Council currently has no debt and future debt will be based on the Treasury 
Management Policy if required.  The current LTFP has no new debt in it. 


 
Fees and Charges 
 
Some of the services that Council provides are provided for on a “user pays” 
principle. This means that Council partially funds these services with fees from the 
users.  These services include management of landfill sites, some building and 
planning processes, aged care, swimming pools and recreation reserves. 
 
In other areas, primarily building, planning and environmental health the fees are 
statutory and Council does not have the authority to alter them.   
 
Council has allowed 2.5%, being estimated average CPI, as an overall increase to 
fees and charges over the life of the plan. 
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Grants 
 
The Victoria Grants Commission distributes the State allocation of the Financial 
Assistance Grants to all councils based on a complex formula using a number of 
variables.  The LTFP allows for increases of between 2.50% and 3.00% for the 
remainder of the LTFP. 
 
Wages and Salaries 
 
Wages and salaries make up approximately 34% of operating expenditure and are 
largely determined by the Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA).  There are small 
increments due to positional restructures and banding increments.  
 
The current EBA commenced in October 2016.  It provided for increases of 1.75% 
per annum. The LTFP allows annual salary increases of 2.5% and factors in staff 
movements and band increases.  The next EA is scheduled to be negotiated in 
2019. 
 
Operating Expenditure 
 
Other major challenges facing Council include – 


 Increasing costs associated with waste management;   


 ongoing pressure to meet compliance requirements imposed by the state 
government; 


 major reform of aged care service delivery. 
 


 


 
The Income Statement is listed in Appendix A in this document. 
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3.2 Balance Sheet 
 
The Balance Sheet shows the net worth of Council.  For the most part, Council 
intends to generate its revenues in cash and pay all of its expenses in the same 
year.  Therefore receivables, other current assets and creditors will be forecast to be 
the same with increases driven by increased activity and inflation.  Although 
receivables and creditors do fluctuate from year to year, they are immaterial and do 
not substantially impact the strategy. 
 


 
The Balance Sheet is listed in Appendix A in this document. 
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3.3 Cash Flow Statement 
 
The Cash Flow Statement demonstrates the effect of operations on Council’s cash 
levels.  It excludes non-cash items such as depreciation and includes non-operating 
items such as changes in debt and capital works.  
 
Council’s projected liquidity ratio is a measure of Council’s ability to meet obligations 
when they are due.  Council aims to maintain a liquidity ratio of 100% or more.     
 


 
The Cash Flow Statement is listed in Appendix A in this document. 
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3.4 Capital Works Statement 
 
The Capital Works Statement details Council’s proposed capital works expenditure 
by asset class over the next ten years. The 2018/19 proposed capital expenditure is 
from Council’s 2018/19 proposed budget document. 
  
Council’s policy is to maximise capital works, therefore increasing the wealth of the 
Shire.  The first consideration that Council makes is maintaining as a minimum the 
level of rate revenue available for capital works.    
 
The second consideration is whether the capital works are for new, upgrade or 
renewal.   Where the capital works are for new assets, this generates another asset 
for Council to maintain, and may generate further annual operating costs and 
increases depreciation.  New assets should only be acquired when they are in line 
with the Council Plan. 
 
Council also has access to grants for the creation of new assets.  Although this 
eases the burden on rate revenue for the initial construction/purchase, the new 
asset may still require ongoing operating costs, and is still considered in conjunction 
with the Council Plan. 
 
The Commonwealth Government has provided Roads to Recovery funding since 
2001 and while that funding is not guaranteed, it is reasonable to assume that it will 
continue in the longer term. Council’s capital works program will depend significantly 
on attracting external funding for major projects. Failure to attract external funds will 
also result in an increase in the operating deficit. 
 
Council has identified the gap between requirements for asset renewal and actual 
expenditure and has also engaged external consultants to review this process. A 
condition and inventory survey of all Council buildings was completed in 2011 using 
a specialist consultant. The amounts included in the LTFP for roads, bridges and 
buildings are explained below: 
 
Roads 
 
The information supplied for roads infrastructure renewal expenditure is derived 
from the Moloney Asset Management Systems (MAMS) condition assessment.  The 
model takes into account: 


1. the expected life of the road type,  
2. the intervention level, (or what condition the road has to deteriorate to before 


renewal is required),  
3. What the current spending levels are,   
4. The current pavement and sealed surfaces condition of the roads, and;  
5. Determines appropriate spending levels to maintain the network at the 


existing condition. 
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Buildings 
 
The data used is from the Building Condition and Inventory Inspection survey 
undertaken by John Dixon & Associates.  The information takes into account 
existing conditions, existing maintenance requirements, and current spending levels.  
The Capital requirements are driven by the structural integrity of the building, and a 
service level assessment of required functionality and purpose of the buildings.  The 
figures are purely indicative and there needs to be objective and focused discussion 
on the rational use and functionality of some of the buildings currently on the 
register.   
 
Bridges & Major Culverts 
 
Required major works have been identified through inspections of the network which 
were undertaken in late November 2015.  Latest modeling of the bridges through the 
MAMS model has split the bridge category into a bridges section and a major 
culverts section.  
 
Capacity to Fund Capital Works 
 
Council’s capacity to fund capital works to the required level will be dependent on 
higher rate cap applications, continuance of Roads to Recovery funding and the 
allocation of the indexation of the fuel excise, replacement of the Country Roads and 
Bridges program, replacement of the Local Government Infrastructure fund and 
success of specific funding applications.  
 
 


 
The Capital Works Statement is listed in Appendix A in this document. 
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4. RATING STRATEGY & FAIR GO RATES SYSTEM 


 
This section of the LTFP considers the Council’s rating strategy, and the impacts of 
the Fair Go Rates System (FGRS). 
 
Strategy development 
 
In developing the LTFP, rates and charges were identified as an important source of 
revenue, accounting for 53% of the total revenue received by Council annually.  
Planning for future rate increases and the impact of the FGRS has therefore been 
an important component of the LTFP process.   
 
The Victorian Government established the Fair Go Rates System (FGRS) in 
December 2015. This legislative framework limits the annual rate of increase in 
Victorian local government general rates and municipal charges. 
 
The Victorian Government’s FGRS limits the maximum amount by which Victorian 
councils can increase rates in a year without seeking additional approval. Each year 
the Minister for Local Government (the Minister) sets the average rate cap — that is, 
the maximum increase in councils’ average rates and charges for the forthcoming 
financial year. The Minister can set a cap that applies to all councils, a group of 
councils or a single council. 
 
The rate cap is based on the forecast change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
over the financial year to which the rate cap relates, plus or minus any adjustment 
(for factors such as wage pressures or efficiency dividends). 
 
The rate cap applies only to general rates and municipal charges, not to other 
revenue such as service rates and service charges (waste collection), special rates 
and charges, and revenue in lieu of rates (Wind Farms). Under the legislation, the 
Minister has powers to extend the application of the rate cap to other rates or 
charges in the future. 
 
If the average rate cap is insufficient to meet a council’s needs, the council can 
apply to the Essential Services Commission (the Commission) for a higher cap.  
From 2017-18 onwards, councils can seek a higher cap for up to four years. 
 
Council has been successful in applying for higher rate caps: 
2016/17 – 3.83% (1.33% above the 2.50% cap) 
2017/18 – 3.50% (1.50% above the 2.00% cap) 
2018/19 – 3.50% (1.25% the 2.25% cap) 
Future higher rate caps will be determined on a year by year basis. 
 
However, it has also been necessary to balance the importance of rate revenue as a 
funding source with community sensitivity to increases and ability to pay. 
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To ensure that deliberations about future rate increases have been made on an 
informed basis, comparisons were made of historical rate increases by Council.  The 
following table shows a comparison of the last fifteen years. 
 


  


 Pyrenees 


Year Shire 


 Council 


2004/2005 6.50% 


2005/2006 6.75% 


2006/2007 7.50% 


2007/2008 7.00% 


2008/2009 6.50% 


2009/2010 6.00% 


2010/2011 6.50% 


2011/2012 5.25% 


2012/2013 5.25% 


2013/2014 5.25% 


2014/2015 5.25% 


2015/2016 5.25% 


2016/2017 (Higher Rate Cap) 3.83% 


2017/2018 (Higher Rate Cap) 3.50% 


2018/19 (Higher Rate Cap) 3.50% 


Average increase over 15 years 5.59% 


 
 
The additional revenue generated from the higher rate caps will be allocated solely 
to road infrastructure renewal with an emphasis on gravel road renewal in 
accordance with the Gravel Road Strategy.  The additional income generated will be 
quarantined indefinitely for road infrastructure renewal.  
 
The 2018/2019 to 2027/2028 underlying operating position will be impacted by 
wages, materials and services cost growth.  It will therefore be necessary to achieve 
future revenue growth whilst containing costs, in order to maintain a balanced cash 
budget.   
 
The contribution from operations toward capital investment, comprised of capital 
grants and rates has to be maintained in order to continue service provision and 
capital renewal programs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


14 
 


Forecasted future rate rises are as follows: 
 


 With 


Year Higher 


 Rate Cap 


2018/2019 3.50% 


2019/2020 2.25% 


2020/2021 2.25% 


2021/2022 2.25% 


2022/2023 2.50% 


2023/2024 2.50% 


2024/2025 2.50% 


2025/2026 2.50% 


2026/2027 2.50% 


2027/2028 2.50% 


 
Rating structure 
 
Council has established a rating structure which is comprised of two key elements. 
These are: 


 Property values; 


 User pays component to reflect usage of services provided by Council. 
 
Striking a proper balance between these elements provides equity in the distribution 
of the rate burden across residents. 
 
Council makes a further distinction within the property value component of rates 
based on the purpose for which the property is used, that is, whether the property is 
used for residential, farming or commercial purposes. This distinction is based on 
the concept of equity whereby property classes should pay fair and equitable 
contributions to the overall rates burden, taking into account the benefits derived 
from the local community. 
 
Council applies the Capital Improved Value (CIV) basis for rates calculations on the 
grounds that it provides the most equitable distribution of rates across the 
municipality. There are currently no plans to change that basis, but Council does 
review its rating structure every year. 
 
The existing rating structure comprises six differential rates:  


1. Vacant Land < 2Ha, 
2. Vacant Land Other than Farms 
3. Residential  
4. Commercial & Industrial 
5. Farms (all types) 
6. Cultural & Recreational Land 


 







 


15 
 


Differential rates are structured in accordance with the requirements of Section 161 
‘Differential Rates’ of the Act. Under the Cultural and Recreational Lands Act 1963, 
provision is made for a Council to grant a rating concession to any “recreational 
lands” which meet the test of being “rateable land” under the Act.  The farm rate is 
set at 80% of the residential rate, the rate concession for recreational land, and 
nature trust covenants is set at 50% of the residential rate.   
 
Council has re-affirmed its intention to maintain promotion of residential growth in 
the shire and has set the rates for vacant land < 2Ha at 4 times the farm rate, and 
vacant land other than farms at 3 times the farm rate to encourage development.   
 
Council also has a kerbside collection charge, green waste and a recycling charge 
as allowed under the Act.  


 


5. BORROWINGS 


         


In developing the LTFP, strategies have also been developed for borrowings. 
 
In 2016 Council adopted the Treasury Management Policy which guides the use of 
borrowings. 
 
Council is currently debt free and has no plans to borrow funds in the 10 year 
financial plan.  
       
  Pp  
Paid  


 New 
Borrowings 


Balance           
30 June 


Year $’000 $’000 


2017/18 0 0 


2018/19 0 0 


2019/20 0 0 


2020/21 0 0 


2021/22 0 0 


2022/23 0 0 


2023/24 0 0 


2024/25 0 0 


2025/26 0 0 


2026/27 0 0 


4      
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6. SERVICE DELIVERY 


   
The key objectives included in Council’s Strategic Resource Plan which directly impact the 
future service delivery strategy are to maintain existing service levels and to maintain 
balanced cash operating budgets.  With these key objectives as a basis, a number of 
internal and external influences have been identified through discussions with 
management which will have a significant impact on the scope and level of services to be 
provided over the next four years.  
  
As well as the general influences, there are also a number of specific influences which 
relate directly to service areas or activities.  The most significant changes in these areas 
are summarised below.  
        
Waste Management      
The shire no longer operates land fill sites for waste disposal purposes. All garbage 
collection from transfer stations is transferred to a landfill site in another municipality. The 
entire operation is based on cost recovery using external contractors for service delivery. 
 
Kerbside Collection      
The contract for collection of recyclable waste was tendered in 2013.  The cost of this 
service increased by a little more than CPI but the increase was in line with market rates. 
Future increases have been set to maintain full cost recovery for the service. 
 
Home and Community Care Services/Commonwealth Home Support Program     
Government funding for Home and Community Care Services has been maintained in real 
terms over the period of the plan.  In light of the current uncertainty surrounding the 
transition of HACC funding and management to the Federal Government, funding has 
been maintained at current levels pending further clarification around the new funding 
model.   
 
Summary         
Service levels have been maintained throughout the 10 year period. Operating deficits 
fluctuate with grant funding.  Some operating deficits in the early years of the plan maybe 
improved upon if additional government grant funding for capital works is received.  


 
7. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 


 


Employee costs include all labour related expenditure such as wages and salaries and on-
costs such as allowances, leave entitlements, employer superannuation, rostered days off, 
etc. Employee numbers are forecast to remain in line with 2018/19 levels.  
 
 A summary of human resources expenditure categorised according to the organisational 
structure of Council is included below: 
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Statement of Human Resources      


For the four years ending 30 June 2022      


       


    Forecast Budget Strategic Resource Plan 


    Actual Projections 


    2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 


    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 


Staff expenditure 
  


  
   


Employee costs - operating 
 


6,713 7,163 7,339 7,522 7,710 


Employee costs - capital 
 


126 130 134 138 142 


Total staff expenditure  
 


6,839 7,293 7,473 7,660 7,852 


   
  


   


  
FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE 


Staff numbers 
  


  
   


Employees 
 


77.6 79.7 79.7 79.7 79.7 


Total staff numbers 
 


77.6 79.7 79.7 79.7 79.7 


       
A summary of human resources expenditure categorised according to the organisational structure of Council is 
included below: 


        Comprises     


    Budget Permanent     


Department   2018/19 Full Time Part Time Casual Temporary 


    $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 


Assets and Development 
 


1,211 1,112 99 0 0 


Community Wellbeing 
 


1,238 216 1,015 7 0 


Corporate Services 
 


1,476 1,167 309 0 0 


Culture and Leisure 
 


534 194 291 49 0 


Environment and Amenity 
 


2,098 1,833 239 26 0 


Strategy and Governance 
 


606 552 54 0 0 


Total staff    7,163 5,074 2,007 82 0 


Capitalised employee costs * 
 


130 
    


Total expenditure   7,293 
    


* These employee costs are attributable to the Environment and Amenity department 


    
 


  A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the above expenditure is 
included below: 


               Comprises     


    Budget Permanent     


Department   2018/19 Full Time Part Time Casual Temporary 


Assets and Development 
 


11.5 10.5 1.0 0.0 0.0 


Community Wellbeing 
 


14.9 2.0 12.9 0.0 0.0 


Corporate Services 
 


14.6 10.5 4.1 0.0 0.0 


Culture and Leisure 
 


6.0 2.0 3.4 0.6 0.0 


Environment and Amenity 
 


26.4 23.3 2.6 0.5 0.0 


Strategy and Governance 
 


4.6 4.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 


Total staff    78.0 52.3 24.6 1.1 0.0 


Capitalised employee costs 
 


1.7 
    


Total staff   79.7 
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 8. CONCLUSION 


 


 A ten year LTFP enables Council to examine in some detail its longer term 
financial viability and look at the various factors that impact on it. 


 


 It enables Council and management to model different scenarios around rating, 
debt and the organisational structure and examine those outcomes. 


 


 The ten year LTFP will be the starting point for future draft budgets. The Plan is 
a big picture look at Council’s long term financial circumstance. The annual 
rate cap will be determined by the Minister and future higher rate cap 
applications will be determined by Council on a needs basis.  







 


19 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


APPENDIX A – FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 


 


 


2018/19 to 2027/28 
 
 







PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL


Long Term Financial Plan


 


10 Year Financial Plan
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3.5% rate rise







Budgeted Income Statement 
for years ended  2018-2019 to 2027-2028 Budget Forecast


2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027 2027/2028


Revenue


Rates 7,754 7,882 8,044 8,268 8,498 8,734 8,999 9,272 9,553 9,842 10,140 10,447


Rates - Higher CAP 2016-17 101 101 105 108 110 112 115 118 121 124 127 130


Rates - Higher CAP 2017-19 116 116 237 244 251 259 267 275 283 291 300 309


Garbage charges 1,189 1,195 1,311 1,347 1,384 1,422 1,465 1,509 1,555 1,602 1,651 1,701


Rates Wind Farms - Waubra 219 222 229 231 237 243 249 255 261 268 275 282


Rates Wind Farms - Chepstowe 44 45 47 47 48 49 50 51 53 54 55 57


Rates Wind Farms - Stockyard Hill 0 0 0 0 737 755 774 793 813 833 854 876


Rates Wind Farms - Crowlands 0 0 0 158 160 164 168 172 176 180 185 190


Interest on Rates 40 40 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49


Statutory fees and fines 143 183 213 218 223 229 235 241 247 253 259 265


User charges 868 815 858 879 901 924 947 971 995 1,020 1,046 1,072


Grants - operating recurrent 954 855 831 852 873 895 917 940 964 988 1,013 1,038


Grants - operating recurrent - FAG General 2,943 1,616 3,312 3,411 3,513 3,618 3,727 3,839 3,954 4,073 4,195 4,321


Grants - operating recurrent - FAG Roads 2,026 1,026 2,103 2,156 2,210 2,265 2,322 2,380 2,440 2,501 2,564 2,628


Grants - operating non-recurrent 137 311 229 235 241 247 253 259 265 272 279 286


Grants - operating non-recurrent - Land Develop 0 0 0 107 108 136 135 0 0 0 0 0


Grants - operating non-recurrent - Moon Water 0 230 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Grants - operating non-recurrent - Flood 0 11,145 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Grants - capital recurrent - R2R 1,976 1,976 979 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,500


Grants - capital non recurrent - Federal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Grants - capital non recurrent - State 187 1,843 124 0 0 0 0 1,450 0 0 1,000 0


Contributions - Capital 0 180 0 0 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 0


Contributions - Operating 0 36 1 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 12 12


Interest on Cash Invested 136 143 141 148 155 163 171 180 189 198 208 218


Other Revenue 118 409 131 134 137 140 144 148 152 156 160 164


Sale of Assets 841 1,148 710 1,897 767 756 774 912 579 282 282 282


Less Carrying Value of Assets Sold (757)             (757)             (639)             (1,706)          (689)             (679)             (695)             (819)             (519)             (252)             (252)             (252)             


Total Revenue 19,035 30,760 19,006 19,885 21,016 21,585 22,172 24,352 23,438 24,043 25,701 25,575


Expenses


Employee Costs (6,796)          (6,713)          (7,163)          (7,339)          (7,522)          (7,710)          (7,903)          (8,101)          (8,304)          (8,512)          (8,725)          (8,943)          


Capital Projects Expensed (277)             (12,076)        (366)             (574)             (311)             (201)             (474)             (478)             (200)             (174)             (178)             (182)             


Contracts, materials & services (5,942)          (7,209)          (6,171)          (6,349)          (6,506)          (6,628)          (6,797)          (6,966)          (7,145)          (7,322)          (7,509)          (7,695)          


Bad and doubtful debts -               -               (2)                 (1)                 (1)                 (1)                 (1)                 (1)                 (1)                 (1)                 (1)                 (1)                 


Depreciation (6,702)          (6,702)          (6,835)          (7,006)          (7,181)          (7,361)          (7,545)          (7,734)          (7,927)          (8,125)          (8,328)          (8,536)          


Borrowing costs -               -               0 0 0 0 -               -               -               -               0 0


Other expenses (328)             (328)             (311)             (319)             (327)             (335)             (343)             (352)             (361)             (370)             (379)             (388)             


Total Expenses (20,045)        (33,028)        (20,848)        (21,588)        (21,848)        (22,236)        (23,063)        (23,632)        (23,938)        (24,504)        (25,120)        (25,745)        


Surplus (deficit) for the year (1,010)          (2,268)          (1,842)          (1,703)          (832)             (651)             (891)             720              (500)             (461)             581              (170)             


Net asset revaluation increment /(decrement) 200 200 800 250 0 900


Comprehensive result (810)             (2,068)          (1,042)          (1,453)          (832)             249              (891)             720              (500)             (461)             581              (170)             


Escalation Factors


Rates - Capped 3.50% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%


Garbage Charges/Costs 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%


Assessment growth 0.53% 0.53% 0.53% 0.53% 0.53% 0.53% 0.53% 0.53% 0.53% 0.53%


Victoria Grants Commission - Roads 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%


Grants 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%


Fees, Charges, Other Income 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%


Wages 1.75% 1.75% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%


CPI 1.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%


Victoria Grants Commission - General 2.50% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%


Compounded CPI 1.50% 4.04% 6.64% 9.30% 12.04% 14.84% 17.71% 20.65% 23.67% 26.76%


Depreciation 4.00% 3.00% 6.00% 4.00% 3.00% 6.00% 4.00% 3.00% 6.00% 4.00%


Other Expenses 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%


CPI Compounded for Capex Present Values 100.00 101.50 104.04 106.64 109.30 112.04 114.84 117.71 120.65 123.67 126.76
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Balance Sheet
for years ended  2018-2019 to 2027-2028 Budget Forecast


2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027 2027/2028


Assets


Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents 2,315 2,242 2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291


Trade and other receivables 908 851 877 903 930 958 987 1,017 1,048 1,079 1,111 1,144


Land held for resale 1,487 1,384 1,488 1,261 1,249 1,339 1,269 593 0 0 0 0


Other assets 140 240 245 250 255 260 265 270 275 281 287 293


Total current assets 4,850 4,717 4,901 4,705 4,725 4,848 4,812 4,171 3,614 3,651 3,689 3,728


Non-current assets


Trade and other receivables 88 88 75 61 46 30 13 0 0 0 0 0


Property, infrastructure, plant & equipment 237,022 228,501 227,350 226,219 225,451 225,663 224,896 226,345 226,478 226,057 226,679 226,554


Total non-current assets 237,110 228,589 227,425 226,280 225,497 225,693 224,909 226,345 226,478 226,057 226,679 226,554


Total assets 241,960 233,306 232,326 230,985 230,222 230,541 229,721 230,516 230,092 229,708 230,368 230,282


Liabilities


Current liabilities


Trade and other payables 976 1,015 1,045 1,076 1,108 1,141 1,175 1,210 1,246 1,283 1,321 1,361


Trust funds and deposits 192 196 200 204 208 212 216 220 224 228 233 238


Provisions 1,785 2,000 2,020 2,088 2,112 2,135 2,158 2,183 2,208 2,232 2,256 2,282


Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total current liabilities 2,953 3,211 3,265 3,368 3,428 3,488 3,549 3,613 3,678 3,743 3,810 3,881


Non-current liabilities


Provisions 168 165 173 182 191 201 211 222 233 245 257 270


Total non-current liabilities 168 165 173 182 191 201 211 222 233 245 257 270


Total liabilities 3,121 3,376 3,438 3,550 3,619 3,689 3,760 3,835 3,911 3,988 4,067 4,151


Net assets 238,839 229,930 228,888 227,435 226,603 226,852 225,961 226,681 226,181 225,720 226,301 226,131


Equity


Accumulated surplus 89,219 84,359 82,517 80,814 79,982 79,331 78,440 79,160 78,660 78,199 78,780 78,610


Statutory reserve (recreational land) 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9


Asset revaluation reserve 149,611 145,562 146,362 146,612 146,612 147,512 147,512 147,512 147,512 147,512 147,512 147,512


Total equity 238,839 229,930 228,888 227,435 226,603 226,852 225,961 226,681 226,181 225,720 226,301 226,131
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Budgeted Cash Flow Statement
for years ended  2018-2019 to 2027-2028 Budget Forecast


2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027 2027/2028


Cash flows from operating activities


Rates and charges 9,463          9,601      10,013    10,444    11,467     11,781    12,131    12,490    12,861    13,241    13,635      14,041    


Statutory fees and fines 143             183         213         218         223          229         235         241         247         253         259           265         


User charges 955             897         944         967         991          1,016      1,042      1,068      1,095      1,122      1,151        1,179      


Grants - operating 6,060          15,183    6,475      6,761      6,945       7,161      7,354      7,418      7,623      7,834      8,051        8,273      


Grants - capital 2,163          3,819      1,103      1,100      1,100       1,100      1,100      2,750      1,300      1,300      2,300        1,500      


Contributions - cash -              238         1             11           11            11           12           67           12           12           13             13           


Interest on cash invested 136             143         141         148         155          163         171         180         189         198         208           218         


Trust funds and deposits taken 25               25           25           25           25            25           25           25           25           25           25             25           


Other receipts 118             409         131         134         137          140         144         148         152         156         160           164         


Net GST refund / payment 1,180          2,896      1,119      1,268      1,295       1,339      1,360      1,502      1,448      1,466      1,578        1,582      


Employee costs (6,810)         (6,727)     (7,177)     (7,350)     (7,532)      (7,719)     (7,911)     (8,108)     (8,310)     (8,517)     (8,725)       (8,943)     


Materials and services (6,841)         (21,214)   (7,191)     (7,615)     (7,499)      (7,512)     (7,998)     (8,188)     (8,080)     (8,246)     (8,456)       (8,665)     


Trust funds and deposits repaid (25)              (25)          (25)          (25)          (25)           (25)          (25)          (25)          (25)          (25)          (25)            (25)          


Other payments (344)            (344)        (327)        (335)        (343)         (352)        (360)        (370)        (379)        (389)        (398)          (407)        


Net cash provided by operating activities 6,223          5,084      5,445      5,751      6,950       7,357      7,280      9,198      8,158      8,430      9,776        9,220      


Cash flows from investing activities


Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (6,531)         (10,077)   (5,810)     (6,436)     (7,228)      (7,523)     (7,612)     (10,201)   (8,205)     (8,391)     (9,993)       (8,987)     


Payments for land held for resale (618)            (1,385)     (367)        (1,402)     (566)         (666)        (520)        -          (590)        (349)        (93)            (543)        


Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 352             352         343         343         332          332         321         321         310         310         310           310         


Proceeds from sale of land held for resale 574             912         438         1,744      512          500         531         682         327         -          -            -          


Net cash used in investing activities (6,223)         (10,198)   (5,396)     (5,751)     (6,950)      (7,357)     (7,280)     (9,198)     (8,158)     (8,430)     (9,776)       (9,220)     


Cash flows from financing activities 


Borrowing costs -              -          -          -          -           -          -          -          -          -          -            -          


Proceeds from borrowings -              -          -          -          -           -          -          -          -          -          -            -          


Repayment of borrowings -              -          -          -          -           -          -          -          -          -          -            -          


Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities -              -          -          -          -           -          -          -          -          -          -            -          


Net (decrease) increase in cash & cash equivalents -              (5,114)     49           -          -           -          -          -          -          -          -            -          


Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 2,315          7,356      2,242      2,291      2,291       2,291      2,291      2,291      2,291      2,291      2,291        2,291      


Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 2,315          2,242      2,291      2,291      2,291       2,291      2,291      2,291      2,291      2,291      2,291        2,291      
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Budgeted Standard Capital Works Statement
for years ended  2018-2019 to 2027-2028 Budget Forecast


2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027 2027/2028


Land Development


Avoca Industrial Land Sales - Stage 1 (2 Lots) Land Sales Land Inc -41,000 -92,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca Industrial Land Construct - Stage 2 Land Inventory 0 0 0 402,000 412,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca Industrial Land Development - Grant State Grant Land Land Inc 0 0 0 -107,000 -108,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca Industrial Land Sales - Stage 2 (19 Lots) Land Sales Land Inc 0 0 0 -55,000 -55,000 -220,000 -138,000 -138,000 -83,000 0 0 0


Beaufort Industrial Land Construct - McVilly Stage 1 Land Inventory 0 0 0 0 103,000 606,000 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Industrial Land  Development - Grant State Grant Land Land Inc 0 0 0 0 0 -136,000 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Industrial Land - Sales McVilly Stage 1 (8 Lots) Land Sales Land Inc 0 0 0 0 0 -69,000 -275,000 -207,000 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Industrial Land Construct - McVilly Stage 2 Land Inventory 0 0 0 0 0 0 473,000 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Industrial Land  Development - Grant State Grant Land Land Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0 -135,000 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Industrial Land - Sales McVilly Stage 2 (8 Lots) Land Sales Land Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0 -69,000 -275,000 -214,000 0 0 0


Beaufort Residential Land Sales - Stage 1 (1 Lots) Land Sales Land Inc 0 -74,545 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Residential Land Sales - Stage 3 (18 Lots) Land Sales Land Inc -480,000 -662,000 -120,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Residential Land Purchase -Stage 4 Land Inventory 213,000 449,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Residential Land Construct - Stage 4 Land Inventory 349,000 578,309 334,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Residential Land Sales - Stage 4 (21 Lots) Land Sales Land Inc 0 0 -278,000 -715,000 -130,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Residential Land Purchase - Stage 5 Land Inventory 0 232,681 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Residential Land Construct - Stage 5 Land Inventory 0 0 0 873,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Residential Land Sales -  Stage 5 (18 Lots) Land Sales Land Inc 0 0 0 -815,000 -280,000 -165,000 0 0 0 0 0 0


Residential Land Purchase Land Inventory 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 537,000 318,000 85,000 494,000


Land Sales Selling Costs Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 59,000 59,000 39,800 169,200 57,300 42,500 61,700 62,000 29,700 0 0 0


Vison Super Defined Benefits Call 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Land Development Loan Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Land Development Loan Repayment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Land Development Loan Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Land Development 100,000 490,445 -24,200 -247,800 -700 58,500 -82,300 -558,000 269,700 318,000 85,000 494,000


Capital Expenditure Summary


Infrastructure Roads -  Roads to Recovery Projects R2R 1,976,000 2,607,687 979,000 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,500,000


Infrastructure Roads -  Council Projects Council Roads 2,286,570 2,484,713 2,652,000 3,073,000 3,607,000 3,998,000 4,100,000 4,243,000 4,365,000 4,483,000 4,604,000 4,726,000


Recreational Projects Recreation 362,000 1,007,055 283,000 161,000 362,000 180,000 118,000 145,000 66,000 67,000 1,373,000 69,000


Land Projects Land Improve 55,000 58,000 56,000 57,000 58,000 59,000 60,000 62,000 64,000 66,000 68,000 70,000


Buildings Buildings 100,000 1,684,071 110,000 144,000 158,000 174,000 191,000 2,180,000 231,000 254,000 279,000 307,000


Plant, machinery and equipment Plant & Equipment 1,128,000 1,204,431 1,171,000 1,200,000 1,239,000 1,273,000 1,308,000 1,344,000 1,384,000 1,429,000 1,453,000 1,453,000


Capital Projects Expensed Non-Capital 277,000 12,132,055 341,800 574,200 311,300 200,500 473,700 478,000 199,700 174,000 178,000 182,000


Land Development Land 562,000 1,259,990 334,000 1,275,000 515,000 606,000 473,000 0 537,000 318,000 85,000 494,000


Loan Repayments Debt Redemption 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Capital Expenditure 6,746,570 22,438,002 5,926,800 7,584,200 7,350,300 7,590,500 7,823,700 9,752,000 8,146,700 8,091,000 9,340,000 8,801,000


Capital Income Summary


Moonambel Water Supply Federal & State Grants Grant Moon 0 -230,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Contributions Contribution 0 -179,900 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Garbage Charges to Fund Transfer Station Improvements Garbage Charges -55,000 -55,000 -56,000 -57,000 -58,000 -59,000 -60,000 -62,000 -64,000 -66,000 -68,000 -70,000


State Government Grant State Grant -187,000 -1,385,245 0 0 0 0 0 -500,000 0 0 0 0


State Government Grant - Flood Recovery Flood 0 -11,110,450 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Federal Government Grant Fed Grant 0 -500,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Roads to Recovery Grant R2R Grant -1,976,000 -1,976,142 -979,000 -1,100,000 -1,100,000 -1,100,000 -1,100,000 -1,300,000 -1,300,000 -1,300,000 -1,300,000 -1,500,000


Federal Black Spot Grant Black Spot Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Country Roads & Bridges Grant CRB Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Pool Upgrade - SR Pools Program Grant Pools 0 -10,000 -124,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,000,000 0


Snake Valley Multi Services Hub Grant Grant SV Hub 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -950,000 0 0 0 0


Snake Valley Multi Services Hub Bendigo Bank Contribution BEN Contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -50,000 0 0 0 0


Sale of Land Land Sales -521,000 -828,545 -398,000 -1,585,000 -465,000 -454,000 -482,000 -620,000 -297,000 0 0 0


Industrial Land Development Grant Grant Land 0 0 0 -107,000 -108,000 -136,000 -135,000 0 0 0 0 0


Sale of Plant & Vehicles Asset Sales -320,000 -320,000 -312,000 -312,000 -302,000 -302,000 -292,000 -292,000 -282,000 -282,000 -282,000 -282,000


Total Capital Income Summary -3,059,000 -16,595,282 -1,869,000 -3,161,000 -2,033,000 -2,051,000 -2,069,000 -3,774,000 -1,943,000 -1,648,000 -2,650,000 -1,852,000


Own Source Spend on Capital 3,687,570 5,842,719 4,057,800 4,423,200 5,317,300 5,539,500 5,754,700 5,978,000 6,203,700 6,443,000 6,690,000 6,949,000


Own Source Spend on Capital/Rates (excluding Windfarms) 46.9% 73.2% 49.8% 52.8% 61.8% 62.6% 63.1% 63.7% 64.1% 64.6% 65.2% 65.7%


Land Improvements


Moonambel Water Supply Construction Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 302,565 0 0 0 0 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 0
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Budgeted Standard Capital Works Statement
for years ended  2018-2019 to 2027-2028 Budget Forecast


2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027 2027/2028


Moonambel Water Supply State Grant Grant Moon 0 -50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Moonambel Water Supply Federal Grant Grant Moon 0 -180,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Moonambel Water Supply Private Investment Contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Township Streetscapes - Solar Lighting of Town Entrances Expansion Recreation Recreation 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Signage Upgrades - Directional Signage Upgrade Recreation Recreation 35,000 35,000 0 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Study Planning and Works Beaufort, Avoca, Waubra and LextonNon-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 63,000 94,000 54,000 55,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Transfer Station Improvements Upgrade Land Improve Waste 55,000 58,000 56,000 57,000 58,000 59,000 60,000 62,000 64,000 66,000 68,000 70,000


Garbage Charges to Fund Transfer Station Improvements Garbage Charges -55,000 -55,000 -56,000 -57,000 -58,000 -59,000 -60,000 -62,000 -64,000 -66,000 -68,000 -70,000


Transfer Station Reimbursement Inc Contribution -3,000


RV Dump Point Establishment Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


RV Camping Site Upgrade Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca High St Shade New Assets Recreation Recreation 0 43,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca High St Shade Contribution 0 -43,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Raglan & Redbank S/C & Raglan, Redbank & Barkly Hall Upgrade Upgrade Recreation Recreation 0 343,200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Raglan & Redbank S/C & Raglan, Redbank & Barkly Hall Upgrade State Grant 0 -227,400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Raglan & Redbank S/C & Raglan, Redbank & Barkly Hall Upgrade Contribution 0 -65,900 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Living Landsborough Streetscape & Hall Upgrade Upgrade Recreation Recreation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Living Landsborough Streetscape & Hall Upgrade - State Grant State Grant 0 -50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Living Landsborough Streetscape & Hall Upgrade - Contribution Contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Land Improvements 108,000 291,465 64,000 155,000 0 0 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 0


Infrastructure Roads -  Roads to Recovery Projects


Roads - link and collectors R2R Renewal R2R Roads 1,373,000 1,908,621 738,000 631,000 625,000 618,000 611,000 768,000 760,000 753,000 753,000 900,000


Roads - link and collectors R2R Upgrade R2R Roads 302,000 418,966 162,000 139,000 137,000 136,000 134,000 168,000 167,000 165,000 165,000 200,000


Major Culverts - link and collectors R2R Renewal R2R Drainage 200,000 136,200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Bridges - link and collectors R2R Renewal R2R Bridges 101,000 143,900 79,000 330,000 338,000 346,000 355,000 364,000 373,000 382,000 382,000 400,000


Trawalla Road Grant State Grant -290,500


Roads to Recovery Auslink Etc R2R Grant -1,976,000 -1,976,142 -979,000 -1,100,000 -1,100,000 -1,100,000 -1,100,000 -1,300,000 -1,300,000 -1,300,000 -1,300,000 -1,500,000


Total Roads to Recovery 0 341,045 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


M2 Rate Council Plan Life


Roads - resheets 4,646,589   4.63$                          2.9% 30.0             3.2% 3.6% 3.6% 4.9% 6.2% 5.6% 5.8% 5.9% 6.1% 6.3% 6.5%


Roads - reseals 3,926,254   4.34$                          4.5% 16.8             4.9% 5.0% 5.1% 5.8% 6.0% 6.1% 6.3% 6.4% 6.5% 6.7% 6.9%


Infrastructure Roads -  Council Projects


Roads - pavement Renewal Council Roads Bridges 73,000 73,000 104,000 127,000 207,000 263,000 288,000 503,000 509,000 522,000 535,000 548,000


Roads - pavement Upgrade Council Roads Bridges 16,000 16,000 23,000 28,000 45,000 58,000 63,000 110,000 112,000 115,000 118,000 121,000


Roads - resheets Renewal Council Roads Roads 657,570 684,570 778,000 775,000 1,054,000 1,326,000 1,199,000 1,240,000 1,278,000 1,320,000 1,363,000 1,407,000


Roads - reseals - MAMS Renewal Council Roads Roads 735,000 735,000 748,000 767,000 886,000 906,000 926,000 947,000 968,000 992,000 1,017,000 1,042,000


Roads - reseals - Extra Rates Variation Renewal Council Roads Roads 100,000 100,000 105,000 107,000 109,000 112,000 115,000 118,000 121,000 124,000 127,000 130,000


Roads - Dust Suppression GAT Seals Upgrade Council Roads Roads 21,000 20,900 22,000 23,000 24,000 25,000 26,000 27,000 28,000 29,000 30,000 31,000


Road Infrastructure Renewal - Extra Rates Variation Renewal Council Roads Roads 116,000 116,000 236,000 243,000 250,000 258,000 266,000 274,000 282,000 289,000 296,000 303,000


Roads - forward survey & design Renewal Council Roads Roads 50,000 70,000 60,000 55,000 56,000 58,000 59,000 61,000 62,000 64,000 66,000 68,000


Roads - State Government Blackspot Program Upgrade Council Roads Roads 0 45,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


State Govt Rural Roads & Bridges Grant State Grant -3,000


Bridges Renewal Council Roads Bridges 0 148,000 178,000 382,000 397,000 400,000 550,000 339,000 367,000 375,000 383,000 391,000


Drainage Renewal Council Roads Drainage 178,000 178,000 50,000 208,000 210,000 214,000 218,000 222,000 226,000 230,000 235,000 240,000


Major Culverts Renewal Council Roads Drainage 135,000 93,243 0 143,000 147,000 151,000 155,000 160,000 164,000 168,000 172,000 176,000


Major Culverts Renewal Council Roads Bridges 139,000


Footpaths - Renewal Renewal Council Roads Footpaths 19,000 19,000 20,000 21,000 22,000 22,000 24,000 25,000 26,000 27,000 28,000 29,000


Footpaths - New New Assets Council Roads Footpaths 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000


Kerb & Channel Renewal Council Roads Roads 22,000 22,000 23,000 24,000 25,000 26,000 28,000 29,000 30,000 31,000 32,000 33,000


Sealed Road Shoulder Rehabilitation Renewal Council Roads Roads 54,000 54,000 54,000 55,000 56,000 58,000 59,000 61,000 62,000 64,000 66,000 68,000


Roads Other - Major Patch Renewal Council Roads Roads 105,000 105,000 107,000 110,000 113,000 115,000 118,000 121,000 124,000 127,000 130,000 133,000


Total Council Roads 2,286,570 2,481,713 2,652,000 3,073,000 3,607,000 3,998,000 4,100,000 4,243,000 4,365,000 4,483,000 4,604,000 4,726,000


Recreational Projects


Beaufort Pool - Refurbishment Renewal Recreation Recreation 0 184,555 0 0 300,000 117,000 0 0 0 0 1,305,000 0


Beaufort Pool - SV Pools Program Grant Pools 0 -10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,000,000 0


Beaufort Pool Heating Contribution Contribution -8,000


Avoca Pool - Refurbishment Renewal Recreation Recreation 0 0 186,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca Pool - SV Pools Program Grant Pools 0 0 -124,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Snake Valley - Linear Park Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 0 100,000 200,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Budgeted Standard Capital Works Statement
for years ended  2018-2019 to 2027-2028 Budget Forecast


2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027 2027/2028


Croquet Club Development Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 1,405


Waubra Oval Watering & Surface Upgrade Exp Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 61,040


Waubra Oval Water State Grant Inc State Grant -19,937


Beaufort Golf/Bowls Desalination Plant Exp Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 5,984


Beaufort Golf/Bowls Water State Grant Inc State Grant -13,498


Hard Court Renewal Renewal Recreation Recreation 157,000 72,000 77,000 51,000 52,000 53,000 54,000 55,000 56,000 57,000 58,000 59,000


Hard Court Renewal Government Grants - State State Grant -112,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Playground Equipment Replacement Renewal Recreation Recreation 10,000 20,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000


Beaufort Walkability Expansion Recreation Footpaths 150,000 299,300 0 0 0 0 54,000 80,000 0 0 0 0


Government Grants - State State Grant -75,000 -149,650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Implementation of the Recreation Strategy Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 130,000 145,350 148,000 150,000 154,000 158,000 162,000 166,000 170,000 174,000 178,000 182,000


Total Recreational Projects 260,000 588,550 397,000 411,000 616,000 338,000 280,000 311,000 236,000 241,000 551,000 251,000


Flood Events


Flood Repairs - Gravel Pavements Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 5,823,940 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Sealed Pavements Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 266,633 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Road Seals Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 390,743 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Bridges Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 492,699 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Major Culverts Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 406,678 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Minor Culverts Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 888,913 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Floodways/Causeways Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 1,298,152 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Tree Removal Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 490,750 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Parks & Reserves Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 17,369 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Other Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 305,074 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs - Project Management Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 729,499 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Flood Repairs Reimbursment Flood 0 -11,110,450 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Flood Events 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Buildings


Snake Valley Multi Services Hub (Kindergarten) New Assets Buildings Buildings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,970,000 0 0 0 0


Snake Valley Multi Services Hub - Early Child S Govt Grant SV Hub 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -750,000 0 0 0 0


Snake Valley Multi Services Hub - State Grant Grant SV Hub 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -200,000 0 0 0 0


Snake Valley Multi Services Hub - State Grant State Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -500,000 0 0 0 0


Snake Valley Multi Services Hub - B Bank BEN Contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -50,000 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Depot - Pratt Street House Precinct Dev Upgrade Buildings Build Impr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Depot - Plan Upgrade Buildings Build Impr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca Depot - Plan Upgrade Buildings Build Impr 0 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca Depot - Upgrade Upgrade Buildings Build Impr 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Lexton Community Facility Renewal Buildings Buildings 0 1,122,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Lexton Community Facility - State Grant State Grant 0 -500,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Lexton Community Facility - Federal Fed Grant 0 -500,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Lexton Community Facility - Community Contribution 0 -50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Pratt Street Carport Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 2,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Town Hall - Change Rooms Renewal Buildings Build Impr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca Projects Upgrade Buildings Lease Impr 0 124,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Avoca Caravan Park - State Grant State Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Caravan Park Improvements Upgrade Buildings Build Impr 0 140,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Caravan Park - State Grant State Grant 0 -102,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Waubra Rec Res Toilet Block Renewal Buildings Buildings 0 110,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Waubra Rec Res Toilet Block Contribution Contribution -10,000


Beaufort Mens Shed Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 0 18,760 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Beaufort Mens Shed Grant State Grant -18,760


Telecommunication Improvements Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 25,000 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Building Renewal Program Renewal Buildings Buildings 100,000 132,571 110,000 144,000 158,000 174,000 191,000 210,000 231,000 254,000 279,000 307,000


Total Buildings 125,000 774,071 110,000 144,000 158,000 174,000 191,000 680,000 231,000 254,000 279,000 307,000


Plant & Equipment


Plant Purchases Renewal Plant & Equipment Plant 565,000 565,000 574,000 589,000 604,000 620,000 636,000 652,000 669,000 686,000 686,000 686,000


Minor Plant Purchases Renewal Plant & Equipment Plant 10,000 10,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 13,000 13,000 13,000


Bore Refurbishment Renewal Plant & Equipment Plant 10,000 32,576 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000


Bore Refurbishment Grant State Grant -10,000


Plant Sales Asset Sales -120,000 -120,000 -120,000 -120,000 -120,000 -120,000 -120,000 -120,000 -120,000 -120,000 -120,000 -120,000
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Budgeted Standard Capital Works Statement
for years ended  2018-2019 to 2027-2028 Budget Forecast


2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027 2027/2028


Vehicle Purchases Renewal Plant & Equipment Plant 382,000 382,000 382,000 382,000 382,000 382,000 382,000 382,000 382,000 382,000 382,000 382,000


Vehicle Sales Asset Sales -200,000 -200,000 -190,000 -190,000 -180,000 -180,000 -170,000 -170,000 -160,000 -160,000 -160,000 -160,000


Fixtures, Furniture & Fitting Purchases Renewal Plant & Equipment Furn & Fit 21,000 20,000 21,000 22,000 23,000 23,000 24,000 24,000 25,000 25,000 26,000 26,000


Fixtures, Furniture & Fitting Minor Purchases Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 1,000


Computer Equipment Purchases Renewal Plant & Equipment Computer 90,000 144,855 116,000 127,000 148,000 163,000 179,000 197,000 217,000 242,000 263,000 263,000


Computer Equipment Sales Asset Sales 0 0 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000 -2,000


Library Collection Purchases Renewal Plant & Equipment Library 50,000 50,000 52,000 54,000 56,000 58,000 60,000 62,000 64,000 66,000 68,000 68,000


Total Plant & Equipment 808,000 875,431 859,000 888,000 937,000 971,000 1,016,000 1,052,000 1,102,000 1,147,000 1,171,000 1,171,000


Expenditure summarised as:


Renewal Renewal Renewal 5,313,570 7,432,091 4,973,000 5,383,000 6,254,000 6,500,000 6,534,000 6,851,000 7,033,000 7,218,000 8,690,000 7,697,000


Expansion Expansion Expansion 160,000 309,300 10,000 0 0 0 54,000 80,000 0 0 0 0


Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade 429,000 1,256,566 263,000 347,000 264,000 278,000 283,000 367,000 371,000 375,000 381,000 422,000


New Assets New Assets New Assets 5,000 48,000 5,000 5,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 1,976,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000


Expensed Capital Projects Non-Capital Non-Capital Non-Capital 277,000 12,132,055 341,800 574,200 311,300 200,500 473,700 478,000 199,700 174,000 178,000 182,000


Total Capital Expenditure 6,184,570 21,178,012 5,592,800 6,309,200 6,835,300 6,984,500 7,350,700 9,752,000 7,609,700 7,773,000 9,255,000 8,307,000


Loan Repayments Debt Redemption 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Land Development Land 562,000 1,259,990 334,000 1,275,000 515,000 606,000 473,000 0 537,000 318,000 85,000 494,000


Grand Total Capital Outlays 6,746,570 22,438,002 5,926,800 7,584,200 7,350,300 7,590,500 7,823,700 9,752,000 8,146,700 8,091,000 9,340,000 8,801,000


LESS Expensed Capital Projects -277,000 -12,132,055 -341,800 -574,200 -311,300 -200,500 -473,700 -478,000 -199,700 -174,000 -178,000 -182,000


LESS Loan Repayments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


TOTAL Capital to Balance Sheet 6,469,570 10,305,947 5,585,000 7,010,000 7,039,000 7,390,000 7,350,000 9,274,000 7,947,000 7,917,000 9,162,000 8,619,000
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Financial Ratios
for years ended  2018-2019 to 2027-2028 Budget Forecast


Note 2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027 2027/2028


Adjusted underlying 


result


Adjusted underlying 


surplus (deficit) / Adjusted 


underlying revenue
1 -6.4% -15.1% -10.4% -8.6% -4.0% -3.1% -4.1% -3.5% -2.2% -2.0% -1.7% -0.7%


Liquidity


Working Capital
Current assets / current 


liabilities
2 164.2% 146.9% 150.1% 139.7% 137.8% 139.0% 135.6% 115.4% 98.3% 97.5% 96.8% 96.1%


Unrestricted cash
Unrestricted cash / current 


liabilities
71.6% 63.4% 63.8% 61.7% 60.5% 59.3% 58.2% 57.1% 56.0% 54.9% 53.8% 52.7%


Loans and 


borrowings


Interest bearing loans and 


borrowings / rate revenue
3 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%


Loans and 


borrowings


Interest and principal 


repayments / rate revenue
0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%


Indebtedness
Non-current liabilities / own 


source revenue
0.9% 0.6% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.1%


Asset renewal
Asset renewal expenditure / 


depreciation
4 79.3% 110.9% 72.8% 76.8% 87.1% 88.3% 86.6% 88.6% 88.7% 88.8% 104.3% 90.2%


Stability


Rates concentration
Rate revenue / adjusted 


underlying revenue
5 50.2% 33.5% 53.0% 52.5% 54.6% 54.6% 54.7% 54.7% 54.9% 55.1% 55.2% 54.9%


Rates effort
Rate revenue / property 


values (CIV)
0.60% 0.57% 0.47% 0.47% 0.50% 0.49% 0.49% 0.48% 0.48% 0.47% 0.47% 0.47%


4 Asset renewal - TThis percentage indicates the extent of Council's renewal expenditure against its depreciation charge (an indication of the decline in value of its existing capital assets). A


percentage greater than 100 indicates Council is maintaining its existing assets, while a percentage less than 100 means its assets are deteriorating faster than they are being renewed and future


capital expenditure will be required to renew assets.  The asset renewal percentage is budgeted to improve steadily over the life of the Strategic Resource Plan.


Operating position


Obligations


Notes to indicators


1 Adjusted underlying result – One indicator of the sustainable operating result required to enable Council to continue to provide core services and meet its objectives. Steady improvement in


financial performance is expected over the period, although continued losses means reliance on capital grants to fund capital expenditure.


2 Working Capital – The proportion of current liabilities represented by current assets. Working capital is forecast to decline slightly in later years but remain at an acceptable level.


3 Debt compared to rates - Council is forecast to remain free of long term debt throughout the four of the Strategic Resource Plan, and has a policy to minimise loan borrowings and hence 


interest paid on loans. 
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5 Rates concentration - Reflects extent of reliance on rate revenues to fund all of Council's on-going services. Trend indicates Council's reliance on rate revenue will remain relatively stable


throughout the forecast period.
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2022


Pyrenees Shire Council


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


For the four years ended 30 June
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2019 2020 2021 2022


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


10,013 10,444 11,467 11,781


213 218 223 229


858 879 901 924


6,475 6,761 6,945 7,161


1,103 1,100 1,100 1,100


1 10 10 10


0 0 0 0


71 191 78 77


272 282 292 303


19,006 19,885 21,016 21,585


7,163 7,339 7,522 7,710


6,537 6,923 6,817 6,829


2 1 1 1


6,835 7,006 7,181 7,361


0 0 0 0


311 319 327 335


20,848 21,588 21,848 22,236


-1,842 -1,703 -832 -651


800 250 0 900


-1,042 -1,453 -832 249


Pyrenees Shire Council


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying other information.


Total comprehensive result


Rates and service charges


Statutory fees and fines


Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)


Contributions - non monetary


Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Income


Other income


Total expenses 


Surplus/(deficit) for the year


Other comprehensive income


Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods


Materials and services


Bad and doubtful debts


Depreciation and amortisation


Borrowing costs


Other expenses


Expenses


Total income


Employee costs


Comprehensive Income Statement


User charges


Grants - operating


Grants - capital


Contributions - monetary


For the four years ended 30 June 2022
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2019 2020 2021 2022


 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 


2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291


877 903 930 958


1,488 1,261 1,249 1,339


245 250 255 260


4,901 4,705 4,725 4,848


75 61 46 30


227,350 226,219 225,451 225,663


227,425 226,280 225,497 225,693


232,326 230,985 230,222 230,541


1,045 1,076 1,108 1,141


200 204 208 212


2,020 2,088 2,112 2,135


0 0 0 0


3,265 3,368 3,428 3,488


173 182 191 201


0 0 0 0


173 182 191 201


3,438 3,550 3,619 3,689


228,888 227,435 226,603 226,852


82,517 80,814 79,982 79,331


9 9 9 9


146,362 146,612 146,612 147,512


228,888 227,435 226,603 226,852


Pyrenees Shire Council


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


Total non-current liabilities


Total liabilities


Interest-bearing loans and borrowings


Total current liabilities


Non-current liabilities


Liabilities


Current liabilities


Trade and other payables


Trust funds and deposits


Balance Sheet


Assets


For the four years ended 30 June 2022


Recreational land reserve


Current assets


Provisions


Provisions


Accumulated surplus


Net assets


Equity


The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying other information.


Cash and cash equivalents


Trade and other receivables


Total assets


Land held for resale


Other assets


Total current assets


Non-current assets


Trade and other receivables


Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 


Total non-current assets


Interest-bearing loans and borrowings


Asset revaluation reserve


Total Equity
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Accumulated Revaluation Other


Total Surplus Reserve Reserves


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Balance at beginning of the financial year 229,930 84,359 145,562 9


-1,842 -1,842 0 0


800 0 800 0


228,888 82,517 146,362 9


Accumulated Revaluation Other


Total Surplus Reserve Reserves


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


228,888 82,517 146,362 9


-1,703 -1,703 0 0


250 0 250 0


227,435 80,814 146,612 9


Accumulated Revaluation Other


Total Surplus Reserve Reserves


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Balance at beginning of the financial year 227,435 80,814 146,612 9


-832 -832 0 0


0 0 0 0


226,603 79,982 146,612 9


Accumulated Revaluation Other


Total Surplus Reserve Reserves


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Balance at beginning of the financial year 226,603 79,982 146,612 9


-651 -651 0 0


900 0 900 0


226,852 79,331 147,512 9Balance at end of the financial year


2022


Surplus/(deficit) for the year


Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)


Balance at beginning of the financial year


Surplus/(deficit) for the year


Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)


Balance at end of the financial year


2021


Surplus/(deficit) for the year


Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)


Balance at end of the financial year


Pyrenees Shire Council


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


Statement of Changes in Equity


For the four years ended 30 June 2022


The above statement of changes in equity should be read with the accompanying other information.


2019


Surplus/(deficit) for the year


Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)


Balance at end of the financial year


2020
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Pyrenees Shire Council


2019 2020 2021 2022


Inflows/ Inflows/ Inflows/ Inflows/


(Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


10,013 10,444 11,467 11,781


213 218 223 229


944 967 991 1,016


6,475 6,761 6,945 7,161


1,103 1,100 1,100 1,100


1 11 11 11


141 148 155 163


25 25 25 25


131 134 137 140


1,119 1,268 1,295 1,339


-7,177 -7,350 -7,532 -7,719


-7,191 -7,615 -7,499 -7,512


-25 -25 -25 -25


-327 -335 -343 -352


5,445 5,751 6,950 7,357


-5,810 -6,436 -7,228 -7,523


Payments for land held for resale -367 -1,402 -566 -666


343 343 332 332


Proceeds from sale of land held for resale 438 1,744 512 500


-5,396 -5,751 -6,950 -7,357


Cash flows from financing activities


0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0


49 0 0 0


2,242 2,291 2,291 2,291


2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291


Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year


Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year     


Finance costs


Proceeds from borrowings


Repayment of borrowings


Net cash used in financing activities


Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents


Net GST refund/payment


Employee costs


Materials and services


Other payments


Net cash provided by operating activities 


Cash flows from investing activities


Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 


Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 


Net cash used in investing activities


Grants - capital


Contributions - monetary


Interest  received


Trust funds and deposits taken


Other receipts  


For the four years ended 30 June 2022


Statutory fees and fines


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


The above statement of cash flows should be read with the accompanying other information


Statement of Cash Flows


Cash flows from operating activities


Rates and service charges


Trust funds and deposits repaid


User charges


Grants - operating
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2019 2020 2021 2022


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


334 1,275 515 606


0 0 0 0


334 1,275 515 606


110 144 158 174


0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0


110 144 158 174


444 1,419 673 780


0 0 0 0


982 997 1,012 1,029


21 22 23 23


116 127 148 163


52 54 56 58


1,171 1,200 1,239 1,273


3,033 2,929 3,335 3,638


523 867 987 1,067


25 26 28 28


50 351 357 365


283 161 362 180


56 57 58 59


0 0 0 0


Aerodromes 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0


3,970 4,391 5,127 5,337


5,585 7,010 7,039 7,390


339 1,280 521 612


4,973 5,383 6,254 6,500


10 0 0 0


263 347 264 278


5,585 7,010 7,039 7,390Total capital works expenditure


Represented by:


New asset expenditure


Asset renewal expenditure


Asset expansion expenditure


Asset upgrade expenditure


Total plant and equipment


Total capital works expenditure


Roads


Bridges


Footpaths and cycle ways


Drainage


Recreational, leisure and community facilities


Waste management


Parks, open space and streetscapes


Off street car parks


Other infrastructure


Total infrastructure


Heritage plant and equipment


Plant, machinery and equipment


Computers and telecommunications


Fixtures, fittings and furniture


Library books


Pyrenees Shire Council


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


Statement of Capital Works


For the four years ended 30 June 2022


Property


Land


Leasehold improvements


Land improvements


Total land


Buildings


Heritage Buildings


Building improvements


Infrastructure


Total buildings


Total property


Plant and equipment
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The above statement of capital works should be read with the accompanying other information.
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2019 2020 2021 2022


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


7,163 7,339 7,522 7,710


130 134 138 142


7,293 7,473 7,660 7,852


FTE FTE FTE FTE


79.7 79.7 79.7 79.7


79.7 79.7 79.7 79.7


Staff numbers


The above statement of human resources should be read with the accompanying other information.


Staff expenditure


Employees


Total staff numbers


Employee costs - Operating


Employee costs - Capital


Total staff expenditure


Pyrenees Shire Council


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


Statement of Human Resources


For the four years ended 30 June 2022
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Total New Renewal Expansion Upgrade Total Grants Contributions Council Cash Borrowings


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


334 334 0 0 0 334 0 0 334 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


334 334 0 0 0 334 0 0 334 0


110 0 110 0 0 110 0 0 110 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


110 0 110 0 0 110 0 0 110 0


444 334 110 0 0 444 0 0 444 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


982 0 982 0 0 982 0 0 982 0


21 0 21 0 0 21 0 0 21 0


116 0 116 0 0 116 0 0 116 0


52 0 52 0 0 52 0 0 52 0


1,171 0 1,171 0 0 1,171 0 0 1,171 0


3,033 0 2,849 0 184 3,033 900 0 2,133 0


523 0 500 0 23 523 79 0 444 0


25 5 20 0 0 25 0 0 25 0


50 0 50 0 0 50 0 0 50 0


283 0 273 10 0 283 124 0 159 0


56 0 0 0 56 56 0 0 56 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


3,970 5 3,692 10 263 3,970 1,103 0 2,867 0


5,585 339 4,973 10 263 5,585 1,103 0 4,482 0


Total New Renewal Expansion Upgrade Total Grants Contributions Council Cash Borrowings


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


1,275 1,275 0 0 0 1,275 107 0 1,168 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


1,275 1,275 0 0 0 1,275 107 0 1,168 0


144 0 144 0 0 144 0 0 144 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


144 0 144 0 0 144 0 0 144 0


1,419 1,275 144 0 0 1,419 107 0 1,312 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


997 0 997 0 0 997 0 0 997 0


22 0 22 0 0 22 0 0 22 0


127 0 127 0 0 127 0 0 127 0


54 0 54 0 0 54 0 0 54 0


1,200 0 1,200 0 0 1,200 0 0 1,200 0


2,929 0 2,767 0 162 2,929 770 0 2,159 0


867 0 839 0 28 867 330 0 537 0


26 5 21 0 0 26 0 0 26 0


351 0 351 0 0 351 0 0 351 0


161 0 61 0 100 161 0 0 161 0


57 0 0 0 57 57 0 0 57 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


4,391 5 4,039 0 347 4,391 1,100 0 3,291 0


7,010 1,280 5,383 0 347 7,010 1,207 0 5,803 0


Total New Renewal Expansion Upgrade Total Grants Contributions Council Cash Borrowings


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


515 515 0 0 0 515 108 0 407 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


515 515 0 0 0 515 108 0 407 0


158 0 158 0 0 158 0 0 158 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Land


Land improvements


Total land


Buildings


Heritage Buildings


Total capital works expenditure


2021


Property


Off street car parks


Other infrastructure


Total infrastructure


Infrastructure


Roads


Bridges


Footpaths and cycle ways


Drainage


Recreational, leisure and community facilities


Leasehold improvements


Total buildings


Total property


Plant and equipment


Heritage plant and equipment


Waste management


Parks, open space and streetscapes


Aerodromes


Total property


Plant and equipment


Heritage plant and equipment


Plant, machinery and equipment


Computers and telecommunications


Bridges


Footpaths and cycle ways


Drainage


Recreational, leisure and community facilities


Waste management


Parks, open space and streetscapes


Library books


Fixtures, fittings and furniture


Total plant and equipment


Infrastructure


Roads


Land


Land improvements


Asset Expenditure Types Funding Sources


2020


Property


Funding SourcesAsset Expenditure Types


2019


Property


Land


Land improvements


Total land


Buildings


Heritage Buildings


Building improvements


Leasehold improvements


Total buildings


Total land


Buildings


For the four years ended 30 June 2022


Pyrenees Shire Council


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


Other Information


Asset Expenditure Types Funding Sources


1. Summary of planned capital works expenditure


Heritage Buildings


Building improvements


Aerodromes


Off street car parks


Other infrastructure


Total infrastructure


Total capital works expenditure


Plant, machinery and equipment


Fixtures, fittings and furniture


Computers and telecommunications


Library books


Total plant and equipment
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For the four years ended 30 June 2022


Pyrenees Shire Council


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


Other Information


1. Summary of planned capital works expenditure


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


158 0 158 0 0 158 0 0 158 0


673 515 158 0 0 673 108 0 565 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


1,012 0 1,012 0 0 1,012 0 0 1,012 0


23 0 23 0 0 23 0 0 23 0


148 0 148 0 0 148 0 0 148 0


56 0 56 0 0 56 0 0 56 0


1,239 0 1,239 0 0 1,239 0 0 1,239 0


3,335 0 3,174 0 161 3,335 762 0 2,573 0


987 0 942 0 45 987 338 0 649 0


28 6 22 0 0 28 0 0 28 0


357 0 357 0 0 357 0 0 357 0


362 0 362 0 0 362 0 0 362 0


58 0 0 0 58 58 0 0 58 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


5,127 6 4,857 0 264 5,127 1,100 0 4,027 0


7,039 521 6,254 0 264 7,039 1,208 0 5,831 0


Total New Renewal Expansion Upgrade Total Grants Contributions Council Cash Borrowings


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


606 606 0 0 0 606 136 0 470 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


606 606 0 0 0 606 136 0 470 0


174 0 174 0 0 174 0 0 174 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


174 0 174 0 0 174 0 0 174 0


780 606 174 0 0 780 136 0 644 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


1,029 0 1,029 0 0 1,029 0 0 1,029 0


23 0 23 0 0 23 0 0 23 0


163 0 163 0 0 163 0 0 163 0


58 0 58 0 0 58 0 0 58 0


1,273 0 1,273 0 0 1,273 0 0 1,273 0


3,638 0 3,477 0 161 3,638 754 0 2,884 0


1,067 0 1,009 0 58 1,067 346 0 721 0


28 6 22 0 0 28 0 0 28 0


365 0 365 0 0 365 0 0 365 0


180 0 180 0 0 180 0 0 180 0


59 0 0 0 59 59 0 0 59 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


5,337 6 5,053 0 278 5,337 1,100 0 4,237 0


7,390 612 6,500 0 278 7,390 1,236 0 6,154 0Total capital works expenditure


Waste management


Parks, open space and streetscapes


Aerodromes


Off street car parks


Other infrastructure


Total infrastructure


Infrastructure


Roads


Bridges


Footpaths and cycle ways


Drainage


Recreational, leisure and community facilities


Plant, machinery and equipment


Fixtures, fittings and furniture


Computers and telecommunications


Library books


Total plant and equipment


Leasehold improvements


Total buildings


Total property


Plant and equipment


Heritage plant and equipment


Land


Land improvements


Total land


Buildings


Heritage Buildings


Building improvements


Total capital works expenditure


2022


Property


Waste management


Parks, open space and streetscapes


Aerodromes


Off street car parks


Other infrastructure


Total infrastructure


Infrastructure


Roads


Bridges


Footpaths and cycle ways


Drainage


Recreational, leisure and community facilities


Plant, machinery and equipment


Fixtures, fittings and furniture


Computers and telecommunications


Library books


Total plant and equipment


Leasehold improvements


Total buildings


Total property


Plant and equipment


Heritage plant and equipment


Building improvements


Asset Expenditure Types Funding Sources
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2019 2020 2021 2022


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


1,112 1,139 1,167 1,196


99 101 104 107


1,211 1,240 1,271 1,303


216 221 227 233


1,015 1,040 1,066 1,092


Casual 7 7 7 7


1,238 1,268 1,300 1,332


1,167 1,196 1,226 1,257


309 316 324 332


1,476 1,512 1,550 1,589


194 199 204 209


291 298 305 313


Casual 49 50 51 52


534 547 560 574


1,963 2,013 2,064 2,116


239 245 251 257


Casual 26 27 28 29


2,228 2,285 2,343 2,402


552 566 580 595


54 55 56 57


606 621 636 652


7,293 7,473 7,660 7,852


FTE FTE FTE FTE


10.5 10.5 10.5 10.5


1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0


11.5 11.5 11.5 11.5


2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0


12.9 12.9 12.9 12.9


Casual 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


14.9 14.9 14.9 14.9


10.5 10.5 10.5 10.5


4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1


14.6 14.6 14.6 14.6


Permanent - Part time


Permanent - Part time


Assets & Development


Permanent - Full time


Total Assets & Development


Permanent - Part time


Total Strategy & Governance


Culture & Leisure


Corporate Services


Permanent - Full time


Permanent - Full time


Permanent - Part time


Permanent - Part time


Permanent - Part time


Strategy & Governance


Permanent - Full time


Total Environment & Amenity


Total Culture & Leisure


Corporate Services


Permanent - Full time


Total Corporate Services


Permanent - Part time


For the four years ended 30 June 2022


Community Wellbeing


Permanent - Full time


Total Community Wellbeing


Permanent - Part time


Permanent - Part time


Environment & Amenity


Total Community Wellbeing


Total staff expenditure


Community Wellbeing


Permanent - Full time


Pyrenees Shire Council


STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN


Other Information


2. Summary of planned human resources expenditure


Assets & Development


Permanent - Full time


Total Assets & Development


Permanent - Full time


Total Corporate Services
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2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0


3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4


Casual 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6


6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0


25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0


2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6


Casual 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5


28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1


4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0


0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6


4.6 4.6 4.6 4.6


79.7 79.7 79.7 79.7


Culture & Leisure


Permanent - Full time


Total staff numbers


Total Strategy & Governance


Total Culture & Leisure


Permanent - Part time


Permanent - Part time


Strategy & Governance


Permanent - Full time


Total Environment & Amenity


Environment & Amenity


Permanent - Full time


Permanent - Part time


Pyrenees Shire Council Long Term Financial Plan 2018-2028








Minutes – Audit & Risk Committee Meeting  
Tuesday 22 May 2018 at 3:00pm in the Council Chambers 
 


Members: Geoff Price 
Rod Poxon 
Wendy Honeyman (3.15pm)  


  Cr Robert Vance 
Bradley Eade – AFS Auditors 


 


Officers: Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
Evan King – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Douglas Gowans – Director Assets and Development Services 


  Martin Walmsley – Manager Community Wellbeing  
  Kathy Bramwell – Manager Governance, Risk & Compliance 


  Jane Bowker – A/Executive Assistant to the CEO  
 


Guests:  Karen McDevitt and Richard Ainio of Crowe Horwath 
 
Evan King opened the meeting, as Chair.   
 
1. Apologies 


Nil 
 
2. Welcome  
 


 A welcome was extended to Rod Poxon, the new independent member.   
  


 Appreciation was expressed for Cr Michael O’Connor’s representation on the Audit Committee.  
Cr O’Connor passed away this week.   


   


RECOMMENDATION: 
That the outstanding contribution of Cr Michael O’Connor to the Audit & Risk Committee be 
formally recognised and acknowledged. 


 


Moved:  Cr Robert Vance  2nd:  Geoff Price         CARRIED 
 


 Member Maurice Barwick has retired from the Committee and decided not to continue for 
another term.  Appreciation was expressed for the contribution that Maurice has made over his 
time as a member on this Committee.    


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the outstanding contribution of Maurice Barwick, in his capacity as independent member of 
the Audit & Risk Committee, be formally recognised and acknowledged. 


 


Moved:  Geoff Price   2nd:  Cr Robert Vance          CARRIED 
 


 The position of Chair is open for the next 12 months as Geoff Price’s term, as Chair, has expired. 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
That Geoff Price is elected as Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee for the term of 12 months.   


 


Moved:  Cr Robert Vance  2nd:  Rod Poxon          CARRIED 
 
 Geoff Price accepted the position of Chair.  Evan King passed the Chair to Geoff Price.   


 
Geoff expressed sadness over the passing of Cr Michael O’Connor.  He thanked Maurice for his 
representation on this Committee and welcomed Rod Poxon 
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3. Conflict of Interest Declarations 
Nil 
 


4. Confirmation of previous Minutes 
   Meeting held 28 November 2017.  
 


 (Appendix A – Minutes of meeting held on 28 November 2017) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the minutes of the meeting held 28 November 2017 as tabled, be adopted. 
 


Moved:  Cr Robert Vance   2nd:  Rod Poxon          CARRIED 
 


5. Reports 
 
5.1  Worksafe Audit (Kathy Bramwell) 


Worksafe visited Pyrenees Shire Council recently as part of WorkSafe Victoria's proactive 
intervention program to provide guidance and assess and enforce compliance with specific 
health and safety laws.  
 


This visit is undertaken as part of the Occupational Violence & Aggression and Bullying in 
Disability Services project. 
 


 (Appendix B – Worksafe Entry Reports) 


 
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit Committee notes for information the Worksafe Entry Reports for 5 Lawrence 
Street Beaufort, Pratt Street Beaufort, 122 High Street Avoca and 186 High Street Avoca. 


 


Moved:  Cr Robert Vance  2nd: Rod Poxon           CARRIED 
 
5.2 AFS - Internal Audit Report 2018-02 - Long Term Financial Planning February (Brad Eade/Evan 


King) 
 AFS conducted an internal audit to confirm: 


 a long term financial planning model exists and planning has been performed for 
(5/10/25 years); 


 the ability exists to model impacts of today’s financial decisions on the future;  and 


 the use of financial sustainability indicators. 
 


(Appendix C – Long Term Financial Report) 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 


 That the Audit Committee receives the AFS - Internal Audit Report 2018-02 Long Term Financial 
Planning February 2018 


 


 Moved:  Rod Poxon  2nd:  Wendy Honeyman         CARRIED 
 
5.3 AFS – Past Issues Review 2018-01 (Brad Eade) 


AFS has conducted a review of actions taken on recommendations from past internal audit 
reports at Pyrenees Shire Council (PSC).  A summary of previous recommendations, 
management’s initial response and the current status has been reviewed. 


 


 (Appendix D – Past Issues Review 2018-01) 


  
RECOMMENDATION: 


 That the Audit Committee receives the AFS – Past Issues Review Report 
 


 Moved:  Cr Robert Vance  2nd:  Wendy Honeyman        CARRIED 
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5.4 Essential Services Commission – Council Compliance with Rate Caps for 2017-18 (Evan King) 


Under Section 10E(1)(a) of the Essential Services Commission Act 2001, the ESC must monitor 
and review Council’s compliance with the rate caps set under Part 8A of the Local Government 
Act 1989.  
 


Under Section 10E(2) of the Essential Services Commission Act 2001, the ESC must prepare an 
annual report on Council’s compliance with the rate caps. 


 


 (Appendix E – Council compliance with the rate caps for 2017-18) 


  
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit Committee notes for information the Essential Services Commission - Council 
Compliance with the Rate Caps for 2017-18. 


   


Moved:  Rod Poxon  2nd:  Wendy Honeyman        CARRIED 
 
5.5 CHSP Audit Outcome (Martin Walmsley) 


  


Australian Aged Care Quality Audit Outcome 
As part of Council’s Service Agreement with both the Commonwealth and State, Council is 
required to meet the National Home Care Standards and is audited by the Australian Aged Care 
Quality Agency every three years, or on demand. 


 


Council was advised in mid-2017 that the Australian Aged Care Quality Agency would undertake 
an audit of Council’s Commonwealth Home Support Programme (CHSP) in November 2017. 


 


On the 16th November 2017, three representatives from the Australian Aged Care Quality 
Agency met with Council staff, including management, Pyrenees Community Care staff, support 
staff and clients to undertake the audit.  The audit involved interviewing staff and clients, 
reviewing documentation and making observations based on 18 Home Care Standards. 


 


Summary of Findings 
Council has now received the Final Quality Review Report which found that Pyrenees 
Community Care successfully met 18 of the 18 expected outcomes of the National Home Care 
Standards.  This is an excellent result for Council and demonstrates the commitment of 
management and staff in ensuring the provision of quality services to our residents. 


  
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit Committee notes the outcome of the Commonwealth Home Support Program 
Audit. 


   


 Moved:  Cr Robert Vance  2nd:  Rod Poxon          CARRIED 
 
5.6  Governance, Culture & Risk Report (Kathy Bramwell) 


 Governance and Compliance 
 Audit Participation 
 Risk Management 
 Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
 MAV Workcare Insurance Scheme 
 Emergency Management and Community Resilience 


  
 (Appendix F – Governance, Culture and Risk Report including:- 


 Procedure for Corporate Compliance;   


 draft Health, Safety & Wellbeing Policy and Statement;  and  


 proposed Designated Workgroups and Health & Safety Representatives V6.0 
  


 RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit Committee receives the Governance, Culture and Risk Report.   
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Moved:  Wendy Honeyman  2nd:  Rod Poxon          CARRIED 
 


5.7 VAGO Audit Strategy Memorandum - For the financial year ending 30 June 2018 (Richard 
Ainio (Crowe Horwath))  


 The purpose of the audit strategy memorandum is:  


 It outlines the planned approach to the audit of the financial report and 
performance statement for the financial year ending 30 June 2018;  and 


 It is the key document for the external auditors to communicate with those charged 
with governance.  


 


 (Appendix G – VAGO Audit Strategy Report) 
  
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit Committee receives the VAGO Audit Strategy Memorandum for financial year 
ending 30 June 2018.  


     
Moved:  Cr Robert Vance  2nd:  Wendy Honeyman         CARRIED 


 
5.8 Interim Management Letter Year Ending 30 June 2018 (Karen McDevitt (Crowe Horwath)) 
  
 (Appendix H – VAGO Interim Management Letter) 


 
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit Committee receives the VAGO Interim Management letter year ending 30 June 
2018. 


     
Moved:  Wendy Honeyman  2nd:  Cr Robert Vance           CARRIED 


 
5.9 AFS Internal Audit Program Status Update (Brad Eade (AFS Auditors)) 


 
 (Appendix I – AFS Internal Audit Program Update) 


 
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit Committee receives the Internal Audit Program Status Update dated May 2018 
     


Moved:  Cr Robert Vance  2nd:  Rod Poxon           CARRIED 
 


5.10 AFS Recent Reports and Publications of Interest to Councils (Brad Eade) 
 
 (Appendix J – AFS Recent Reports and Publications of Interest to Councils) 


 
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit Committee notes for information in the AFS Recent Reports and Publications of 
Interest to Councils. 


     
Moved:  Rod Poxon  2nd:  Cr Robert Vance           CARRIED 
 


 


5.11 Waste Management Update - Ombudsman’s Report (Evan King) 
 
(Appendix K – Ombudsman’s Report on Waste Management Levy) 
 


 RECOMMENDATION 
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That the Audit Committee notes for information the Ombudsman’s Report on Waste 
Management Levy (Wodonga City Council).   
 
Moved:  Rod Poxon  2nd: Cr Robert Vance          CARRIED 


 
5.12 Compliance Update (Evan King) 
 


 Fraud 
 There have been no identified instances of fraud since the last Audit Committee meeting. 
 


 Protected Disclosures 
 Council has not received a protected disclosure since the last Audit Committee meeting. 
 
 RECOMMENDATION: 
 That the Audit Committee notes the information provided in the Compliance Update.  
 
 Moved:  Wendy Honeyman  2nd:  Cr Robert Vance            CARRIED 
   
5.13 CEO’s Report – Current Issues for Pyrenees Shire Council (Jim Nolan) 
 CEO to provide verbal update. 
  


 (Appendix L – CEO’s Report)  
 


 RECOMMENDATION 
That the Audit Committee receives the CEO’s report. 
 
Moved:  Rod Poxon  2nd:  Wendy Honeyman          CARRIED 
  
 


6. General Business - All 
 
Evan King noted that the Local Government Act is being introduced into Parliament this week.   
 


7. Next Meeting 28 August 2018 4.00pm. 
 
 
Meeting closed 4.25pm 


 








Valuer-General Victoria 


Level 10, 2 Lonsdale Street 


Melbourne Victoria 3000 


GPO  Box 527  


Melbourne Victoria 3001 


Telephone:  03 9194 0369 


www.delwp.vic.gov.au 


DX 250639 


 
 


J:\vg\rav\reval2018\Municipalities\Pyrenees\GTC  
 


Valuer-General Victoria Reference: FOL163086 
 
 
 
Mr Jim Nolan 
Chief Executive Officer 
Pyrenees Shire Council 
5 Lawrence Street 
Beaufort VIC 3373 
 
 
Dear Mr Nolan, 


Re: 2018 General Valuation – Certification made to the Minister  


 
Please be advised that the 2018 General Valuation for Pyrenees Shire is finalised and attached is the 
Form 2 summarising the valuation totals. 
 
Auditing throughout the valuation cycle has shown that the valuation for all rateable and non rateable 
leviable property has been made in accordance with the Valuation Best Practice standards as set out in 
the VBP 2018 Specifications Guidelines. Final certification had been based on the valuation figures 
provided for Stage 5 of these Guidelines. 
 
In accordance with Section 7AC of the Valuation of Land Act 1960 (the Act), I certify the General 
Valuation to be generally true and correct. 
 
I will be reporting to the Minister for Planning that the 2018 General Valuation of your municipality is 
generally true and correct with respect to each of the bases of value. 
 
Once the Minister has made his declaration that the valuation is suitable to be adopted and used for the 
period allowed by Section 11 of Part 2 of the Act, a copy will be forwarded to your municipality.  
 
Whilst the General Valuation is considered generally true and correct, there may be a data issues to be 
rectified to satisfy the State Revenue Office (SRO). This office will continue to liaise with you to ensure 
that the data provided to the SRO is in accordance with your memorandum of understanding. 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact Mark Sanderson on 9194 0416. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 


 


ROBERT MARSH 


Valuer-General 
15/05/2018 
Encl. 
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J00643 Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 - Pyrenees Shire Council


➢ Background and objectives


➢ Survey methodology and sampling


➢ Further information


➢ Key findings & recommendations


➢ Summary of findings


➢ Detailed findings


• Key core measure: Overall performance


• Key core measure: Customer service


• Key core measure: Council direction indicators


• Communications


• Individual service areas


• Detailed demographics


➢ Appendix A: Detailed survey tabulations


➢ Appendix B: Further project information
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J00643 Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 - Pyrenees Shire Council


62 56 59


Results shown are index scores out of 100.


Council Small rural State-wide


 


83


44


75
56 67 55


-39
-19 -11The condition of 


local streets and 
footpaths in your 
area


Planning and 
building permits


PerformanceImportance Net differential 


Maintenance of 
unsealed roads


Emergency and disaster management


Elderly support


The appearance of public areas


73


70


69
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J00643 Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 - Pyrenees Shire Council


Welcome to the report of results and recommendations 


for the 2018 State-wide Local Government Community 


Satisfaction Survey for Pyrenees Shire Council.


Each year Local Government Victoria (LGV) 


coordinates and auspices this State-wide Local 


Government Community Satisfaction Survey throughout 


Victorian local government areas. This coordinated 


approach allows for far more cost effective surveying 


than would be possible if councils commissioned 


surveys individually.


Participation in the State-wide Local Government 


Community Satisfaction Survey is optional. Participating 


councils have various choices as to the content of the 


questionnaire and the sample size to be surveyed, 


depending on their individual strategic, financial and 


other considerations.


The main objectives of the survey are to assess the 


performance of Pyrenees Shire Council across a range 


of measures and to seek insight into ways to provide 


improved or more effective service delivery. The survey 


also provides councils with a means to fulfil some of 


their statutory reporting requirements as well as acting 


as a feedback mechanism to LGV.
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J00643 Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 - Pyrenees Shire Council


This survey was conducted by Computer Assisted 


Telephone Interviewing (CATI) as a representative 


random probability survey of residents aged 18+ years 


in Pyrenees Shire Council.


Survey sample matched to the demographic profile of 


Pyrenees Shire Council as determined by the most 


recent ABS population estimates was purchased from 


an accredited supplier of publicly available phone 


records, including up to 40% mobile phone numbers to 


cater to the diversity of residents within Pyrenees Shire 


Council, particularly younger people.


A total of n=400 completed interviews were achieved in 


Pyrenees Shire Council. Survey fieldwork was 


conducted in the period of 1st February – 30th March, 


2018.


The 2018 results are compared with previous years, as 


detailed below: 


• 2017, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period 


of 1st February – 30th March.


• 2016, n=402 completed interviews, conducted in the period 


of 1st February – 30th March.


• 2015, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period 


of 1st February – 30th March.


• 2014, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period 


of 31st January – 11th March.


• 2013, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period 


of 1st February – 24th March.


• 2012, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period 


of 18th May – 30th June.


Minimum quotas of gender within age groups were 


applied during the fieldwork phase. Post-survey 


weighting was then conducted to ensure accurate 


representation of the age and gender profile of the 


Pyrenees Shire Council area.


Any variation of +/-1% between individual results and 


net scores in this report or the detailed survey 


tabulations is due to rounding. In reporting, ‘—’ 


denotes not mentioned and ‘0%’ denotes mentioned by 


less than 1% of respondents. ‘Net’ scores refer to two 


or more response categories being combined into one 


category for simplicity of reporting.
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Within tables and index score charts throughout this 


report, statistically significant differences at the 95% 


confidence level are represented by upward directing 


blue and downward directing red arrows. Significance 


when noted indicates a significantly higher or lower 


result for the analysis group in comparison to the ‘Total’ 


result for the council for that survey question for that 


year. Therefore in the example below:


• The state-wide result is significantly higher than the 


overall result for the council.


• The result among 50-64 year olds is significantly 


lower than for the overall result for the council.


Further, results shown in blue and red indicate 


significantly higher or lower results than in 2017. 


Therefore in the example below:


• The result among 35-49 year olds in the council is 


significantly higher than the result achieved among 


this group in 2017.


• The result among 18-34 year olds in the council is 


significantly lower than the result achieved among 


this group in 2017.


54


57


58


60


67


66


50-64


35-49


Small Rural


Pyrenees


18-34


State-wide


Overall Performance – Index Scores 
(example extract only)


Note: Details on the calculations used to determine statistically significant differences may be found in Appendix B.
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Further information about the report and explanations 


about the State-wide Local Government Community 


Satisfaction Survey can be found in Appendix B, 


including:


➢ Background and objectives


➢ Margins of error


➢ Analysis and reporting


➢ Glossary of terms


Contacts


For further queries about the conduct and reporting of 


the 2018 State-wide Local Government Community 


Satisfaction Survey, please contact JWS Research on 


(03) 8685 8555.
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The overall performance index score of 62 for 


Pyrenees Shire Council represents a two-point 


decrease on the 2017 result. While this is not a 


significant decline, the improvement made in 2017 has 


not been maintained with overall performance now only 


one point above the low point of 61 in 2016. 


➢ Positively, Pyrenees Shire Council’s overall 


performance is rated statistically significantly 


higher (at the 95% confidence interval) than the 


average rating for councils State-wide and in the 


Small Rural group (index scores of 59 and 56 


respectively). 


➢ Residents aged 35 to 49 years (index score of 68) 


are significantly more favourable in their view of 


overall performance compared to the Council 


average. 


➢ Conversely, residents aged 50 to 64 years and 


those in Mt Emu are significantly less favourable in 


their view of overall performance (index scores of 


55 and 50 respectively). Perceptions of overall 


performance among women and residents aged 


18 to 34 years are also significantly less


favourable compared to 2017. 


Around four times as many residents rate Pyrenees 


Shire Council’s overall performance as ‘good’ (35%), 


than those who rate it as ‘poor’ (9%). 


62 56 59


Results shown are index scores out of 100.


Council Small rural State-wide


 
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Review of the core performance measures (as shown 


on page 18) shows that Pyrenees Shire Council’s 


performance decreased (but not all significantly) on all 


measures compared to Council’s own results in 2017.  


➢ Pyrenees Shire Council’s performance significantly


declined on the measures of community 


consultation and engagement (index score of 


55, down five points), making community 


decisions (index score of 57, down five points) 


and overall council direction (index score of 51, 


down four points).


➢ Although the measure of making community 


decisions experienced a significant decrease, this 


area is rated significantly higher than the State-


wide and Small Rural group council averages 


(index scores of 54 and 52 respectively).


➢ Despite a one-point (not significant) decrease on 


the measure of sealed local roads (index score of 


54), this area is rated significantly higher than the 


Small Rural group council average (index scores 


of 49); and is rated similar to the State-wide


average (index score of 53).


➢ While Pyrenees Shire Council’s performance on 


advocacy decreased (index score of 56, down 


three points, not significant), this core measure is 


rated significantly higher than the Small Rural 


group council average (index score of 53). 


There are also notable differences across 


demographic cohorts within Pyrenees Shire Council.


➢ On the measures of community consultation 


and engagement and making community 


decisions residents of Avoca and DeCameron 


rate council significantly higher than average; 


whereas residents of Mt Emu and those aged 50 


to 64 years rate council significantly lower than 


average. 


➢ On the measure of sealed local roads (index 


score of 54), residents aged 18 to 34 years rate 


council significantly lower than average (index 


score of 42). 


➢ On the measure of advocacy (index score of 56),


residents of Mt Emu and those aged 50 to 64 


years rate council significantly lower than average 


(both with an index score of 49).


In the area of customer service (index score of 73), 


Pyrenees Shire Council is rated significantly higher 


than the Small Rural group council average (index 


score of 69), but is not rated significantly different to 


the State-wide council average (70). This core 


performance measure is also Pyrenees Shire Council’s 


best performing area.
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Just under three-quarters (73%) of Pyrenees Shire 


Council residents have had recent contact with Council. 


This is higher than 2017 (68%) but not significantly so. 


Contact levels continue to trend upward since their 


lowest level in 2016 (62%), with the current level 


equalling the highest level in 2012. 


➢ Notably, contact levels are significantly higher than 


the State-wide and Small Rural group council 


averages (63% and 66% respectively). 


Residents of Avoca and DeCameron and those aged 


35 to 49 and 50 to 64 years equally had the most 


contact with council (76%) in 2018. Conversely, 


residents aged 18 to 34 years had the least contact 


with council (66%). While there are no significant 


differences in contact across the demographic cohorts, 


residents of Avoca and DeCameron had significantly 


more contact compared to 2017.


The main methods of contacting Council are ‘by 


telephone’ and ‘in-person’ (44% and 42% respectively). 


These are also the primary methods most recently used.  


Overall, newsletters sent via mail (49%) are considered 


the best way for Council to inform residents about news, 


information and upcoming events, with no significant 


differences in residents views among those aged either 


over or under 50 years. 


Pyrenees Shire Council’s customer service index of 


73 is one point down on the result for 2017, but this is 


not a significant decline. As mentioned previously, this 


area is rated significantly higher than the Small Rural 


group council average (index score of 69), but is not 


rated significantly different to the State-wide council 


average (70). 


Council’s performance on customer service has 


remained relatively stable after slowly building up 


performance since 2013, with current performance 


one point down on Council’s peak result of 74 


achieved in 2017. 


➢ Just under two-fifths of residents (37%) rate 


Council’s customer service as ‘very good’. A 


further third (32%) rate it as ‘good’, with one in 


five (20%) rating it as ‘average’.


➢ Of note, perceptions of customer service among 


residents of Mt Emu are significantly lower than 


the council average (index score of 63), and also 


compared with 2017 (index score of 78).  
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While Pyrenees Shire Council experienced declines 


across all measures in 2018, customer service is the 


area where Council has performed most strongly 


overall (index score of 73). 


Despite exhibiting a significant decline in 2018, 


making community decisions (index score of 57) is 


still rated significantly higher than the State-wide and 


Small Rural group council averages (index scores of 


54 and 52 respectively). 


Similarly, while the core measure of advocacy 


declined slightly in 2018 (index score of 56), this 


service area is still performing comparatively well and 


is  rated significantly higher than the Small Rural 


group council average (index score of 53). 


Outside of the core performance measures, the top 


performing service area for Pyrenees Shire Council is 


emergency disaster management (index score of 


73). 


➢ Of note, this area is also one of the top three 


most important areas as rated by residents. 


➢ Two other service areas that remain in Council’s 


top three performing areas despite experiencing 


significant declines compared to 2017 are elderly 


support services and appearance of public 


areas (index scores of 70 and 69). 


While not in the top three rated areas, an additional 


service area that is performing comparatively well is 


planning and building permits (index score of 55), 


which is rated significantly higher than both the State-


wide and Small Rural group council averages (index 


scores of 52 and 51 respectively).


➢ Of note, while this service area is performing 


relatively well, it is not considered of high 


importance by residents in comparison to other 


service areas. 
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Perceptions of Council experienced three 


significant declines in performance index scores in 


the past year. 


While performance across all measures is not rated 


significantly lower than State-wide and Small Rural 


group council averages, in terms of priorities for the 


coming 12 months, Council should focus attention on 


service areas that significantly declined in 2018. 


Two of the areas that stand out as being most in need 


of Council attention are community consultation and 


engagement and making community decisions,


with both these measures significantly declining by five 


points compared to their 2017 results. While these 


measures continue to perform well in comparison to 


State-wide and Small Rural group council averages, 


Council should aim to shore up these performance 


areas. 


Although the core measure of sealed local roads did 


not significantly decline, this represents a further area 


Council should aim to improve, especially as sealed 


road maintenance (20%) was the most frequently 


cited area that residents think Council needs to focus 


on to improve its performance. 


Further, this core service area and related service 


areas are also the key areas where stated importance 


exceeds rated performance by more than 10 points. 


➢ Sealed roads (margin of 39 points).


➢ Condition of local streets and footpaths 


(margin of 19 points).


More generally, consideration should be given to 
residents of Mt Emu and those aged 50 to 64 years 
who appear to be most driving negative opinion in 
2018. 


It is also important not to ignore, and to learn from, 


what is working amongst other groups, especially 


residents of Avoca and DeCameron and those aged 


35 to 49 years, and use these lessons to build 


performance experience and perceptions.


Further insights for focus and improvement can be 


gained from the regression analysis on pages 30-


34. In summary, good communication and 


transparency with residents about decisions the 


Council has made in the Pyrenees community’s 


interest; better community consultation and 


engagement, and improvements in sealed and 


unsealed roads could all help drive up overall opinion 


of the Council’s performance. 
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An approach we recommend is to further mine the 


survey data to better understand the profile of these 


over and under-performing demographic groups. This 


can be achieved via additional consultation and data 


interrogation, self-mining the SPSS data provided, or 


via the dashboard portal available to the council. 


Please note that the category descriptions for the 


coded open ended responses are generic summaries 


only. We recommend further analysis of the detailed 


cross tabulations and the actual verbatim responses, 


with a view to understanding the responses of the key 


gender and age groups, especially any target groups 


identified as requiring attention.


A personal briefing by senior JWS Research 


representatives is also available to assist in 


providing both explanation and interpretation of 


the results. Please contact JWS Research on 03 


8685 8555.
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Higher results in 2018
(Significantly higher result than 2017) • None applicable


Lower results in 2018
(Significantly lower result than 2017)


• Community consultation and 


engagement


• Making community decisions


• Overall council direction


• Elderly support services


• Appearance of public areas


Most favourably disposed 


towards Council
• Avoca and DeCameron residents


• Residents aged 35 to 49 years


Least favourably disposed 


towards Council
• Residents aged 50 to 64 years


• Mt Emu residents


• Waste management


• Recreational facilities


• Business and 


community 


development
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62 63 63 62 61
64


62
59 59 58 58


56


60


55
58 58


56 57
55


59
5657 57 56


62
57


56 55 54 55 54


72


68
71 72 72


74 73


54 54 54 54 54 55


51


2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


Sealed 


Local 


Roads


Community 


Consultation


Customer 


Service
Overall 


Council 


Direction


Overall 


Performance
Advocacy Making 


Community 


Decisions
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Performance Measures
Pyrenees  


2018


Pyrenees  


2017


Small 


Rural  


2018


State-


wide


2018


Highest 


score


Lowest 


score


OVERALL PERFORMANCE 62 64 56 59
Aged 35-49 


years
Mt Emu


COMMUNITY CONSULTATION
(Community consultation and 


engagement)


55 60 54 55
Avoca and 


DeCameron
Mt Emu


ADVOCACY
(Lobbying on behalf of the community)


56 59 53 54
Aged 65+ 


years


Aged 50-


64 years


MAKING COMMUNITY


DECISIONS (Decisions made in the 


interest of the community)


57 62 52 54
Avoca and 


DeCameron
Mt Emu


SEALED LOCAL ROADS 
(Condition of sealed local roads)


54 55 49 53
Aged 35-49 


years


Aged 18-


34 years


CUSTOMER SERVICE 73 74 69 70
Aged 35-49 


years
Mt Emu


OVERALL COUNCIL DIRECTION 51 55 50 52
Avoca and 


DeCameron


Aged 50-


64 years
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16


12


11


8


11


37


35


29


24


32


32


32


33


28


27


33


29


20


9


15


15


10


16


5


6


9


5


6


11


5


1


7


18


12


2


1


Overall Performance


Community Consultation


Advocacy


Making Community
Decisions


Sealed Local Roads


Customer Service


% Very good Good Average Poor Very poor Can't say


Key Measures Summary Results


17 65 14 5Overall Council Direction


%
Improved Stayed the same Deteriorated Can't say
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16


12


15


9


Planning & building permits


Emergency & disaster mngt


Total household use


Personal use


%


Experience of Services


Q4. In the last 12 months, have you or has any member of your household used or experienced any of the following 
services provided by Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 13 Councils asked group: 2
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83


75


67


79


Unsealed roads


Local streets & footpaths


Planning & building permits


Waste management


44


56


55


69


Importance Performance Net Differential


Service areas where importance exceeds performance by 10 points or more, 


suggesting further investigation is necessary:


-39


-19


-11


-11
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81


83


75


79


75


70


72


67


70


68


82


84


78


79


74


71


71


68


68


69


82


81


76


77


74


70


70


67


67


69


79


n/a


77


78


72


72


71


67


n/a


n/a


82


82


76


78


75


70


69


67


68


67


82


80


75


80


74


n/a


72


71


70


68


2018 Priority Area Importance


83


82


79


79


75


72


72


71


70


67


Unsealed roads


Emergency & disaster mngt


Waste management


Elderly support services


Local streets & footpaths


Family support services


Appearance of public areas


Recreational facilities


Bus/community dev./tourism


Planning & building permits


Q1. Firstly, how important should [RESPONSIBILITY AREA] be as a responsibility for Council? 
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 28 Councils asked group: 5
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation of significant differences.


2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012







23


J00643 Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 - Pyrenees Shire Council


45


33


49


39


31


25


27


21


24


21


39


51


33


39


43


43


40


45


39


40


14


14


12


16


18


29


24


29


26


22


1


1


4


3


6


2


5


4


7


11


1


1


1


1


1


3


2


1


4


1


Unsealed roads


Waste management


Emergency & disaster mngt


Elderly support services


Local streets & footpaths


Appearance of public areas


Family support services


Recreational facilities


Bus/community dev./tourism


Planning & building permits


%


Extremely important Very important Fairly important Not that important Not at all important Can't say


Individual Service Areas Importance


Q1. Firstly, how important should [RESPONSIBILITY AREA] be as a responsibility for Council? 
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 28 Councils asked group: 5
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2018 Priority Area Performance


74


74


73


75


70


72


67


62


57


59


60


54


55


44


73


69


70


70


68


65


60


56


58


55


56


54


54


45


69


70


71


71


68


69


62


57


56


57


58


54


55


43


71


70


72


73


67


72


n/a


57


58


56


58


51


56


46


73


71


70


71


66


72


66


n/a


n/a


58


59


58


n/a


44


69


72


73


72


n/a


70


64


n/a


57


58


59


57


n/a


47


73


70


69


69


68


68


62


57


56


56


55


55


54


44


Emergency & disaster mngt


Elderly support services


Appearance of public areas


Waste management


Family support services


Recreational facilities


Bus/community dev./tourism


Community decisions


Local streets & footpaths


Lobbying


Consultation & engagement


Planning & building permits


Sealed local roads


Unsealed roads


2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012


Q2. How has Council performed on [RESPONSIBILITY AREA] over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64 Councils asked group: 18 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation of significant differences.
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Individual Service Areas Performance


23


20


20


26


18


13


12


10


11


12


8


11


9


5


43


44


40


34


32


32


30


32


32


29


32


24


22


23


17


24


21


18


16


31


20


29


29


28


33


27


25


30


10


4


7


4


4


10


3


14


16


15


10


15


12


21


4


4


3


2


3


3


2


7


11


9


6


5


7


18


2


4


8


16


27


11


32


7


2


7


12


18


25


3


Waste management


Appearance of public areas


Recreational facilities


Emergency & disaster mngt


Elderly support services


Bus/community dev./tourism


Family support services


Local streets & footpaths


Sealed local roads


Consultation & engagement


Community decisions


Lobbying


Planning & building permits


Unsealed roads


%
Very good Good Average Poor Very poor Can't say


Q2. How has Council performed on [RESPONSIBILITY AREA] over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64 Councils asked group: 18
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Significantly Higher than 


State-wide Average


Significantly Lower than 


State-wide Average


• Planning permits 


• Making community 


decisions


• None Applicable
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Significantly Higher than 


Group Average


Significantly Lower than 


Group Average


• Lobbying


• Bus/community dev./tourism


• Planning permits 


• Unsealed roads


• Making community 


decisions


• Sealed local roads


• Appearance of public areas
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Top Three Most Important Service Areas
(Highest to lowest, i.e. 1. = most important)


Pyrenees Shire 


Council


1. Unsealed roads


2. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


3. Waste 


management 


Metropolitan


1. Waste 


management 


2. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


3. Community 


decisions


Interface


1. Traffic 


management 


2. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


3. Waste 


management 


Regional Centres


1. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


2. Sealed roads 


3. Community 


decisions


Large Rural


1. Sealed roads 


2. Unsealed roads


3. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


Small Rural


1. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


2. Waste 


management 


3. Community 


decisions


Bottom Three Least Important Service Areas 
(Lowest to highest, i.e. 1. = least important)


Pyrenees Shire 


Council


1. Planning permits 


2. Bus/community 


dev./tourism


3. Recreational 


facilities 


Metropolitan


1. Bus/community 


dev./tourism


2. Community & 


cultural


3. Slashing & weed 


control 


Interface


1. Tourism 


development 


2. Community & 


cultural


3. Bus/community 


dev./tourism


Regional Centres


1. Community & 


cultural


2. Art centres & 


libraries


3. Lobbying


Large Rural


1. Community & 


cultural


2. Art centres & 


libraries


3. Traffic 


management 


Small Rural


1. Community & 


cultural


2. Art centres & 


libraries


3. Tourism 


development 
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Top Three Performing Service Areas
(Highest to lowest, i.e. 1. = highest performance)


Pyrenees Shire 


Council


1. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


2. Elderly support 


services 


3. Appearance of 


public areas


Metropolitan


1. Art centres & 


libraries


2. Waste 


management 


3. Recreational 


facilities 


Interface


1. Art centres & 


libraries


2. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


3. Recreational 


facilities 


Regional Centres


1. Art centres & 


libraries


2. Appearance of 


public areas


3. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


Large Rural


1. Art centres & 


libraries


2. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


3. Appearance of 


public areas


Small Rural


1. Art centres & 


libraries


2. Emergency & 


disaster mngt


3. Appearance of 


public areas


Bottom Three Performing Service Areas 
(Lowest to highest, i.e. 1. = lowest performance)


Pyrenees Shire 


Council


1. Unsealed roads


2. Sealed roads 


3. Planning permits 


Metropolitan


1. Population growth 


2. Planning permits 


3. Town planning 


policy 


Interface


1. Unsealed roads


2. Population growth 


3. Traffic 


management 


Regional Centres


1. Parking facilities 


2. Community 


decisions


3. Unsealed roads


Large Rural


1. Unsealed roads


2. Sealed roads 


3. Planning permits 


Small Rural


1. Unsealed roads


2. Sealed roads 


3. Population growth 
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To predict a respondent’s score on a question related 


to overall performance, based on knowledge of their 


performance scores for individual areas, we use 


regression analysis. For example, suppose we are 


interested in predicting which areas of local 


government responsibility could influence a person’s 


opinion on overall council performance. The 


independent variables would be areas of responsibility 


tested (e.g. community consultation, traffic 


management, etc.) and the dependent variable would 


be overall performance.


The stronger the correlation between the dependent 


variable (overall opinion) and individual areas of 


responsibility, the closer the scores will fall to the 


regression line and the more accurate the prediction. 


Multiple regression can predict one variable on the 


basis of several other variables. Therefore, we can test 


perceptions of council’s overall performance to 


investigate which set of areas are influencing 


respondents' opinions.


In the chart of the regression results, the horizontal 


axis represents the council performance index for each 


area of responsibility. Areas plotted on the right-side 


have a higher performance index than those on the 


left.


The vertical axis represents the Standardised Beta 


Coefficient from the multiple regression performed. 


This measures the contribution of each variable (i.e. 


each area) to the model, with a larger Beta value 


indicating a greater effect on overall performance. 


Therefore areas of responsibility located near the top 


of the following chart are more likely to have an impact 


on respondent’s overall rating, than the areas closest 


to the axis.


The regressions are shown on the following three 


charts. The first chart shows a regression analysis of


all the service areas chosen by the Council. However, 


this model should be interpreted with caution because 


some of the data are not normally distributed and not 


all items have linear correlations. 


Therefore, in the charts that follow, a significant 


regression model of fewer items with a Standardised 


Beta score close to or higher than ±0.1 was run to 


determine the key predictors that have a moderate to 


strong influence on overall performance perceptions. 


The third chart is an enlarged version of the second 


chart, with key findings highlighted.


The results are then discussed according to the 


findings of these key service areas. Some findings 


from the full regression list may be included in the 


discussion if they are of interest.
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The multiple regression analysis model of all question items above has an R-squared value of 0.585 and adjusted R-square value of 0.570, which means that 59% of the variance in 
community perceptions of overall performance can be predicted from these variables. The overall model effect was statistically significant at p = 0.0001, F = 38.80). However, this 
model should be interpreted with caution because not all service areas had linear correlations. We recommend you use the regression model of reduced factors which as follows.
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The performance questions were analysed using Exploratory Factor Analysis to determine the key factors or ‘themes’ to emerge from the questions. Questions with reasonable 
linearity and low correlations were selected from each theme and a multiple regression model was performed on these seven items against the over0ll performance ratings of 400 
responses. The multiple regression analysis model above has an R-squared value of 0.578 and adjusted R-square value of 0.570, which means that 58% of the variance in 
community perceptions of overall performance can be predicted from these variables. The overall model effect was statistically significant at p = 0.0001, F = 67.02).
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The performance questions were analysed using Exploratory Factor Analysis to determine the key factors or ‘themes’ to emerge from the questions. Questions with reasonable 
linearity and low correlations were selected from each theme and a multiple regression model was performed on these seven items against the over0ll performance ratings of 400 
responses. The multiple regression analysis model above has an R-squared value of 0.578 and adjusted R-square value of 0.570, which means that 58% of the variance in 
community perceptions of overall performance can be predicted from these variables. The overall model effect was statistically significant at p = 0.0001, F = 67.02).
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The individual service areas that have the strongest 


influence on the overall performance rating are: 


➢ Decisions made in the interest of the community


➢ Community consultation and engagement


➢ The condition of local sealed roads (excluding 


VicRoads)


Other key areas with a positive potential influence on 


overall performance include:


➢ The appearance of public areas


➢ Waste management


➢ Lobbying on behalf of the community


➢ Planning and building permits


Looking at key service areas only, waste management 


has the strongest positive performance index and a 


strong positive influence on the overall performance 


rating. Currently, Pyrenees Shire Council is performing 


very well in this area (performance index of 70) and, 


while it should remain a focus, there is greater work to 


be done elsewhere.


The Council is also performing very well in the 


appearance of public areas (68), an area which also 


has a strong positive influence on overall performance 


perceptions. The Council also rates very highly in 


emergency and disaster management, but this area 


has a somewhat weak influence on overall perceptions.


Pyrenees Shire Council’s community consultation and 


engagement; the decisions it makes in the 


community’s interest; as well as the condition of sealed 


local roads (excluding VicRoads highways) have lower 


(though still positive) performance ratings overall. With 


their strong influence over overall performance 


perceptions, continuing efforts in these areas has the 


capacity to lift Pyrenees Shire Council’s overall 


performance rating. (These areas have performance 


indices of 55-56). 


Maintenance of unsealed roads has the lowest 


performance index (44), and is an area which has 


strong influence on overall performance perceptions.


In summary, good communication and transparency 


with residents about decisions the Council has made in 


the Pyrenees community’s interest, better community 


consultation and engagement, and improvements in 


sealed and unsealed roads could all help drive up 


overall opinion of the Council’s performance. 
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20


10


10


9


6


6


5


5


5


5


Sealed Road Maintenance


Community Consultation


Communication


Unsealed Road Maintenance


Recreational Facilities


Waste Management


Financial Management


Public Areas - General Maintenance


Town Planning/Permits/Red Tape


Nothing


2018 Areas for Improvement


%


Q17. What does Pyrenees Shire Council MOST need to do to improve its performance?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 36  Councils asked group: 9
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Areas for 


Improvement


• Sealed Road Maintenance: 20% (up 1 point from 2017)


• Community Consultation: 10% (up 2 points from 2017)


• Communication: 10% (down 3 points from 2017)
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2018 Overall Performance
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Q3. ON BALANCE, for the last twelve months, how do you feel about the performance of Pyrenees Shire Council, not just on one 
or two issues, BUT OVERALL across all responsibility areas?  Has it been very good, good, average, poor or very poor? 
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64 Councils asked group: 18 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.


2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
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Small Rural


Avoca and DeCameron


Beaufort, Ercildoune


Mt Emu
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18-34


35-49
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65+


% Very good Good Average Poor Very poor Can't say


2018 Overall Performance


Q3. ON BALANCE, for the last twelve months, how do you feel about the performance of Pyrenees Shire Council, not just on one 
or two issues, BUT OVERALL across all responsibility areas?  Has it been very good, good, average, poor or very poor? 
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64  Councils asked group: 18 
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Overall contact with 


Pyrenees Shire Council
• 73%, up 5 points on 2017 


Most contact with Pyrenees 


Shire Council
• Avoca and DeCameron residents


• Aged 35-64 years


Least contact with Pyrenees 


Shire Council
• Aged 18-34 years


Customer service rating • Index score of 73, down 1 point on 
2017 


Most satisfied with customer 


service
• Aged 35-49 years


Least satisfied with 


customer service
• Mt Emu residents







43


J00643 Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 - Pyrenees Shire Council


2018 Contact with Council
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63
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35-49


50-64
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Pyrenees
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65+


Mt Emu


Small Rural


18-34


State-wide


Q5a. Have you or any member of your household had any recent contact with Pyrenees Shire Council in any of the following ways?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21 Councils asked group: 5 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Contact with Council


73
70


68
71


62


68


73


2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


Have had contact


%


Q5a. Have you or any member of your household had any recent contact with Pyrenees Shire Council in any of the following ways?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21 Councils asked group: 5







45


J00643 Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 - Pyrenees Shire Council


2018 Method of Contact
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Message
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Via 
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In 


Person


By 


Telephone


Q5a. Have you or any member of your household had any recent contact with Pyrenees Shire Council in any of the following ways? 
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21 Councils asked group: 5 
Note: Respondents could name multiple contacts methods so responses may add to more than 100%
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2018 Most Recent Contact
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By 
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Q5b. What was the method of contact for the most recent contact you had with Pyrenees Shire Council?
Base: All respondents who have had contact with Council in the last 12 months. 
Councils asked state-wide: 21 Councils asked group: 5
Note: Respondents could name multiple contacts methods so responses may add to more than 100%
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2018 Customer Service Rating
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67
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012


Q5c. Thinking of the most recent contact, how would you rate Pyrenees Shire Council for customer service? Please 
keep in mind we do not mean the actual outcome but rather the actual service that was received. 
Base: All respondents who have had contact with Council in the last 12 months. 
Councils asked state-wide: 64 Councils asked group: 18
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2017 Pyrenees
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2012 Pyrenees


State-wide


Small Rural


Avoca and DeCameron


Beaufort, Ercildoune


Mt Emu


Men


Women


18-34


35-49


50-64


65+


% Very good Good Average Poor Very poor Can't say


2018 Customer Service Rating


Q5c. Thinking of the most recent contact, how would you rate Pyrenees Shire Council for customer service? Please keep 
in mind we do not mean the actual outcome but rather the actual service that was received. 
Base: All respondents who have had contact with Council in the last 12 months. 
Councils asked state-wide: 64 Councils asked group: 18
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In writing
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100
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66


65


100


86


73
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2018 Customer Service Rating


Q5c. Thinking of the most recent contact, how would you rate Pyrenees Shire Council for customer service? Please 
keep in mind we do not mean the actual outcome but rather the actual service that was received. 
Base: All respondents who have had contact with Council in the last 12 months. 
Councils asked state-wide: 21  Councils asked group: 5 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
*Caution: small sample size < n=30


2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
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2018 Customer Service Rating
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By social media*


Via website*


In person


By email


By telephone


In writing*


% Very good Good Average Poor Very poor Can't say


Q5c. Thinking of the most recent contact, how would you rate Pyrenees Shire Council for customer service? Please keep in 
mind we do not mean the actual outcome but rather the actual service that was received. 
Base: All respondents who have had contact with Council in the last 12 months. 
Councils asked state-wide: 21 Councils asked group: 5
*Caution: small sample size < n=30
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Council direction


Most satisfied with council 
direction


Least satisfied with council 
direction


• 65%,stayed about the same, down 1 point on 2017 


• 17% improved, down 2 points on 2017


• 14% deteriorated, up 4 points on 2017 


• Avoca and DeCameron residents


• Aged 50-64 years
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2018 Overall Direction
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Q6. Over the last 12 months, what is your view of the direction of Pyrenees Shire Council’s overall performance? 
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64 Councils asked group: 18
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Overall Direction


Q6. Over the last 12 months, what is your view of the direction of Pyrenees Shire Council’s overall performance? 
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64 Councils asked group: 18
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Note: Website and text message formats again did not rate as highly as other modes of communication, although 


further analysis is recommended to understand the demographic preference profiles of the various different forms of 


communication.


Greatest change since 


2017 • Newsletter sent via email (+5) 


Overall preferred forms of 


communication


Preferred forms of 


communication among 


over 50s


Preferred forms of 


communication among 


under 50s


• Newsletter sent via mail (49%) 


• Newsletter sent via mail (49%) 


• Newsletter sent via mail (48%) 
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?
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%
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Q13. If Pyrenees Shire Council was going to get in touch with you to inform you about Council news and information and upcoming 
events, which ONE of the following is the BEST way to communicate with you?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 26  Councils asked group: 7 
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2018 Under 50s Best Form
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Q13. If Pyrenees Shire Council was going to get in touch with you to inform you about Council news and information and 
upcoming events, which ONE of the following is the BEST way to communicate with you?
Base: All respondents aged under 50. Councils asked state-wide: 26  Councils asked group: 7 
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2018 Over 50s Best Form
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Q13. If Pyrenees Shire Council was going to get in touch with you to inform you about Council news and information and 
upcoming events, which ONE of the following is the BEST way to communicate with you?
Base: All respondents aged over 50. Councils asked state-wide: 26  Councils asked group: 7 
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2018 Consultation and Engagement Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘community consultation and engagement’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64  Councils asked group: 18 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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% Very good Good Average Poor Very poor Can't say


2018 Consultation and Engagement Performance


Q2. How has Council performed on ‘community consultation and engagement’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64  Councils asked group: 18 
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2018 Lobbying Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘lobbying on behalf of the community’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64  Councils asked group: 18 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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% Very good Good Average Poor Very poor Can't say


2018 Lobbying Performance


Q2. How has Council performed on ‘lobbying on behalf of the community’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64  Councils asked group: 18 
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2018 Community Decisions Made Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘decisions made in the interest of the community’ over the last 12 months?
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67


J00643 Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 - Pyrenees Shire Council


2018 Sealed Local Roads Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘the condition of sealed local roads in your area’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64  Councils asked group: 18 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘the condition of sealed local roads in your area’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64  Councils asked group: 18 
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2018 Streets and Footpaths Importance
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘the condition of local streets and footpaths in your area’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21  Councils asked group: 4 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Streets and Footpaths Importance


Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘the condition of local streets and footpaths in your area’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21  Councils asked group: 4 
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2018 Streets and Footpaths Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘the condition of local streets and footpaths in your area’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 30  Councils asked group: 7 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘the condition of local streets and footpaths in your area’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 30  Councils asked group: 7 
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2018 Family Support Importance
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘family support services’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 20  Councils asked group: 2 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘family support services’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 20  Councils asked group: 2 
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2018 Family Support Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘family support services’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 30  Councils asked group: 6 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Elderly Support Importance
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘elderly support services’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21  Councils asked group: 5 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘elderly support services’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21  Councils asked group: 5 
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2018 Elderly Support Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘elderly support services’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 32  Councils asked group: 9 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Elderly Support Performance


Q2. How has Council performed on ‘elderly support services’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 32  Councils asked group: 9 
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2018 Recreational Facilities Importance
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘recreational facilities’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 26  Councils asked group: 5 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Recreational Facilities Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘recreational facilities’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 36  Councils asked group: 8 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Public Areas Importance
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘the appearance of public areas’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 26  Councils asked group: 5 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Public Areas Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘the appearance of public areas’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 35  Councils asked group: 9 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Waste Management Importance
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘waste management’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 26  Councils asked group: 5 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Waste Management Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘waste management’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 36  Councils asked group: 9 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘waste management’ over the last 12 months?
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2018 Business/Development/Tourism Importance
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘business and community development and tourism’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 18  Councils asked group: 5 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘business and community development and tourism’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 18  Councils asked group: 5 
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2018 Business/Development/Tourism Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘business and community development and tourism’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 23  Councils asked group: 6 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘business and community development and tourism’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 23  Councils asked group: 6 
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2018 Planning & Building Permits Importance
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘planning and building permits’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 18  Councils asked group: 4 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘planning and building permits’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 18  Councils asked group: 4 







99


J00643 Community Satisfaction Survey 2018 - Pyrenees Shire Council


2018 Planning & Building Permits Performance
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Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 24  Councils asked group: 5 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Planning & Building Permits Performance


Q2. How has Council performed on ‘planning and building permits’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 24  Councils asked group: 5 
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2018 Disaster Management Importance
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Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘emergency and disaster management’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 17  Councils asked group: 3 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Disaster Management Importance


Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘emergency and disaster management’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 17  Councils asked group: 3 
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2018 Disaster Management Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘emergency and disaster management’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21  Councils asked group: 4 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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% Very good Good Average Poor Very poor Can't say


2018 Disaster Management Performance


Q2. How has Council performed on ‘emergency and disaster management’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21  Councils asked group: 4 
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2018 Unsealed Roads Importance


87


85


84


84


84


83


82


82


81


80


80


80


Mt Emu


Women


50-64


Small Rural


Avoca and DeCameron


Pyrenees


65+


18-34


35-49


Men


Beaufort, Ercildoune


State-wide


85


85


82


81


80


81


79


80


84


77


80


79


86


84


84


81


78


82


80


78


83


79


82


79


84


83


83


82


79


82


81


80


82


80


82


78


83


82


79


n/a


77


79


77


81


82


77


80


78


n/a


84


83


n/a


n/a


82


80


81


83


80


n/a


81


n/a


83


82


n/a


n/a


82


81


78


86


81


n/a


80


2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012


Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘maintenance of unsealed roads in your area’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 13  Councils asked group: 4 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Unsealed Roads Importance


Q1. Firstly, how important should ‘maintenance of unsealed roads in your area’ be as a responsibility for Council?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 13  Councils asked group: 4 
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2018 Unsealed Roads Performance
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Q2. How has Council performed on ‘maintenance of unsealed roads in your area’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21  Councils asked group: 7 
Note: Please see page 6 for explanation about significant differences.
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2018 Unsealed Roads Performance


Q2. How has Council performed on ‘maintenance of unsealed roads in your area’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 21  Councils asked group: 7 
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Please note that for the reason of simplifying reporting, interlocking age and gender reporting has not 


been included in this report. Interlocking age and gender analysis is still available in the dashboard 


and data tables provided alongside this report.


54%
46%
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Women


7%


11%


22%


27%


34%


18-24


25-34


35-49


50-64


65+


Gender Age


S3. [Record gender] / S4. To which of the following age groups do you belong?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 64  Councils asked group: 18 
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%


S6. Which of the following BEST describes your household? 
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 9  Councils asked group: 1 
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S5. How long have you lived in this area?/How long have you owned a property in this area?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 12 Councils asked group: 1 
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S5. How long have you lived in this area?/How long have you owned a property in this area?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 12  Councils asked group: 1 
Note: For 2016, the code frame expanded out “10+ years”, to include “10-20 years”,”20-30 years” and “30+ years”. As such, 
this chart presents the last three years of data only.
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Q9. Thinking of the property you live in, do you or other members of your household own this property, or is it a rental 
property?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked state-wide: 1  Councils asked group: 1 
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The survey was revised in 2012.  As a result:


➢ The survey is now conducted as a representative 


random probability survey of residents aged 18 


years or over in local councils, whereas previously 


it was conducted as a ‘head of household’ survey.


➢ As part of the change to a representative resident 


survey, results are now weighted post survey to 


the known population distribution of Pyrenees 


Shire Council according to the most recently 


available Australian Bureau of Statistics population 


estimates, whereas the results were previously not 


weighted.


➢ The service responsibility area performance 


measures have changed significantly and the 


rating scale used to assess performance has also 


changed.


As such, the results of the 2012 State-wide Local 


Government Community Satisfaction Survey should be 


considered as a benchmark. Please note that 


comparisons should not be made with the State-wide 


Local Government Community Satisfaction Survey 


results from 2011 and prior due to the methodological 


and sampling changes. Comparisons in the period 


2012-2018 have been made throughout this report 


as appropriate.
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Demographic


Actual 


survey 


sample 


size


Weighted 


base


Maximum 


margin of error 


at 95% 


confidence 


interval


Pyrenees Shire 
Council 400 400 +/-4.7


Men
176 215 +/-7.3


Women
224 185 +/-6.4


Avoca and 
DeCameron 135 129 +/-8.4


Beaufort, Ercildoune
198 205 +/-6.9


Mt Emu
67 66 +/-12.0


18-34 years
22 69 +/-21.3


35-49 years
64 88 +/-12.3


50-64 years
140 106 +/-8.2


65+ years
174 137 +/-7.3


The sample size for the 2018 State-wide Local Government 


Community Satisfaction Survey for Pyrenees Shire Council 


was 400. Unless otherwise noted, this is the total sample 


base for all reported charts and tables.


The maximum margin of error on a sample of approximately 


400 interviews is +/-4.7% at the 95% confidence level for 


results around 50%. Margins of error will be larger for any 


sub-samples. As an example, a result of 50% can be read 


confidently as falling midway in the range 45.3% - 54.7%.


Maximum margins of error are listed in the table below, 


based on a population of 6,000 people aged 18 years or over 


for Pyrenees Shire Council, according to ABS estimates.
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All participating councils are listed in the State-wide 


report published on the DELWP website. In 2018, 64 of 


the 79 Councils throughout Victoria participated in this 


survey. For consistency of analysis and reporting 


across all projects, Local Government Victoria has 


aligned its presentation of data to use standard council 


groupings. Accordingly, the council reports for the 


community satisfaction survey provide analysis using 


these standard council groupings. Please note that 


councils participating across 2012-2018 vary slightly. 


Council Groups


Pyrenees Shire Council is classified as a Small Rural 


council according to the following classification list:


➢ Metropolitan, Interface, Regional Centres, Large 


Rural & Small Rural


Councils participating in the Small Rural group are: 


Alpine, Ararat, Benalla, Buloke, Central Goldfields, 


Gannawarra, Hepburn, Hindmarsh, Indigo, Mansfield, 


Murrindindi, Northern Grampians, Pyrenees, 


Queenscliffe, Strathbogie, Towong, West Wimmera and 
Yarriambiack.


Wherever appropriate, results for Pyrenees Shire 


Council for this 2018 State-wide Local Government 


Community Satisfaction Survey have been compared 


against other participating councils in the Small Rural 


group and on a state-wide basis. Please note that 


council groupings changed for 2015, and as such 


comparisons to council group results before that time 


can not be made within the reported charts. 
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Index Scores


Many questions ask respondents to rate council 


performance on a five-point scale, for example, from 


‘very good’ to ‘very poor’, with ‘can’t say’ also a 


possible response category. To facilitate ease of 


reporting and comparison of results over time, starting 


from the 2012 survey and measured against the state-


wide result and the council group, an ‘Index Score’ has 


been calculated for such measures.


The Index Score is calculated and represented as a 


score out of 100 (on a 0 to 100 scale), with ‘can’t say’ 


responses excluded from the analysis. The ‘% 


RESULT’ for each scale category is multiplied by the 


‘INDEX FACTOR’. This produces an ‘INDEX VALUE’ 


for each category, which are then summed to produce 


the ‘INDEX SCORE’, equating to ‘60’ in the following 


example.


SCALE 


CATEGORIES
% RESULT


INDEX 


FACTOR
INDEX VALUE


Very good 9% 100 9


Good 40% 75 30


Average 37% 50 19


Poor 9% 25 2


Very poor 4% 0 0


Can’t say 1% --
INDEX SCORE 


60
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Similarly, an Index Score has been calculated for the 


Core question ‘Performance direction in the last 12 


months’, based on the following scale for each 


performance measure category, with ‘Can’t say’ 


responses excluded from the calculation.


SCALE 


CATEGORIES


% 


RESULT


INDEX 


FACTOR


INDEX 


VALUE


Improved 36% 100 36


Stayed the same 40% 50 20


Deteriorated 23% 0 0


Can’t say 1% --
INDEX 


SCORE 56
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Index scores are indicative of an overall rating on a 


particular service area. In this context, index scores 


indicate:


a) how well council is seen to be performing in a 


particular service area; or


b) the level of importance placed on a particular 


service area.


For ease of interpretation, index score ratings can be 


categorised as follows: 


INDEX


SCORE


Performance


implication


Importance


implication


75 – 100
Council is performing


very well 


in this service area


This service area is 


seen to be 


extremely important


60 – 75


Council is performing


well in this service area, 


but there is room for 


improvement


This service area is 


seen to be 


very important


50 – 60


Council is performing


satisfactorily in this 


service area but needs 


to improve


This service area is 


seen to be 


fairly important 


40 – 50
Council is performing 


poorly


in this service area


This service area is 


seen to be 


somewhat important


0 – 40
Council is performing 


very poorly


in this service area


This service area is 


seen to be 


not that important
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The test applied to the Indexes was an Independent 


Mean Test, as follows:


Z Score = ($1 - $2) / Sqrt (($3*2 / $5) + ($4*2 / $6))


Where:


➢$1 = Index Score 1


➢$2 = Index Score 2


➢$3 = unweighted sample count 1


➢$4 = unweighted sample count 1


➢$5 = standard deviation 1


➢$6 = standard deviation 2


All figures can be sourced from the detailed cross 


tabulations.


The test was applied at the 95% confidence interval, so 


if the Z Score was greater than +/- 1.954 the scores are 


significantly different.
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Core, Optional and Tailored Questions


Over and above necessary geographic and 


demographic questions required to ensure sample 


representativeness, a base set of questions for the 


2018 State-wide Local Government Community 


Satisfaction Survey was designated as ‘Core’ and 


therefore compulsory inclusions for all participating 


Councils. 


These core questions comprised:


➢ Overall performance last 12 months (Overall 


performance)


➢ Lobbying on behalf of community (Advocacy)


➢ Community consultation and engagement 


(Consultation)


➢ Decisions made in the interest of the community 


(Making community decisions)


➢ Condition of sealed local roads (Sealed local roads)


➢ Contact in last 12 months (Contact)


➢ Rating of contact (Customer service)


➢ Overall council direction last 12 months (Council 


direction)


Reporting of results for these core questions can 


always be compared against other participating councils 


in the council group and against all participating 


councils state-wide.  Alternatively, some questions in 


the 2018 State-wide Local Government Community 


Satisfaction Survey were optional. Councils also had 


the ability to ask tailored questions specific only to their 


council. 
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Reporting


Every council that participated in the 2018 State-wide 


Local Government Community Satisfaction Survey 


receives a customised report. In addition, the state 


government is supplied with a state-wide summary 


report of the aggregate results of ‘Core’ and ‘Optional’ 


questions asked across all council areas surveyed.


Tailored questions commissioned by individual councils 


are reported only to the commissioning council and not 


otherwise shared unless by express written approval of 


the commissioning council.


The overall State-wide Local Government Community 


Satisfaction Report is available at 


http://www.delwp.vic.gov.au/local-


government/strengthening-councils/council-community-


satisfaction-survey.



http://www.delwp.vic.gov.au/local-government/strengthening-councils/council-community-satisfaction-survey
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Core questions: Compulsory inclusion questions for all 


councils participating in the CSS.


CSS: 2018 Victorian Local Government Community 


Satisfaction Survey.


Council group: One of five classified groups, 


comprising: metropolitan, interface, regional centres, 


large rural and small rural.


Council group average: The average result for all 


participating councils in the council group.


Highest / lowest: The result described is the highest or 


lowest result across a particular demographic sub-


group e.g. men, for the specific question being reported. 


Reference to the result for a demographic sub-group 


being the highest or lowest does not imply that it is 


significantly higher or lower, unless this is specifically 


mentioned.


Index score: A score calculated and represented as a 


score out of 100 (on a 0 to 100 scale). This score is 


sometimes reported as a figure in brackets next to the 


category being described, e.g. men 50+ (60).


Optional questions: Questions which councils had an 


option to include or not.


Percentages: Also referred to as ‘detailed results’, 


meaning the proportion of responses, expressed as a 


percentage.


Sample: The number of completed interviews, e.g. for a 


council or within a demographic sub-group.


Significantly higher / lower: The result described is 


significantly higher or lower than the comparison result 


based on a statistical significance test at the 95% 


confidence limit. If the result referenced is statistically 


higher or lower then this will be specifically mentioned, 


however not all significantly higher or lower results are 


referenced in summary reporting.


Statewide average: The average result for all 


participating councils in the State.


Tailored questions: Individual questions tailored by 


and only reported to the commissioning council.


Weighting: Weighting factors are applied to the sample 


for each council based on available age and gender 


proportions from ABS census information to ensure 


reported results are proportionate to the actual 


population of the council, rather than the achieved 


survey sample.







Contact Us:


03 8685 8555


John Scales


Managing Director


Mark Zuker


Managing Director
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This drawing is a concept design drawing only, not a working drawing and
is not to be used for construction purposes. 
The drawing is copyright and remains the property of the landscape architect


DRAFT CONCEPT DESIGN PLAN


AVOCA INCLUSIVE PLAYSPACE
PYRENEES SHIRE
High Street, Avoca VICTORIA


Sheet:
1 of 1
in this set


Dwg No:


151-CP-01


0 .5 1 2 4


Bricolage Landscape Design


Suite 6 / 653 Mountain Highway,
Baystwater VIC 3153


Tel: 0447 622 587
Email: elizabeth@bricolage design.com.au
Web: www.bricolagedesign.com.au


 DRAFT


MAIN ENTRY GATES & ACCESSIBLE 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN
Main entry to playspace from picnic area, 
with two self-closing safety gates, one 
1500mm wide. Accessible drinking 
fountain adjacent to main entry to service 
picnic area and playspace
 PICNIC SHELTER & BBQ
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FOOTPATH
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NEW FOOTPATH


ACCESSIBLE SPLASH PAD WITH
SHADE SAIL
Splash pad area with small jet fountains
for warmer weather, can be used for
ball play in winter months. Shade sail for 
shade overhead
 


NEW GRAVEL ENTRY PATH TO
PICNIC AREA & PLAYSPACE
New gravel toppings path to picnic
and playspace area from south-west
side of street, connecting with
existing pedestrian footpath and 
crossover
 


WATER PLAY ZONE
Small water play zone with upright
water trays, channels and decorative 
creek bed. Creek bed to have pumps
(connected to mains or tank)
to bring in water, gates to control the
water flow and drainage connected
to stormwater.  
 


ENCLOSED GRASSED ZONE IN 
PICNIC AREA
Low shrub planting to create a boundary
for natural grassed area as spillout space
for picnic facilities


 


GRASSED ZONE
New synthetic grassed open zone
for accessible movement and 
ball play and other activities needing
more space. Garden bed under 
tree edged with rocks and logs for 
informal seating and musical Talk
Tubes for sesnory play
 


NON-CLIMBABLE STEEL SAFETY
FENCE & SHRUB PLANTING
Non-climable 1500mm high steel safety 
fence with vertical railings to enclose 
boundary of playspace. Low shrubs 
planted outside of fenceline to enclose 
further from street edge. Fence to have 
decorative panel sections
 


SLIDE MOUND WITH DOUBLE
SLIDE & OPEN CUBBY
New planted slide mound with 1200mm
high double slide and rubber landing
pad. Open timber cubby at top of mound
to be accessed by tyre clamber and 
timber cleated log
 


DOUBLE SWING-SET WITH TIMBER
FRAME
Double junior swing frame, with one
toddler seat and one strap seat


 
GUM NUT & GUM LEAF SEATS
Install carved and painted 'themed' 
timber seats and bench for both adults 
and children
 
 


AGILITY PLAY ZONE
Tree Climb Turnover Bars for 
upper body activity and climbing
and Carousel and Dish Spinner
for gentle rotating movement
 


CARVED SENSORY TOUCH 
TOTEM FOREST
Five vertical timber carved totems with
patterns, images and text for sensory
experience and play
 


IN-GROUND ACCESSIBLE 
TRAMPOLINES & TREE CLIMB
Two in-ground circular trampolines
with accessible rubber pad 
surrounds from main path. Timber
agility tree climb equipment behind
 


UPRGHT MUSICAL CHIMES
Musical sensory activity with upright 
stainless steel tuned musical chimes 
and fixed rubber padded beaters for 
a gentle chiming sound 
 


NEW FOOTPATH CROSSOVER
New footpath from secondary 
entry gate to connect to south-east
car parking area
 


MOSAIC PATHWAY ENTRY 
PANELS
Mosaic artwork embedded panels
at inside entry points to playspace.
Artwork to be created locally. Mosaics
to be textured so as to not create
slip hazards for pedestrians 
 


ACCESSIBLE SECOND ENTRY 
Secondary / alternate accessible 
entry gate to playspace with footpath 
access and self-closing safety gate
 


ADDITIONAL PICNIC AREA
Additional picnic table outside
of playspace boundaries to also 
serve a function as broader
civic space in central township
 


LONG THEMED TUNNEL
A long free-standing themed
tunnel for crawling through and 
supervisable quiet space. Tunnel
with perspex 'see-through'
panels in sections


 LOG BALANCE WALK
Timber log steppers (550mm max) in , 
in a trail with horizontal logs for balance
and movement skills


 


ACCESSIBLE TIMBER-FRAMED NEST
SWING
Timber-framed nest / basket swing with
single movement (back and forwards) 
and accessible rubber pad from main path
underneath
 


NEW PICNIC SHELTER
New architect designed picnic shelter 
over existing BBQ and picnic area. 
Design of shelter to be complemented
by playspace materials and layout


 


ACCESSIBLE SANDPLAY ZONE
Accessible apron to sandplay area
and adjacent deck with accessible
sand digger. Sandplay area to be
a more natural setting with rock
and log edging and a second sand
digger with a seat
 


TUNNEL


REMOVE EXISTING CROSSOVER
Remove existing crossover to encourage
pedestrian movement along new 
south-eastern footpath
 


SHADE TREE PLANTING
Look to retain 5 existing trees 
onsite in their present location. Move
one smaller specimen to new location
within playspace area. Remove 3 
smaller existing specimens off-site
and relocate if possible.
 
 


EP


Timber Nest Swing


Water Play & Hand Pump
Musical Chimes


Gum Nut Seat


Tree Climber & Mound Slide


LEGEND


EXISTING TREE COLOURED 
CONCRETE


RELOCATED TREE SYNTHETIC RUBBER


SHRUBS DECORATIVE 
FLAGSTONE PAVING


GROUNDCOVER WHITE-WASHED
RIVER SAND


TUSSOCKS ELECTRICITY POLE


ORGANIC SOFTFALL ACCESSIBLE DRINKING 
MULCH FOUNTAIN


GRANITIC GRAVEL


GRASS (NATURAL)


GRASS (SYNTHETIC)


In-Ground Trampolines


Touchwood Totems


Note: Images are look and feel only and
not necessarily representive of exact final
items. Design subject to change
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LAND ACT 1958
Notice is hereby given
that it is the intention
of the Department of
Environment Land,
Water & Planning
to grant a licence
under Section 130 of
the Land Act 1958 to
Andrea Strawhorn
over portion of
Government Road,
North East of Crown
Allotment 172, Parish
of Lexton for the
purpose of Grazing.
Further information
or comments can
be lodged with the
Property Officer,
Jennifer Bromley
on 03 5336 6827
within '14 days. Ref
0513121"#120702


A/q/q/q Better price for
anything old, antiques,
gramophones, china,
iron beds, radios, kero
lamps, lighting, bottles,
enamel signs 5332 6841


AT: 44 BFOOKE STREET
Buying & selling old-
wares, collectables, fur-
niture, secondhand
goods. Ph Buth 0438
557 886 for quote.


Brown Hill and
Ilistrict Lions Raffle
Our club would like to
thank Central Square
staff, Mesh & Masonry
and all tickel buyers.
Winner was ïicket
No.37141 and has


been claimed.


QUIT SMOKING
WEIGHT LOSS
Lee Anne Simmons


& John Simmons
Clinical


Hypnotherap¡sts
ln Ballarat over 15 yrs


Tel:533Í! 1565
simmonshypnotherapy.com.au


UTE$ AI]IJD TßUCKS CARS
Sell your vehicle in


The Courie¡ Classifieds
1300 666 651


GOSPEL CHAPEL
Peel Street North
1 1.00 am Worship.


SUNDAY lOAM
at Pennyweight Park


Otway Street
'For all have sinned and fall
shorl of the glory of God.'


8om.3.23
NO SERVICE


5331 2524 All welcome


i tb*¡ttäI¡:.llläirÀIlìí'':lir.i,' j


Public llotices llìlanted to Buy


í ui f i. r* r. :.i ì-'


SHUTTLHBUs
Direct Service to


and from Melbourne
Station Pier


Golden Princess
Pacific fewell
Pacific Eden


QEz
Carnival Legend
Bookings Essential


Prouilly Operøtedby
Airport Shuttlebus


l'hone 5333 4181 or
c$ise¡lìipoh utf lr:hus,com,au


G(IING (IUERSEAS?
Want to keep in touch with
your local community? Go
to www.thecourier.com.au
for all the latest news and
announcements . I
anytime, 4\r./-
anywhere. ¿;+7*


FORTHCOMING SALES
4/1/18 Ballarat 1st X Ewe Sale 12 noon Contact Grant Daniell


8/1/18 Ballarat Cattle Market Contact Grant Daniell
Followed by bobby calves (not before 10am)


9/1/18 Ballarat Sheep Market Contact Grant Daniell


Charles Stewart & Co would like to wish you
a Merry Christmas and a safe and happy New Year.
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22May 2018


Leigh Ditchfield
Acting Municipal Engineer
Pyrenees Shire
5 Lawrence Street
BEAUFORT VIC 3373


Dear Leigh,


Re: Extension of Grazing Licence - McCallums Greek Reserve


I refer to your letter dated 4 May 2018 where you requested Central Highlands Water (CHW)
support for an extension of grazing licence on the Waubra-Talbot Road, Waubra.


CHW would support the application on the condition that CHW will always have access to the
McCallums Creek Reserve (refer attachment, with the area shaded green). lf this access is nol
granted, our access to McOallums Creek Reserve would be 'land-locked' and we would not
support the extension.


Additionally, we have an existing arrangement with the landowner, Andrea Strawhorn, that CHW
and Andrea Strawhorn has dual locks on the gate to the Waubra-Talbot Road, and ask this
arrangernent continue.


Please confirm that these matters after the extension of grazing licence is approved.


lf you have any further questions please contact me on 5320 3108.


Yours sincerely,


CENT RA L
t-ilcH LANDS
WATE II


(-...... --


srMoN CqRNWELL
MANAGER COMMERCIAL & BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT


Central l-iiglrlarrcls Region Waler Corporation


;¡ Learnìonllì Rd Wenclouree VtC 3355 PO Box 152 Battarat VtC 31i53


T: 1 800 061 514 F: 03 5320 3299 E: custorne renquir'ies@)clrw.net.au ABN: ï5 22A 34A 348 chw.net,au
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Maddocks Delegations and Authorisations 
 


S11. Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Pyrenees Shire Council 
 
 
 
 


Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation 
 
 
 
 


 


 [CEO]       means Chief Executive Officer 


 [DA&D] means Director of Assets and Development Services 


 [DC&CS] means Director of Corporate and Community Services 


 [MP&D] means Manager Planning and Development 


 [MBS] means Municipal Building Surveyor 


 [BS] means Building Surveyor 


 [LBI] means Limited Building Inspector 


 [LLO] means Local Laws Officer 


 [SP] means Statutory Planner 


 [EHO] means Environmental Health Officer 


 [MFPO] means Municipal Fire Prevention Officer 


 [E&SO] means Environment and Sustainability Officer 


 [MW] means Manager Works 


 [MA&E] means Manager Assets and Engineering 


 [MF] means Manager Finance 


 [MGR&C] means Manager Governance, Risk and Compliance 


 [Valuer] means Council Valuer 
  
 


 
 


May 2018 
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation 


In this instrument "officer" means - 


CEO - Jim Nolan 
DA&D - Douglas Gowans 
DC&CS - Evan King 
MP&D - Shannon Meadows 
MBS - Craig Fletcher 
BS - Kenton Robinson, Greg Jackson 
LBI - Rory Thompson 
LLO - Gina Angus, Jillian Szymanski, Mathew Woods, Greg Taylor, Ernie Welsh, 


Philip Diprose; Shayne Dwyer 
SP - Matthew Novacevski, Helen Swadling 
EHO - Stephanie Wellicome, Ellen Brown, Kelly Richards, Rupa Gordon, Sean Lan 


Fontaine 
MFPO - Ernie Welsh 
E&SO - Terry McAliece 
MW - Phillip Hoare 
MA&E - Robert Rowe 
MF - Paul Brumby 
MGR&C - Kathy Bramwell 
Valuer - Chris Barrett (VRC Property) 
 
By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Pyrenees Shire Council - 


 


PART A 


1. under section 224 of the Local Government Act 1989 - appoints the following officers to be  
authorised officers for the administration and enforcement of – 


 
the Building Act 1993   [MP&D, MBS, BS, EHO, LBI] 
the Country Fire Authority Act 1958 [MFPO] 
the Domestic Animals Act 1994 [MP&D, LLO, EHO] 
the Emergency Management Act 1986 [DA&D, MW, MA&E] 
the Environment Protection Act 1970 [CEO, DA&D, EHO, MP&D, SP, LLO] 
the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012 [DC&CS, MFPO] 
the Food Act 1984   [EHO, MP&D] 
the Graffiti Prevention Act 2007 [MBS, EHO, LLO]  
the Housing Act 1983   [EHO, MBS, LBI, BS, LLO] 
the Impounding of Livestock Act 1994 [LLO, MP&D] 
the Land Act 1958 [CEO, DC&CS, DA&D] 
the Local Government Act 1989  [CEO, DA&D, DC&CS, MP&D, EHO, MBS, LLO, MFPO, LBI, MGR&C] 
the Metropolitan Fire Brigades Act 1958 [MFPO] 
the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008


1
 [EHO, MP&D] 


Part 14 of the Residential Tenancies Act 1997 [EHO, MP&D] 
the Road Management Act 2004 [DA&D, MW, MA&E] 
the Road Safety Act 1986   [LLO] 
the Sex Work Act 1994 [MP&D] 
the Summary Offences Act 1966   [DA&D, MP&D, EHO, LLO] 
the Tobacco Act 1987


2
   [EHO, MP&D] 


the Valuation of Land Act 1960 [Valuer] 
 
 
 


                                                      
1
 Council only to appoint a person suitably qualified or trained under section 31(2). 


2
 This Act provides for the CEO of a council to nominate a person to be an inspector for the purposes of the Act 


and the Secretary may then appoint them to be an inspector (see section 36).  An environmental health officer 
appointed under the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 is also regarded as an inspector under this Act. 
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the regulations made under each of those Acts; 
the local laws made under the Local Government Act 1989; 
and any other Act, regulation or local law which relates to the functions and powers of the Council; 
 


 


PART B 
 
1. under section 3 of the Building Act 1993 (Building Act), appoints the officer to be Municipal 


Building Surveyor for the purposes of the Building Act 1993. 
 [MBS] 


 


2. under section 96A(1)(a) of the Country Fire Authority Act 1958 – appoints the officer to be 
the fire prevention officer.           


[MFPO] 


 


3. under section 72 of the Domestic Animals Act 1994 - appoints the officers to be authorised 
officers for the purposes of the Domestic Animals Act 1994.  


[MP&D, LLO, EHO] 
OR 


4. under section 72A(1) of the Domestic Animals Act 1994 - appoints the officers to be 
authorised officers for the purposes of the Domestic Animals Act 1994 and such appointment 
is for a period of 24 months from the date of this document. [LLO, EHO] 


 


 


5. under section 21 of the Emergency Management Act 1986 – appoints the officers to be 
Municipal Emergency Resource Officers.  


[DA&D, MW, MA&E] 


 


6. under section 4(1) of the Environment Protection Act 1970 - appoints the officers to be litter 
enforcement officers for the purposes of the Environment Protection Act 1970.  


[EHO, LLO, MP&D] 
AND/OR 


7. under section 48A of the Environment Protection Act 1970 – appoints the officers to be 
authorised officers for the purposes of section 48A. [EHO, LLO, MP&D] 


 
 


 


8. under section 23 of the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012  – appoints the officer to be  
authorised officers for the purposes of the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012


3
  . 


 [MFPO] 


 


9. for the purposes of 20 of the Food Act 1984 - appoints the officer to be an authorised officer 
for the purposes of the Food Act 1984   


[EHO, MP&D] 


 


                                                      
3
 Persons appointed or authorised officers under the Local Government Act 1989 are taken to be authorised 


officers for the purposes of the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012 (except in Part 4 of that Act) 
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10. under section 19(1) of the Graffiti Prevention Act 2007 – appoints the officers to be  
authorised persons for the purposes of carrying out Council's functions under section 18


4
 


[MBS, EHO, LLO] 


 


11. under section 71(1) of the Housing Act 1983 – appoints the officer to be an authorised 
person for the purposes of entering a house or building and conducting an inspection under 
section 71. 


[MBS, BS, EHO, LLO, LBI] 


 


12. under section 190 of the Land Act 1958 – authorises the officers for the purposes of section 
190 of that Act.


5
  


[DA&D, DC&CS, CEO] 


 


13. under section 81Y of the Local Government Act 1989 – appoints the officer to be the 
Principal Conduct Officer .


6
  


[DC&CS] 


 


14. under section 5A(1)(a) of the Metropolitan Fire Brigades Act 1958 – appoints the officer to be 
the fire prevention officer for the purposes of the Metropolitan Fire Brigades Act 1958. 


[MFPO] 


 


15. under section 29 of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008, - appoints the officer to be an 
Environmental Health Officer


7
 for the purposes of enforcing the Public Health and Wellbeing 


Act 2008 and the Food Act 1984.  
[EHO] 


AND 


16. under section 147(1)(b)(i) of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008, - authorises the 
officer to issue immunisation status certificates under section 148 of the Public Health and 
Wellbeing Act 2008.  


[EHO] 


 


17. under section 525(2) of the Residential Tenancies Act 1997 - appoints the officers to 
exercise the powers set out in section 526 of that Act.  


[EHO] 


 


18. under section 71(3) of the Road Management Act 2004 – appoints the officers to be  
authorised officers for the purposes of the Road Management Act 2004. 


[DA&D, MW, MA&E] 


 


                                                      
4
 Authorised person must agree in writing to exercise functions and powers of an authorised person under Part 4 


of the Graffiti Prevention Act 2007 and in accordance with any performance criteria determined by Council (see 
section19(2)). 
5
 Authorisation requires the consent of the Minister (see section 190 of the Land Act 1958). 


6
 Only an 'eligible person' may be appointed (see the requirements in section 81Y of the Local Government Act 


1989). 
7
 Council must be sure that the EHO is suitably trained or qualified under section 31(2) of the Public Health and 


Wellbeing Act 2008. 
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19. under section 59(1)(a)(ii) of the Road Safety Act 1986 – authorises the officers to exercise 
the powers under section 59(1)(a) of that Act.  


[DA&D, LLO] 
AND 


20. under section 59(1)(d) of the Road Safety Act 1986 – authorises the officers to exercise the 
powers under section 59(1)(d) of that Act.  


[DA&D, LLO] 
AND 


21. under section 87(1A) of the Road Safety Act 1986 – authorises the officer to exercise the 
power in section 87(1A) of that Act.


8
  


[DA&D, LLO] 
AND 


22. under section 87(1B)(c) of the Road Safety Act 1986 – authorises the officer to exercise the 
power in section 87(1B)(c). 


[DA&D, LLO] 
AND/OR 


23. under section 87(8) of the Road Safety Act 1986 – authorises the persons who are not 
members of Council's staff for the purposes of section 87 of that Act.  


[LLO] 


 


24. under regulation 84(c)(ii) of the Road Safety (General) Regulations 2009 – authorises the 
officers for the purposes of filing a charge or an offence under section 90E of the Road 
Safety Act 1986 or under a regulation under that Act. 


[DA&D, LLO] 


 


25. under section 3(1) of the Sex Work Act 1994 - appoints the officer to be an authorised officer 
of the responsible authority for the purposes of enforcing Parts 4 and 5 of that Act.  


[MP&D] 


 


26. under section 13DA(1) of the Valuation of Land Act 1960 – appoints Chris Barrett, VRC 
Property who is not a members of Council's staff for the purposes of section 13DA of that 
Act.


9
  


[Valuer] 
AND/OR 


27. under section 13J of the Valuation of Land Act 1960 – appoints the persons for the purposes 
of section 13J of that Act.


10
 


[Valuer] 


 
 
  


                                                      
8
 Council must ensure that a person appointed under section 87 is competent, of good repute and character and 


has agreed in writing to exercise the functions conferred on an authorised person (see section 87(1C)  
9
 Council must ensure that the person appointed holds the qualifications or experience specified from time to time 


by the Minister by notice published in the Government Gazette. 
10


 Council must ensure that the person appointed holds the qualifications or experience specified from time to 
time by the Minister by notice published in the Government Gazette. 
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PART C 


28. under - 
 section 232 of the Local Government Act 1989


11
 


  section 527 of the Residential Tenancies Act 1997 
section 77(2)(b) of the Road Safety Act 1986


12
 


section 77(4) of the Road Safety Act 1986  
sections 48A(9)(c) and 59(3)of the Environment Protection Act 1970 


  section 241 of the Building Act 1993 
  section 92 of the Domestic Animals Act 1994


13
 


  section 96 of the Road Management Act 2004 
  section 33A of the Impounding of Livestock Act 1994 


 section 10(4) of the Graffiti Prevention Act 2007                                                           
section 219 of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 


 section 45AC of the Food Act 1984 
 


authorises the officers generally to institute proceedings and represent Council in proceedings for 
offences against the Acts, regulations and local laws described in this instrument. 
 
It is declared that this Instrument - 


(a) comes into force immediately upon its execution; 
(b) remains in force until varied or revoked. 


 
 
 
This Instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Pyrenees Shire Council made on  20


th
 March 2018. 


 
 
 
 
 
The Common Seal of the  
Pyrenees Shire Council was 
Here unto affixed in the presence of: 
 


 
 
 
 


Councillor  


 


Chief Executive Officer  


 


Dated:  


 


                                                      
11


 A person authorised under section 232 of the Local Government Act 1989 is also authorised to bring 
proceedings under the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012  (see section 22 of the Fire Services Property Levy 
Act 2012).   
12


 A person authorised under sections 77(2)(b) and/or 77(4) of the Road Safety Act 1986 is also an authorised 
officer for the purposes of rules 203 and 307 of the Road Safety Road Rules 2009. 
13


 Council may only appoint an authorised officer who is also appointed under section 72 of the Act. 
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Risk 


Reference
Risk Title Risk Description Risk Current Controls Risk Source Risk Owner Risk Rating


Risk 


Linked 


Hazards


Risk 


Linked 


Incidents


Risk 


Completed 


Date Time


Risk 


Completed 


Reason


Risk Status Risk Control


Risk 


Treatment 


Responsible 


Person


Due / Status Risk Treatment Progress Note


Risk 


Treatment 


Completed 


Date
Mental health and 


wellbeing training and 


education programs 


as part of staff 


development


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.12.2019 In 


progress - 


delayed to 


allow proper 


focus and 


budget 


allocation


27.4.2018 Planning in progress, 


included in corporate training needs 


analysis and plan.


 


MAV 3-year OHS 


Improvement 


Program


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.12.2019 In 


progress


Following a MAV-led 3-year 


improvement program of OHS 


process documents and monitoring 


of OHS performance / compliance.  


Increase education 


around bullying and 


harassment


Norman 


Prueter


31.12.2017 - 


Complete


2017 Training given to Senior 


Leadership Team; Session at All 


Staff Day.  To be included in latest 


iteration of training plan.


31.12.2017


Improve staff 


awareness of hazard 


reporting importance


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.08.2017 


Complete


20.06.2017 Awareness campaign 


undertaken via newsletters and 


intranet


August 2017 Presentation at all staff 


day


All completed and now ongoing 


program of encouragement and 


promotion.


20.7.2017


Ongoing 


implementation of the 


OHS improvement 


plan


Kathy 


Bramwell


29.6.2018 


Complete - 


Now ongoing


14/08 - Working in accordance with 


the OHS 2017-2018 action plan - 


document review schedule. On track 


so far.


Ongoing activity. Action no longer 


needs to be open.


20.11.2017


Temporary 


appointment of 


organisational 


development / HR 


support to improve 


training


Jim Nolan 31.07.2017 


Complete


Marietta Thompson appointed on a 


temporary part time basis to provide 


HR support to the coordinator for a 


range of HR matters as needed.  


Appointment now completed.


28.7.2017


Improve training of 


line management


Evan King 31.12.2018 


Complete


Senior Leadership Team 


reinvigorated in early 2017.  Ongoing 


team development regularly takes 


place.


04.05.2018


Safety education and 


awareness programs


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.12.2017 


Complete


20.06.2017 Planning underway for: 


manual handling; general OHS 


awareness; hazard / incident input; 


chemical awareness; OHS for HSRs


20.11.217 - Safety campaigns 


underway as needed. 


20.11.2017


Develop and 


implement processes 


for change 


management


Evan King 05.12.2017 


Complete


Review and revision complete. 5.12.2017


Adopt and implement 


tender evaluation 


processes


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.12.2017 in 


progress - 


delayed due 


to staff 


changes -  


due date 


revised to 


30.09.2018


27.4.2018 Part of Procurement 


Governance Program - currently in 


planning stage.


High


High


R2017-2


1) Policies 


2) SWMS developed for some 


high risk activities


3) Formal hazard and incident 


reporting system - awareness 


program done in 2017


4) Council OHS Committee and 


risk management strategy in 


place


5) Workplace hazard inspection 


regime in place


6) Induction process and staff 


handbook provide guidance


7) OHS inclusion within staff and 


team meetings


8) OHS improvement plan in 


place


9) Audit Committee oversight


10) EAP to support staff mental 


health  wellbeing


11) Anti-bullying program 


undertaken in 2017


12) Senior Leadership Team in 


place with weekly operational 


and monthly strategy meetings 


conducted


1) Procurement Policy in place


2) Professional legal advice 


sought when appropriate


3) Process in place for contract 


design


4) Contractor Management 


System providing safety and 


due diligence prompts


Managing contractual 


obligations for Council 


projects and programs, 


and lease agreements


Strategic Risk - 


Contract 


management


Jim NolanLegal & 


Commercial


Treatment 


in progress


Treatment 


in progress


Provision of a safe 


workplace and protecting 


the health and wellbeing 


of the workforce


Strategic Risk - 


Provision of a 


safe workplace


R2017-1 Health, Safety 


& Wellbeing


Jim Nolan
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Risk 


Reference
Risk Title Risk Description Risk Current Controls Risk Source Risk Owner Risk Rating


Risk 


Linked 


Hazards


Risk 


Linked 


Incidents


Risk 


Completed 


Date Time


Risk 


Completed 


Reason


Risk Status Risk Control


Risk 


Treatment 


Responsible 


Person


Due / Status Risk Treatment Progress Note


Risk 


Treatment 


Completed 


Date
Develop and 


implement 


documented contract 


management policy 


and procedures


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.12.2017 in 


progress - 


delayed due 


to staff 


changes -  


due date 


revised to 


30.09.2018


27.4.2018 Part of Procurement 


Governance Program - currently in 


planning stage.  Also included within 


the MAV WorkCare improvement 


project.


Maintain awareness 


and adaptability to 


changing climate and 


weather patterns


Douglas 


Gowans


31.12.2018 - 


ongoing


Ongoing awareness maintained by 


key members of Emergency 


Management Team.  In fire season 


key staff attend weekly Regional 


Emergency Management Team 


teleconferences to maintain 


communications and preparedness.


30.04.2018


As part of response 


to 2016 flood events, 


advocating for 


implementation of 


more resilient 


infrastructure (e.g. 18 


major culvert creek 


crossings)


Douglas 


Gowans


21.05.2018 - 


transferred to 


ongoing 


activity


21.05.2018 - continuing advocacy to 


Government funding sources and 


insurers.  Unlikely to be an easy 


resolution so now changed to an 


ongoing activity.


21.05.2018


Implement initial and 


refresher compliance 


training program


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.3.2018 - in 


progress - 


delayed due 


to staff 


shortages - 


due date 


revised to 


30.12.2018


Identified required training on 


training needs analysis and plan.  


24.4.2018 - some training planned 


and delivered.  New iteration of 


training plan underway.


Develop and 


implement 


compliance calendar 


to improve reminders 


for statutory reporting 


and compliance 


deadlines


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.3.2018 I in 


progress - 


delayed and 


due date 


revised to 


30.06.2018


13.04.2018 - In progress. 


Spreadsheet calendar under 


development (collaboration with 


SLT) and online Altus program will 


be used for reminders.


Investigate options 


for compliance 


system support


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.12.2018 - 


in progress


Explore opportunities 


for shared training 


with other LGs to 


save costs


Kathy 


Bramwell


30.12.2018 In 


progress


Conversation commenced with City 


of Ballarat.


High


High


Medium


R2017-2


Treat


21.05.2018 Outstanding 


actions now 


considered to 


be ongoing 


activity


Accept risk 


& monitor


R2017-4 Strategic Risk - 


Legislative 


compliance


Maintaining compliance 


with legislative and 


regulatory obligations


1) Active monitoring of proposed 


legislative change


2) Corporate compliance 


training program input into 


Training Needs Analysis and 


training plan


3) Obligations relating to the 


Recognition  Settlement 


Agreement with the Dja Dja 


Wurrung Clans determined


4) Public registers and 


delegations maintained on an 


ongoing basis


Legal & 


Commercial


Jim Nolan


R2017-3


1) Procurement Policy in place


2) Professional legal advice 


sought when appropriate


3) Process in place for contract 


design


4) Contractor Management 


System providing safety and 


due diligence prompts


Managing contractual 


obligations for Council 


projects and programs, 


and lease agreements


Strategic Risk - 


Contract 


management


Fire & 


Flood


Jim Nolan Fire & 


Flood


Jim NolanLegal & 


Commercial


Strategic Risk - 


Disaster response 


and recovery


Effective response and 


recovery from damage to 


Council / Community 


infrastructure as a result 


of natural disaster / 


climate change and 


adverse weather events


1) Municipal Emergency 


Management Plan (MEMP)


2) Government funding for 


emergency-related roles


3) Advocacy for water security


4) Future Landscapes project


5) Support for alternative energy


6) Maintenance of bores to 


protect public safety and 


infrastructure


7) Appropriate insurance 


coverage to assist in financial 


recovery


8) Emergency management 


participation in Grampians 


Region


9) Government Funding 


assistance for infrastructure 


recovery


10) Awareness to changing 


climate and weather patterns 


maintained


11) In times of high risk (e.g. fire 


season) close liaison with 


regional teams maintained


12) Ongoing advocacy to enable 


reinstatement of infrastructure to 


facilitate more resilience 


(Government emergency 


funding and insurers)


Community & 


Organisational 


Resilience


Treatment 


in progress
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Risk 


Reference
Risk Title Risk Description Risk Current Controls Risk Source Risk Owner Risk Rating


Risk 


Linked 


Hazards


Risk 


Linked 


Incidents


Risk 


Completed 


Date Time


Risk 


Completed 


Reason


Risk Status Risk Control


Risk 


Treatment 


Responsible 


Person


Due / Status Risk Treatment Progress Note


Risk 


Treatment 


Completed 


Date
Determine obligations 


relating to the 


Recognition  


Settlement 


Agreement with the 


Dja Dja Wurrung 


Clans


Jim Nolan 30.11.2017 


Complete


Documentation including relevant 


legislation and regulation as well as 


the Settlement Agreement sourced 


and shared with relevant staff.


Matter reported to Council Meeting in 


November 2017.


Meeting with Dja Dja Wurrung Clans 


Cooperation set up for December 


2018 to ensure parties are clear 


about expectations.


4.12.2017


Review delegations Martin 


Walmsley


30.11.2017 


Complete


Completed - now ongoing 


governance function.


13.4.2018


Review of asbestos 


register to take place 


in June 2017.


Robert Rowe 28.2.2018 


Delayed by 


contractor - 


new due date 


30.06.2018


13.04.2018 Asbestos management 


procedure updated. Asbestos 


Register review underway. Following 


completion, management of 


asbestos compliance requirements 


will be transferred to the Manager 


Governance, Risk  Compliance.


 


Continued 


participation in 


regional disaster 


exercises (e.g. 


pandemic) to 


continually improve 


business continuity 


planning


Martin 


Walmsley


30.12.2017 


Complete


Combined ICC / MECC Exercise 


(Operation Augustus) planned for 


17th August. Council to have EM 


personnel at both exercises.


Exercises undertaken in 2017. ERC 


exercise Nov17.


Exercise plan now ongoing activity. 


20.11.2017


Implement annual 


schedule of 


evacuation drills in 


key Council buildings.


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.3.2018 In 


progress 


delayed new 


due date 


30.09.2018


14/08 - Planning of evacuation drills 


for 2017 commenced. Internal 


emergency booklet approved and 


provided to all staff. Emergency 


evacuation notices displayed in 


Council Offices.  Warden training 


arranged for May 2018.


Review and 


implement Council 


Business Continuity 


Plan and 


Contingency Plans for 


key services


Kathy 


Bramwell


31.3.2018 In 


progress - 


delayed due 


to staff 


changes - 


new due date 


30.09.2018


14/08 - Central BCP first draft 


complete. Alignment with CIMP in 


progress. Checking against MEMP 


and other documents in progress.


Improve internal 


Council emergency 


management 


processes - 


implement internal 


emergency 


management booklet


Kathy 


Bramwell


30.7.2017 


Complete


28/7 - Drafted and awaiting feedback 


/ approval from the OHS Committee. 


21.8.2017


Medium


Medium


Kathy 


Bramwell


R2017-5 Strategic Risk - 


Organisational 


resilience


Creating organisational 


resilience to impacts from 


critical incidents and/or 


natural disaster


1) Business Continuity planning 


and Municipal Emergency 


Management Plan (MEMP)


2) MEMP sub-plans


3) Critical Incident Management 


Plan and internal Emergency 


Management Processes in 


place


4) Emergency Management 


Team; Critical Incident 


Management Team; Internal 


Emergency Control 


Organisation and Planning 


Group all in place and active


5) Training as part of mitigation 


strategy


6) Management of Municipal 


Emergency Coordination Centre 


(MECC) and relief centres


7) Insurance coverage to 


facilitate financial recovery in 


case of adverse event


8) Continued participation in 


regional disaster exercises to 


improve business continuity 


planning


Community & 


Organisational 


Resilience


Treat


TreatR2017-4 Strategic Risk - 


Legislative 


compliance


Maintaining compliance 


with legislative and 


regulatory obligations


1) Active monitoring of proposed 


legislative change


2) Corporate compliance 


training program input into 


Training Needs Analysis and 


training plan


3) Obligations relating to the 


Recognition  Settlement 


Agreement with the Dja Dja 


Wurrung Clans determined


4) Public registers and 


delegations maintained on an 


ongoing basis


Legal & 


Commercial


Jim Nolan
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Risk 


Reference
Risk Title Risk Description Risk Current Controls Risk Source Risk Owner Risk Rating


Risk 


Linked 


Hazards


Risk 


Linked 


Incidents


Risk 


Completed 


Date Time


Risk 


Completed 


Reason


Risk Status Risk Control


Risk 


Treatment 


Responsible 


Person


Due / Status Risk Treatment Progress Note


Risk 


Treatment 


Completed 


Date
R2017-6 Strategic Risk - 


Sound & 


Compliant 


Financial 


Management


Ensuring sound and 


compliant financial 


management systems 


and process controls to 


manage financial risk and 


prevent fraud


1) 10-year Financial Plan


2) Funding through annual 


budget


3) Financial management 


policies and procedures in place


4) Quarterly financial reports to 


Council


5) Fraud included within risk 


identification and management


6) Fraud policy and supporting 


procedures in place (reviewed 


2017)


7) External and Internal Audit; 


Audit Committee oversight


8) External control bodies (e.g. 


Ombudsman; IBAC)


9) 2017 Internal Audit tendered 


to maintain freshness of 


approach


Financial & 


Economic 


Sustainability


Jim Nolan Medium Accept risk 


& monitor


R2017-7 Strategic Risk - 


Growth of local 


economy & 


population


Development and growth 


of the local economy and 


population 


(Opportunity - only a 


negative risk if towns 


were growing in an 


unsustainable manner)


1) Engagement Strategy


2) Council Plan 


3) Participation in MAV, RCV, 


ALGA, VLGA increase 


investment into the local region


4) Growth  Tourism Strategies


5) Central Highlands Agricultural 


Forum


6) Participation with local 


business groups


7) Growth  Tourism Strategies


8) Regional CEO/Mayors Forum


9) Central Highlands Regional 


Partnerships; Central Highlands 


Councils Forum to develop 


growth


Involvement with development 


of alternate power sources


10) Monthly meetings with 


Regional Development Victoria 


to improve relationships


Financial & 


Economic 


Sustainability


Jim Nolan Low Accept risk 


& monitor


Monthly meetings 


with Regional 


Development Victoria 


to improve 


relationships


Douglas 


Gowans


31.12.2017 - 


Complete


Now undertaken by CEO. 31.12.2017


R2017-8 Strategic Risk - 


Adverse media 


attention


Management and 


response to adverse 


media coverage / 


attention


1) Communications Officer in 


place


2) Proactive relationships with 


media to reduce negative press


3) Communications Strategy


Community Jim Nolan Medium Accept risk 


& Monitor


R2017-9 Strategic Risk - 


Maintaining 


external 


relationships


Maintaining external 


relationships (e.g. Sector, 


State, Federal, Industry) 


to reduce vulnerability to 


adverse public policy / 


legislative change


1) Participation in regional 


networks - MAV, RCV, ALGA


2) Maintaining relationships with 


State and Federal Members


3) Advocacy


4) Maintaining financial 


sustainability


5) Risk management strategy 


and framework


Community Jim Nolan Medium Accept risk 


& monitor


R2017-10 Strategic Risk - 


Reliance on grant 


funding


High reliance on annual 


grant programs to deliver 


core services to the 


community (e.g. HACC, 


youth, Roads to 


Recovery)


1) Participation in ALGA, VLGA 


to support funding and 


advocating on Council's behalf


2) Advocacy at the State and 


National level


Financial & 


Economic 


Sustainability


Jim Nolan Low Accept risk 


& monitor
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Risk 


Reference
Risk Title Risk Description Risk Current Controls Risk Source Risk Owner Risk Rating


Risk 


Linked 


Hazards


Risk 


Linked 


Incidents


Risk 


Completed 


Date Time


Risk 


Completed 


Reason


Risk Status Risk Control


Risk 


Treatment 


Responsible 


Person


Due / Status Risk Treatment Progress Note


Risk 


Treatment 


Completed 


Date
Increased education 


of staff regarding 


native vegetation 


controls


Douglas 


Gowans


31.12.2017 - 


in progress


Education of key staff completed 


and appropriate checks conducted 


before works take place.


31.07.2017


Determine / 


implement roles and 


responsibilities for 


Essential Safety 


Measures compliance 


in Council owned / 


managed buildings 


(Council or S86 


Committees)


Douglas 


Gowans


31.12.2017 - 


delayed new 


due date 


30.06.2018


27.4.2018 - Discussions planned 


between Risk Management and 


Assets Management to determine 


roles and responsibilities.


Annual activities to 


improve 


environmental 


monitoring levels and 


reduce risk.


Leigh 


Ditchfield


31.12.2017 


Complete


Civil Works: prior to works, 


inspections are undertaken by 


Council's Project Management 


Officer and Environmental Officer to 


ensure that siting of huts, plant, 


equipment and stock piles do not 


create any environmental issues. 


Clearance is sought from Planning to 


ensure that there are not any 


overlays that would be impacted by 


the works. If necessary, appropriate 


permits are sought.


Works are undertaken in accordance 


with EPA and other Guidelines.


24.10.2017


Gender equity 


program.


Jim Nolan 31.12.2017 - 


Complete


Gender Equity program to 


commence August 2017.


31.08.2018


Management Group 


Leadership program.


Jim Nolan 31.12.2017 


Complete & 


Ongoing


Program in progress. 30.06.2017


Temporary 


appointment of 


organisational 


development / HR 


support


Jim Nolan 22.6.2017 


Complete


Temporary appointment in place. 26.06.2017


Include review 


processes within 


training program.


Norman 


Prueter


21.05.2018 


Complete


10.05.2018 - review of training 


procedures underway.  Training on 


interview techniques and Leadership 


/ management skills included in 


training needs analysis and training 


plan for 2018-2019.


21.05.2018


Improve performance 


management and 


review processes


Norman 


Prueter


31.12.2018 In 


progress


10.05.2018 - processes under 


review.


Advocating for 


implementation of 


more resilient 


infrastructure.


Douglas 


Gowans


21.05.2018 - 


now ongoing 


activity


21.05.2018 - likely to be an ongoing 


advocacy program with government 


emergency recovery funding sources 


and insurers.


Continue to lobby for 


ongoing asset 


improvement grant 


programs.


Douglas 


Gowans


31.12.2017 


Ongoing 


activity 


Now part of ongoing activity. 31.12.2017


Treatment 


in progress


Treat


 Treatment 


in progress


R2017-13 Strategic Risk - 


Infrastructure that 


meets needs


Provide and maintain 


infrastructure which 


meets current and future 


needs.


1) Long term Financial Plan


2) Asset Management Plan


3) Road Management Plan


4) Collaboration with property 


insurer on reducing property 


loss exposures


5) Utilisation of asset 


improvement grant programs


6) Council Plan - identification of 


infrastructure for development


7) Ongoing advocacy to enable 


reinstatement of infrastructure to 


facilitate more resilience 


(Government emergency 


funding and insurers)


Infrastructure 


& Environment


Douglas 


Gowans


Low


LowR2017-12 Strategic Risk - 


Workplace culture 


of innovation and 


integrity


Creating a workplace 


culture of innovation and 


integrity that improves 


productivity and protects 


Council's brand/image.


1) Staff training and 


development


2) Policies and procedures to 


guide work practices and quality


3) Staff code of conduct 


providing behavioural 


expectations


4) Annual all day staff meeting / 


annual staff culture survey


5) Staff Consultative Committee


6) Performance management 


and review processes in place


7) Continual improvement of 


business processes and 


workflows


8) Strategies implemented to 


improve training and underlying 


factors - e.g. management 


training; gender equality


9) Training needs analysis and 


training plan in place


People, 


Culture & 


Leadership


R2017-11 Infrastructure 


& Environment


LowJim Nolan1) Testing of leachate at 


Beaufort, Lexton and Snake 


Valley closed landfills; landfill 


inspections.


2) Fire prevention equipment at 


transfer stations/landfills.


3) Retro-fit public toilets


Community engagement


4) Use of appropriate checks 


before working 


5) Cultural Heritage 


Management Plans


6) Protect native vegetation-


environmental checks before 


commencing major works


7) Permits for works on 


waterways


8) Weed management plan


Protection of the 


environment from 


damage as a result of 


Council operations.


Strategic Risk - 


Environmental 


protection from 


Council 


operations
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Risk 


Reference
Risk Title Risk Description Risk Current Controls Risk Source Risk Owner Risk Rating


Risk 


Linked 


Hazards


Risk 


Linked 


Incidents


Risk 


Completed 


Date Time


Risk 


Completed 


Reason


Risk Status Risk Control


Risk 


Treatment 


Responsible 


Person


Due / Status Risk Treatment Progress Note


Risk 


Treatment 


Completed 


Date
Clarify role and 


reactivate Assets  


Services Committee.


Douglas 


Gowans


31.12.2018 Discussion and planning underway.  


Due date deferred.


R2017-14 Strategic Risk - 


External 


relationships - 


Council continues 


to meet 


Community needs


Relationships with the 


Shire Community, both 


locally and sectorally (e.g. 


farmers, vignerons) 


ensuring that Council 


understands and meets 


community needs.


1) Engagement Strategy


2) Community Action Plans


3) Council Plan


4) Use of newsletters, social 


media and media releases


5) Attendance at community 


functions; visibility and interest 


in local issues; Mayor / CEO 


participation in regional forums


6) Community Grants


7) Consultation on a range of 


strategies 


8) Pyrenees Futures Project


9) "Keeping me in the Loop" 


Communications Strategy


Community Jim Nolan Low Accept risk 


& monitor


R2017-15 Strategic Risk - 


Managing 


Community 


disruption


Managing significant 


community change and 


disruption (e.g. Beaufort 


bypass, significant IT 


failure, Ararat to 


Maryborough rail line, 


wind farms).


1) Maintaining relationships with 


State and Federal Members


2) Participation in agency led 


forums or projects and 


advocating on behalf of 


Communities


3) Municipal Emergency 


Management Plan (MEMP) and 


sub-plans


4) Engagement Strategy


5) Pyrenees Futures Project


6) Critical Incident Management 


Plan


7) Growth  Tourism Strategies


8) Council Works' response to 


Shire emergencies


Community & 


Organisational 


Resilience


Jim Nolan Low Accept risk 


& monitor


R2017-16 Strategic Risk - 


Financial capacity 


of Council's rate 


base


Financial capacity of 


Council's rate base 


(including limited 


industrial / commercial 


property, rural rate at high 


levels, rate capping, and 


high percentage of 


households are 


pensioners) to achieve 


strategic objectives.


1) 10-year Financial Plan


2) Funding through annual 


budget


3) Strategic budget planning 


framework and controls


4) Council Plan (annual review / 


quarterly progress reports)


5) Achievement of increased 


rate capping approval from 


Government


Financial & 


Economic 


Sustainability


Jim Nolan Low Accept risk 


& monitor


R2017-17 Strategic Risk - 


Emergency 


management 


planning & 


response


Ensuring effective 


emergency management 


planning and response


1) Municipal Emergency 


Management Plan (MEMP)


2) Council Works' response to 


Shire emergencies


3) Dedicated emergency 


management roles


4) Emergency Management 


Team that meets regularly


5) Regular training to improve 


and maintain capability


6) Monitoring / responding to 


State Government reviews of 


Local Government emergency 


response processes


7) Ongoing activity to monitor 


and continuous improvement of 


MEMP


Community & 


Organisational 


Resilience


Kathy 


Bramwell


Low Accept risk 


& monitor


Implementing 


recommendations 


from the MEMP 


Audit.


Kathy 


Bramwell


30.6.2018 


Complete and 


now ongoing 


activity


3 Year Action Plan in place to review 


the Municipal Emergency 


Management Plan, sub-plans and 


standard operating procedures. 


Quarterly reporting to the Municipal 


Emergency Management Planning 


Committee on the progress of the 


review.


31.01.2018


Treatment 


in progress


R2017-13 Strategic Risk - 


Infrastructure that 


meets needs


Provide and maintain 


infrastructure which 


meets current and future 


needs.


1) Long term Financial Plan


2) Asset Management Plan


3) Road Management Plan


4) Collaboration with property 


insurer on reducing property 


loss exposures


5) Utilisation of asset 


improvement grant programs


6) Council Plan - identification of 


infrastructure for development


7) Ongoing advocacy to enable 


reinstatement of infrastructure to 


facilitate more resilience 


(Government emergency 


funding and insurers)


Infrastructure 


& Environment


Douglas 


Gowans


Low
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Risk 


Reference
Risk Title Risk Description Risk Current Controls Risk Source Risk Owner Risk Rating


Risk 


Linked 


Hazards


Risk 


Linked 


Incidents


Risk 


Completed 


Date Time


Risk 


Completed 


Reason


Risk Status Risk Control


Risk 


Treatment 


Responsible 


Person


Due / Status Risk Treatment Progress Note


Risk 


Treatment 


Completed 


Date
R2017-18 Strategic Risk - 


Community 


Health & 


Wellbeing


Supporting the health and 


wellbeing of the Pyrenees 


Shire Community.


1) Municipal Health  Wellbeing 


Strategy


2) Provision of services in the 


Community


3) Government funding to 


provide additional public safety 


resources


4) Provision of Community 


Infrastructure


5) Recreation Strategy


6) Community Action Plans 


(CAPs)


7) Participating CORE activities


Health, Safety 


& Wellbeing


Martin 


Walmsley


Low Accept risk 


& monitor


   








PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL


Budget - 2018/19


Proposed Budget


3.5% Rate Cap Exemption Rate Rise







Contents Page


Mayor and CEO’s introduction 3


Budget reports 


1. Link to the Council Plan 5


2. Services and service performance indicators 7


3. Financial statements 15


4. Notes to the financial statements 22


5. Financial performance indicators 31


6. Capital works program 33


7. Schedule of fees and user charges 37







PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL Budget - 2018/19


Mayor and CEO’s introduction


The Councillors and I are pleased to release to the Community the Draft Budget 2018/19. This budget


builds on our Council Plan 2018/22 vision which focuses on the following five key areas:


   • Roads and Townships


   • Relationships and Advocacy


   • Community Connection and Wellbeing


   • Financially Sustainable, High Performing Organisation


   • Development and Environment


The Council Plan 2018/22 sets out our strategic plan to deliver our vision over the full term of the Council.


As this is the second year of the current Council term, the focus over the next year will be on consolidating


our work on the commitments in our four year plan.


The budget details the resources required over the next year to fund the large range of services we


provide for our community. It also includes details of proposed capital expenditure allocations to improve


and renew our Shire’s physical infrastructure, buildings and operational assets as well as funding


proposals for a range of operating projects.


As Councillors, it is our job to listen to community sentiment and understand your priorities. Since we


started our term in 2016, we have consistently heard that Council’s services are valued by the community,


and that Council also needs to be financially responsible and keep its rates as low as possible. In


response, Council has initiated an enterprise wide approach to identify areas where services can be


adjusted to better meet local needs, in order to provide increased value for money to ratepayers. 


The Budget for 2018/19 has been prepared by Councillors and Council officers. As part of the budget


process the community was invited to community workshops held in Waubra and Raglan. Council also


undertook an online engagement process using OurSay. The community was asked to complete a survey


on priority services and indicate where they would invest an addtional $50,000 if it was available.


The budget includes a rate increase of 3.50%, which is 1.25% above the maximum rate increase allowed


under the rate cap set by the Minister for Local Government under the Fair Go Rates System. Of the 3.5%


rate increase 1.5% of rate revenue has been quarantined specifically for capital expenditure on renewing


Council's road infrastructure assets. In order to balance the remainder of the budget, Council has


continued to pursue operational savings and efficiencies which has enabled it to deliver high quality,


responsive and accessible services to the community.


Budgeted Capital Works expenditure will decrease from $7.162 million in 2017/18 to $5.585 million in


2018/19, predominantly as a result of a reduction in capital grant income of $2.51 million. The Capital


Works Program will be funded by $1.103 million of external grants, $710,000 from asset sales and the


balance of $3.772 million from Council rates. It is pleasing to note that ratepayer funded capital


expenditure has increased by $784,000.


Highlights of the Capital Works Program include:


   • Gravel Road Resheets $1.014 million, an increase of $240,000 or 31.1%


   • Reseals at various locations $853,000


   • Raglan-Elmhurst Road 1.5km Reconstruction $450,000


   • Moonambel-Natte Yallock Road 2km Reconstruction $450,000


   • Additional Dust Suppression Graded Aggregate Total Treatment (GATT) Seals $22,000


   • Drainage Project 2018-19 $50,000


   • Solar Lighting of Township Entrances $10,000
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Expenditure on the following project included in the Capital Works Program will be recouped in future


budget periods as the land is sold:


   • Residential Land Development  - Beaufort Stage 4 - $334,000


Council's waste management service is fully funded by waste service and user charges. The


Landsborough transfer station is currently uncontrolled and people from anywhere are able to deposit


waste of all types there without charge. In order to improve the level of service for waste management at


Landsborough, Council will actively manage the Landsborough transfer station in the same way it


manages other transfer stations across the Shire. Waste service charges will increase on average by


9.2% in order to meet the increased costs of actively managing the Landsborough transfer station and the


additional cost associated in managing recyclables that has arisen as a result of China's ban on the


importation of waste materials from countries such as Australia.


Our focus for the next year is to continue to deliver on the projects and services that make our Shire a


great place to live, work and invest in, and respond to the challenges we are currently facing. These


challenges include:


   • Rate capping


   • State government cost shifting


   • Maintaining our road infrustructure


Whilst Council has obtained approval for a rate increase that is 1.25% above the 2.25% rate cap, the


actual rate increases experienced by individual ratepayers will be different due to this being a municipal


revaluation year. In a revaluation year, rate increases are impacted by the average rate increase (3.50%)


and the property valuation increases of individual properties relative to the average valuation increase of


25.1% across the municipality. If your property value increased by more than the 25.1% average property


value increase for the Shire, then your rates will increase by more than 3.50%. However, if your property


value increased by less than the 25.1% average property value increase for the Shire, your rates will


increase by less than 3.50% and may in fact reduce from the previous year.


Cr David Clark                                                    Jim Nolan


Mayor                                                                  Chief Executive Officer
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1. Link to the Council Plan


1.1  Planning and accountability framework


This section describes how the Annual Budget links to the achievement of the Council Plan within an overall


planning and reporting framework. This framework guides the Council in identifying community needs and


aspirations over the long term, medium term (Council Plan) and short term (Annual Budget) and then


holding itself accountable (Annual Report).


The Strategic Resource Plan, part of and prepared in conjunction with the Council Plan, is a rolling four-year


plan that outlines the financial and non-financial resources that Council requires to achieve the strategic


objectives described in the Council Plan. The Annual Budget is framed within the Strategic Resource Plan,


considering the services and initiatives which contribute to achieving the strategic objectives specified in the


Council Plan. The diagram below depicts the planning and accountability framework that applies to local


government in Victoria.


In addition to the above, Council has a long term plan which articulates a community vision, mission and


values.  The Council Plan is prepared with reference to Council's long term Community Plan.


Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning


The timing of each component of the planning framework is critical to the successful achievement of the


planned outcomes.
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1.2  Our purpose


Our mission


Our values


Strategic Objective Description


1. Roads and Townships We will plan, manage, maintain and renew infrastructure in a sustainable way that


responds to the needs of the community.


2. Relationships and 


Advocacy


We will build and maintain effective relationships with community, government


and strategic partners, and advocate on key issues.


3. Community 


Connection and 


Wellbeing


We will engage with communities to provide responsive, efficient services that


enhance the quality of life of residents and promote connected, active and


resilient communities.


4. Financially 


Sustainable, High 


Performing Organisation


Our organisation will respond to community needs, attend to our core business,


and strive for excellence in service delivery in an ethical and financially


responsible manner.


5. Development and 


Environment


We will undertake forward planning, and facilitate growth in our local economy


while protecting key natural and built environmental values.


Pyrenees Shire Council seeks to create an environmentally sustainable and liveable Shire that will continue


to provide a range of opportunities and choices for a diverse and prosperous community.


The role Pyrenees Shire Council will take to achieve this vision is to:


           Provide quality road and built infrastructure for the community


           Work with others to provide services to maintain the wellbeing of the community, and 


Pyrenees Shire Council has a clear strength in the bond and affinity between its Councillors, the community


and staff. Staff support the community leadership and governance role of Councillors, and work together to


achieve the commitments of the Council Plan. Having all Pyrenees Shire Council staff practise the following


organisational values enhances the quality of this partnership:


           Service - Our citizens, community and service users are the focus of all our actions


           Accountability - We are responsible for our actions, which are open to review


           Innovation - We encourage and seek new ideas in finding solutions


           Operate an efficient, forward looking organisation.


As an innovative and accountable organisation, Pyrenees Shire Council will promote vibrant democracy and


provide high-quality services.


           Respect - We acknowledge the opinions of others and their rights and differences.


1.3  Strategic objectives


Council delivers activities and initiatives under 38 major strategies. Each contributes to the achievement of


one of the five Strategic Objectives as set out in the Council Plan for the 2018/22 years. The following table


lists the five Strategic Objectives as described in the Council Plan.


         Teamwork - We share our skills, knowledge and experience as part of a team and work together


towards achieving Council’s goals


           Recognition - We promote the achievements and efforts of others


           Safety - We look after our environment and the welfare of others


           Integrity - We are open and honest and work to the best of our ability


Our vision 


“We want the Pyrenees Shire to be a healthy, vibrant, prosperous and connected community.”
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2. Services and service performance indicators


Services for which there are prescribed performance indicators to be reported on in accordance with the


Regulations are shown in bold and underlined in the following sections.


This section provides a description of the services and initiatives to be funded in the Budget for the 2018/19


year and how these will contribute to achieving the strategic objectives outlined in the Council Plan. It also


describes several initiatives and service performance outcome indicators for key areas of Council’s operations.


Council is required by legislation to identify major initiatives, initiatives and service performance outcome


indicators in the Budget and report against them in their Annual Report to support transparency and


accountability. The relationship between these accountability requirements in the Council Plan, the Budget and


the Annual Report is shown below.


Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning
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Services


Expenditure


 (Revenue)


Net Cost


$'000


2,371


(2,166)


205 


6,835


0 


6,835 


813


(7)


806 


821


(86)


735 


161


0 


161 


105


0 


105 


Initiatives


This service provides swimming pool facilities services at three locations,


public halls, parks and gardens and provides a customer focused service that


caters for the cultural, educational and recreational needs of residents and


provides a focal point for the community where they can meet, relax and enjoy


the facilities and services offered. Parks Management provides management


and implementation of open space strategies and maintenance programs.


Parks and gardens maintenance provides management of all parks and


gardens.


5)  Undertake two internal audits per annum on compliance with the Road Management Plan.


1) Work with appropriate authorities to prepare flood plans and/or drainage plans for Lexton, Waubra, Avoca


and Natte Yallock.


6)  Implement the Gravel Road Strategy.


4)  Deliver road and asset renewal programs.


3) Review Council's Service and Asset Management Plans, Asset Management Strategy and the Roadside


Management Plan.


Business 


area


This service provides Council with public convenience facilities throughout the


Shire.


Recreation, 


public halls 


and parks and 


reserves


Road 


maintenance


2.1  Strategic Objective 1. Roads and Townships


To achieve our objective of Roads and Townships, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality,


cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and service


performance indicators for each business area are described below.


Public 


conveniences


Description of services provided


7)  Implement streetscape and hall improvements for Redbank, Raglan and Barkly


Depreciation This is the non-cash charge that reflects the value of the Council assets base


that is consumed each year. The majority of this figure relates to Council's


road network.


This service provides strategic planning, policy development and day to day


management of traffic and transport related issues in Council. The unit also


implements Local Area Traffic Management schemes and assistance with


implementation of the Road Safety Strategy.


Facilities 


maintenance


This service includes the building maintenance for facilities that provide an


extensive range of recreational programs and opportunities accessible to


individuals of all ages, gender and abilities.


This service is responsible for the maintenance of Council's road network.


Traffic and 


Transportation 


Services 


9)  Implement initiatives contained in township framework plans.


8) Undertake condition assessments of the following key assets: Roads, Bridges and Major Culverts and


Buildings.


Major Initiatives


2) Improve township amenity by increased level of maintenance at town entrances by street tree replacement


planting, better signage and use of Graded Aggregate Total Treatment (GATT) seals.
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Service Indicator


Roads and 


Townships


Satisfaction


Pool 


Facilities


Utilisation


Services
Expenditure


 (Revenue)


Net Cost


$'000


913


0 


913


2,731


(3,551)


(820)


Initiatives


Service Indicator


Relationships 


and Advocacy


Satisfaction


1)  Work with CVRC to develop a strategy and deliver shared services.


4)   Advocate to government on key projects and isues important to our community including:


This service provides a range of statutory and corporate support services and


acts as the main customer interface with the community. Services include the


coordination of financial management, insurance, revenue management, audit,


records and information management and office support services at the


Council Offices.


Satisfaction with Council decisions


To achieve our objective of Relationships and Advocacy, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high


quality, cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and service


performance indicators for each business area are described below.


This area of governance includes the Mayor, Councillors, Chief Executive


Officer and Governance Team and associated support which cannot be easily


attributed to the direct service provision areas.


Councillors, 


Chief 


Executive and 


Governance


Major Initiatives


Service Performance Outcome Indicators


Computation


·           Moonambel Water


·           Roads to Recovery Funding


·           Improved Telecommunications


·           Sector peak bodies


ComputationPerformance Measure


Service Performance Outcome Indicators


Description of services provided


Community satisfaction rating out of 100 


with how Council has performed in 


making decisions in the interests of the 


community.


2.2  Strategic Objective 2. Relationships and Advocacy


Number of visits to pool facilities / 


Municipal population


Satisfaction with sealed local roads


Utilisation of pool facilities


2)   Implement the Community Engagement Strategy.


5)   Develop and foster strategic partnerships by actively engaging with:       


Community satisfaction rating out of 100 


with how Council has performed on the 


condition of sealed local roads.


Business 


area


Customer & 


Civic Services


·           Beaufort Bypass


·           Business Associations


·           Industry Sector Bodies


·           Regional Bodies


Performance Measure
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Services


Expenditure


 (Revenue)


Net Cost


$'000


961


(780)


181 


558


(182)


376 


162


(119)


43 


201


(3)


198 


181


(105)


76 


182


(67)


115 


93


0 


93 


27


0 


27 


376


(139)


237 


Initiatives


This service provides public library services at three locations and provides a


customer focused service that caters for the cultural, educational and


recreational needs of residents and provides a focal point for the community


where they can meet, relax and enjoy the facilities and services offered.


To achieve our objective of Community Connection and Wellbeing we will continue to plan, deliver and improve


high quality, cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and


service performance indicators for each business area are described below.


Business 


area


2.3  Strategic Objective 3. Community Connection and Wellbeing


This service provides family oriented support services including maternal and


child health, youth services, immunisation and health and safety.


Aged & 


Disability 


Services


This service provides a range of home and community care services for the


aged and disabled including home delivered meals, personal care, transport,


respite care, home maintenance and senior citizen clubs.


Family 


Services


Community 


grants


Animal 


control


This service provides the animal management services of the Shire. It


maintains and improves the health and safety of people, animals and the


environment by providing animal management services including a cat


trapping program, a dog and cat collection service, a lost and found notification


service, a pound service, a registration and administration service, an


afterhours service and an emergency service. It also provides education,


regulation and enforcement of the General Local Law and relevant State


legislation.


Admin and 


other


Council conducts two rounds of community grants each year. This service


combines a wide range of opportunities for the community to apply for grants


for a variety of projects which contribute to the general well being of the


community.


General administration and other expenditure items in this program area.


Environmental 


Health 


This service protects the community’s health and well-being by coordinating


food safety support programs, Tobacco Act activities and smoke free dining.


The service also works to rectify any public health concerns relating to


unreasonable noise emissions, housing standards and pest controls.


Disaster 


Management 


2)   Continue to participate and promote Communities of Respect and Equality (CoRE).


3)  Participate in the Children and Youth Area Partnership.


Community 


action plans


This service assists with the preparation of the community action plans.


Description of services provided


Library 


Services


This service facilitates the emergency preparedness and fire management


services of the Council. This includes the roadside slashing program that


occurs each year, the fire prevention officer's role and the emergency


preparedness staff .


1)  Continue to use Community Action Plans to inform decision making and Council priorities.


4)   Implementation of the key priorities from the Health and Wellbeing Plan.
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Service Indicator


Maternal and 


Child Health 


(MCH)


Participation


Libraries Participation


Animal 


Management


Health and 


safety


Food safety Health and 


safety


Critical and major non-compliance 


notifications


(Percentage of critical and major non-


compliance notifications that are 


followed up by Council)


Major Initiatives


# CALD = culturally and linguistically diverse


Computation


Number of actual MCH visits / Number 


of expected MCH visits] x100


Animal management prosecutions


[Number of people that received a 


HACC service / Municipal target 


population for HACC services] x100


5)  Implementation of the key priorities from the Recreation Strategy.


Number of successful animal 


management prosecutions


[Number of actual MCH visits for 


Aboriginal children / Number of expected 


MCH visits for Aboriginal children] x100


Home and 


Community 


Care (HACC)


Participation in HACC service by 


CALD people


(Percentage of the municipal target 


population in relation to CALD people 


that receive a HACC service)


[Number of CALD people who receive a 


HACC service / Municipal target 


population in relation to CALD people for 


HACC services] x100


Participation in MCH key ages and 


stages visits by Aboriginal children


(Percentage of Aboriginal children 


attending the MCH key ages and 


stages visits)


[Number of critical non-compliance 


notifications and major non-compliance 


notifications about a food premises 


followed up / Number of critical non-


compliance notifications and major non-


compliance notifications about food 


premises] x100


[Number of active library members / 


municipal population] x100


Participation


Service Performance Outcome Indicators


Active library members


(Percentage of the municipal 


population that are active library 


members)


Participation in HACC service


(Percentage of the municipal target 


population that receive a HACC 


service)


Participation in MCH key ages and 


stages visits


(Percentage of children attending the 


MCH key ages and stages visits)


Performance Measure
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Services


Expenditure


 (Revenue)


Net Cost


$'000


175


0 


175 
 


Initiatives


Description of services provided


5)  Undertake two service reviews per year.


1)  Undertake two internal audits per year.


Major Initiatives


4)  Monitor and report on our performance in responding to Customer Action Requests against agreed


standards.


3)  Conduct an annual staff satisfaction survey and action plan.


To achieve our objective of becoming a High Performing Organisation we will continue to plan, deliver and


improve high quality, cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major


initiatives and service performance indicators for each business area are described below.


2.4  Strategic Objective 4. Financially Sustainable, High Performing Organisation


7)  Develop an annual corporate training program.


Business 


area


People and 


Culture


This service provides the recruitment, training, performance evaluation and


departure of Council staff.


6)  Develop an employee performance review process that incorporates self-assessment and peer review.


2)  Continuously improve organisational processes by reviewing and mapping two processes per year to


eliminate waste and inefficiency. 


8)  Review the Rating Strategy.
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Services


Expenditure


 (Revenue)


Net Cost


$'000


200


(208)


(8)


313


(64)


249 


556


(24)


532 


401


(126)


275 


1,270


(1,326)


(56)


191


(88)


103 


251


(88)


163 


Initiatives


This statutory planning service processes all planning applications, provides


advice and makes decisions about development proposals which require a


planning permit, as well as representing Council at the Victorian Civil and


Administrative Tribunal where necessary. It monitors the Council’s Planning


Scheme as well as preparing major policy documents shaping the future of the


Shire. It also prepares and processes amendments to the Council Planning


Scheme and carries out research on demographic, urban development,


economic and social issues affecting Council.


Information 


centres


This service provides, supports and maintains reliable and cost effective visitor


information facilities and infrastructure to Council.


This service provides Council with general economic development services, 


community building, events management, tourism, sponsorship, contribution


towards state funded initiatives and promotional activities throughout the Shire.


2.5  Strategic Objective 5. Development and Environment


Waste 


Management 


Services


Building 


Services


This service provides waste collection including kerbside rubbish collections


of garbage, hard waste and green waste from households and some


commercial properties in Council. It also provides street litter bins throughout


the Shire. The net surplus here is used to fund $56,000 of Transfer Station


Upgrade capital works.


2) Build on opportunities for growth in the agricultural sector identified in the Ballarat Region Line of Sight


Project.


This service develops environmental policy, coordinates and implements


environmental projects and works with other services to improve Council’s


environmental performance. It also provides roadside weeds and pest animal


management programs.


6)  Review the Pyrenees Planning Scheme and identify future actions to improve effectivness.


5)  Implement actions contained in Council's Tourism Strategy.


This service provides statutory building services to the community including


processing of building permits, emergency management responsibilities, fire


safety inspections, audits of swimming pool barriers and investigations of


complaints and illegal works.


Environmental 


Planning


3)  Prepare and adopt new Local Laws which protect amenity and environmental values.


4)  Review and implement the Pyrenees Domestic Wastewater Management Plan.


Major Initiatives


1)  Support investigation and delivery of effective sustainability projects such as the Central Victorian


Greenhouse Alliance - Low income household solar project in order to adapt to the impacts of climate change.


This service provides caravan park facilities for residents and visitors to the


municipality.


Economic 


development


Caravan 


parks


Description of services provided


7)  Undertake planning scheme amendments to incorporate updated township plans.


Business 


area


Planning


To achieve our objective of Development and Environment, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high


quality, cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and service


performance indicators for each business area are described below.


13 Pyrenees Shire Council







PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL Budget - 2018/19


Service Indicator


Statutory 


planning


Decision 


making


Waste 


collection


Waste 


diversion


Economic 


Development


Economic 


activity


Net Cost Expenditure Revenue


$’000 $’000 $’000


(8,847) (11,106) 2,259 


(93) (3,644) 3,551 


(1,346) (2,741) 1,395 


(175) (175) 0 


(1,258) (3,182) 1,924 
(11,719) (20,848) 9,129 


0 
(11,719)


8,703


1,103


71
9,877 


(1,842)


Kerbside collection waste diverted 


from landfill


(Percentage of garbage, recyclables 


and green organics collected from 


kerbside bins that is diverted from 


landfill)


[Weight of recyclables and green 


organics collected from kerbside bins / 


Weight of garbage, recyclables and 


green organics collected from kerbside 


bins] x100


[Number of VCAT decisions that upheld 


Council’s decision in relation to a 


planning application / Number of 


decisions in relation to planning 


applications subject to review by VCAT] 


x100


Council planning decisions upheld at 


VCAT


(Percentage of planning application 


decisions subject to review by VCAT 


and that were upheld in favour of the 


Council)


Service Performance Outcome Indicators


Roads and Townships


ComputationPerformance Measure


Deficit for the year


Other non-attributable 


Deficit before funding 


Rates 


Capital grants


Total funding sources 


Funding sources:


Total services and initiatives


Financially Sustainable, High 


Gain on asset sales


Relationships and Advocacy


2.6  Reconciliation with budgeted operating result


Community Connection and Wellbeing


Development and Environment


Change in number of businesses


(Percentage change in the number of 


businesses with an ABN in the 


municipality)


[Number of businesses with an ABN in 


the municipality at the end of the 


financial year less the number of 


businesses at the start of the financial 


year / Number of businesses with an 


ABN in the municipality at the start of the 


financial year] x100


# VCAT = Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal 
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3. Financial statements


Comprehensive Income Statement


Balance Sheet


This section presents information in regard to the Financial Statements and Statement of Human Resources.


The budget information for the year 2018/19 has been supplemented with projection to 2021/22 extracted


from the Strategic Resource Plan.


Statement of Changes in Equity


Statement of Cash Flows


Statement of Capital Works


This section includes the following financial statements prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act


1989 (the Act) and the Local Government Planning and Reporting regulations 2014.


Statement of Human Resources
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the four years ending 30 June 2022


Forecast


Actual
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22


Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000


Income


Rates and service charges 4.1.1 9,601 10,013 10,444 11,467 11,781


Statutory fees and fines 4.1.2 183 213 218 223 229


User charges 4.1.3 815 858 879 901 924


Grants - Operating (recurrent) 4.1.4 3,497 6,246 6,419 6,596 6,778


Grants - Operating (non-recurrent) 4.1.4 11,686 229 342 349 383


Grants - Capital (recurrent) 4.1.4 1,976 979 1,100 1,100 1,100


Grants - Capital (non-recurrent) 4.1.4 1,843 124 0 0 0


Contributions - cash 4.1.5 216 1 10 10 10


Net gain on disposal of property, 


infrastructure, plant and equipment


391 71 191 78 77


Interest on cash invested 143 141 148 155 163


Other income 4.1.6 409 131 134 137 140


Total income 30,760 19,006 19,885 21,016 21,585


Expenses


Employee costs 4.1.7 (6,713) (7,163) (7,339) (7,522) (7,710)


Materials and services 4.1.8 (19,285) (6,537) (6,923) (6,817) (6,829)


Bad and doubtful debts 0 (2) (1) (1) (1)


Depreciation 4.1.9 (6,702) (6,835) (7,006) (7,181) (7,361)


Other expenses 4.1.10 (328) (311) (319) (327) (335)


Total expenses (33,028) (20,848) (21,588) (21,848) (22,236)


Surplus (deficit) for the year (2,268) (1,842) (1,703) (832) (651)


Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to 


surplus or deficit in future periods:


Net asset revaluation increment 


/(decrement)


200 800 250 0 900


Total comprehensive result (2,068) (1,042) (1,453) (832) 249


Strategic Resource Plan


Projections


Budget
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Balance Sheet
For the four years ending 30 June 2022


Forecast


Actual
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22


$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000


Assets


Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents 2,242 2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291


Trade and other receivables 851 877 903 930 958


Land held for resale 1,384 1,488 1,261 1,249 1,339


Other assets 240 245 250 255 260


Total current assets 4,717 4,901 4,705 4,725 4,848


Non-current assets


Trade and other receivables 88 75 61 46 30


Property, infrastructure, plant and 


equipment


228,501 227,350 226,219 225,451 225,663


Total non-current assets 228,589 227,425 226,280 225,497 225,693


Total assets 233,306 232,326 230,985 230,222 230,541


Liabilities


Current liabilities


Trade and other payables 1,015 1,045 1,076 1,108 1,141


Trust funds and deposits 196 200 204 208 212


Provisions 2,000 2,020 2,088 2,112 2,135


Total current liabilities 3,211 3,265 3,368 3,428 3,488


Non-current liabilities


Provisions 165 173 182 191 201


Total non-current liabilities 165 173 182 191 201


Total liabilities 3,376 3,438 3,550 3,619 3,689


Net assets 229,930 228,888 227,435 226,603 226,852


Equity


Accumulated surplus 84,359 82,517 80,814 79,982 79,331


Statutory reserve (recreational land) 9 9 9 9 9


Asset revaluation reserve 145,562 146,362 146,612 146,612 147,512


Total equity 229,930 228,888 227,435 226,603 226,852


Budget Strategic Resource Plan


Projections
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the four years ending 30 June 2022


Total
Accumulated 


Surplus


Revaluation 


Reserve


Other 


Reserves


$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000


2018 Forecast Actual


Balance at beginning of the financial year 231,998 86,627 145,362 9 


(Deficit) for the year (2,268) (2,268)


Net asset revaluation increment(decrement) 200 200 


Balance at end of the financial year 229,930 84,359 145,562 9 


2019 Budget


Balance at beginning of the financial year 229,930 84,359 145,562 9 


(Deficit) for the year (1,842) (1,842) 0 0 


Net asset revaluation increment(decrement) 800 0 800 0 


Balance at end of the financial year 228,888 82,517 146,362 9 


2020


Balance at beginning of the financial year 228,888 82,517 146,362 9 


(Deficit) for the year (1,703) (1,703) 0 0 


Net asset revaluation increment(decrement) 250 0 250 0 


Balance at end of the financial year 227,435 80,814 146,612 9 


2021


Balance at beginning of the financial year 227,435 80,814 146,612 9 


(Deficit) for the year (832) (832) 0 0 


Net asset revaluation increment(decrement) 0 0 0 0 


Balance at end of the financial year 226,603 79,982 146,612 9 


2022


Balance at beginning of the financial year 226,603 79,982 146,612 9 


(Deficit) for the year (651) (651) 0 0 


Net asset revaluation increment(decrement) 900 0 900 0 


Balance at end of the financial year 226,852 79,331 147,512 9 
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the four years ending 30 June 2022


Forecast


Actual
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22


$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000


Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows


(Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)


Cash flows from operating activities


Rates and service charges 9,601 10,013 10,444 11,467 11,781 


Statutory fees and fines 183 213 218 223 229 


User charges 897 944 967 991 1,016 


Grants - operating 15,183 6,475 6,761 6,945 7,161 


Grants - capital 3,819 1,103 1,100 1,100 1,100 


Contributions - cash 238 1 11 11 11 


Interest on cash invested 143 141 148 155 163 


Trust funds and deposits taken 25 25 25 25 25 


Other receipts 409 131 134 137 140 


Net GST refund 2,896 1,119 1,268 1,295 1,339 


Employee costs (6,727) (7,177) (7,350) (7,532) (7,719)


Materials and services (21,214) (7,191) (7,615) (7,499) (7,512)


Trust funds and deposits repaid (25) (25) (25) (25) (25)


Other payments (344) (327) (335) (343) (352)


Net cash provided by operating 


activities 


5,084 5,445 5,751 6,950 7,357 


Cash flows from investing activities


Payments for property, infrastructure, 


plant and equipment 


(10,077) (5,810) (6,436) (7,228) (7,523)


Payments for land held for resale (1,385) (367) (1,402) (566) (666)


Proceeds from sale of property, 


infrastructure, plant and equipment 


352 343 343 332 332 


Proceeds from sale of land held for 


resale


912 438 1,744 512 500 


Net cash used in investing activities (10,198) (5,396) (5,751) (6,950) (7,357)


Cash flows from financing activities 


Finance costs 0 0 0 0 0 


Proceeds from borrowings 0 0 0 0 0 


Repayment of borrowings 0 0 0 0 0 


Net cash used in financing activities 0 0 0 0 0 


Net (decrease)/increase in cash and 


cash equivalents 


(5,114) 49 0 0 0 


Cash and cash equivalents at 


beginning of the financial year 


7,356 2,242 2,291 2,291 2,291 


2,242 2,291 2,291 2,291 2,291 


Projections


Strategic Resource PlanBudget


Cash and cash equivalents at end of 


the financial year 
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Statement of Capital Works
For the four years ending 30 June 2022


Forecast


Actual
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22


$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000


Property


Land 1,259 334 1,275 515 606


Land improvements 0 0 0 0 0


Total land 1,259 334 1,275 515 606


Buildings 1,365 110 144 158 174


Building improvements 195 0 0 0 0


Leasehold improvements 125 0 0 0 0


Total buildings 1,685 110 144 158 174


Total property 2,944 444 1,419 673 780


Plant and equipment


Plant, machinery and equipment 990 982 997 1,012 1,029


Fixtures, fittings and furniture 20 21 22 23 23


Computers and telecommunications 145 116 127 148 163


Library collection 50 52 54 56 58


Total plant and equipment 1,205 1,171 1,200 1,239 1,273


Infrastructure


Roads 4,280 3,033 2,929 3,335 3,638


Bridges 381 523 867 987 1,067


Footpaths and cycleways 323 25 26 28 28


Drainage 407 50 351 357 365


Recreational, leisure and community 708 283 161 362 180


Waste management 58 56 57 58 59


Total infrastructure 6,157 3,970 4,391 5,127 5,337


Total capital works expenditure 10,306 5,585 7,010 7,039 7,390


Represented by:


New asset expenditure 1,308 339 1,280 521 612


Asset renewal expenditure 7,432 4,973 5,383 6,254 6,500


Asset expansion expenditure 309 10 0 0 0


Asset upgrade expenditure 1,257 263 347 264 278


Total capital works expenditure 10,306 5,585 7,010 7,039 7,390


Funding sources represented by:


Grants 3,819 1,103 1,207 1,208 1,236


Contributions 180 0 0 0 0


Council cash 5,158 3,772 3,906 5,064 5,398


Asset Sales 1,149 710 1,897 767 756


Total capital works expenditure 10,306 5,585 7,010 7,039 7,390


Budget Strategic Resource Plan


Projections
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Statement of Human Resources
For the four years ending 30 June 2022


Forecast


Actual
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22


$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000


Staff expenditure


Employee costs - operating 6,713 7,163 7,339 7,522 7,710


Employee costs - capital 126 130 134 138 142


Total staff expenditure 6,839 7,293 7,473 7,660 7,852


FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE


Staff numbers


Employees 77.6 79.7 79.7 79.7 79.7


Total staff numbers 77.6 79.7 79.7 79.7 79.7


Comprises
Budget


Department 2018/19 Full Time Part Time Casual Temporary


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Assets and Development 1,211 1,112 99 0 0


Community Wellbeing 1,238 216 1,015 7 0


Corporate Services 1,476 1,167 309 0 0


Culture and Leisure 534 194 291 49 0


Environment and Amenity 2,098 1,833 239 26 0


Strategy and Governance 606 552 54 0 0


Total staff 7,163 5,074 2,007 82 0


Capitalised employee costs * 130


Total expenditure 7,293


Comprises
Budget


Department 2018/19 Full Time Part Time Casual Temporary


Assets and Development 11.5 10.5 1.0 0.0 0.0


Community Wellbeing 14.9 2.0 12.9 0.0 0.0


Corporate Services 14.6 10.5 4.1 0.0 0.0


Culture and Leisure 6.0 2.0 3.4 0.6 0.0


Environment and Amenity 26.4 23.3 2.6 0.5 0.0


Strategy and Governance 4.6 4.0 0.6 0.0 0.0


Total staff 78.0 52.3 24.6 1.1 0.0


Capitalised employee costs 1.7


Total staff 79.7


Budget Strategic Resource Plan


Projections


A summary of human resources expenditure categorised according to the organisational structure of Council is


included below:


A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the above expenditure is 


Permanent


Permanent


* These employee costs are attributable to the Environment and Amenity department


* These employees are attributable to the Environment and Amenity department
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4. Notes to the financial statements 


4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement


4.1.1 Rates and service charges


Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


General rates* 8,094 8,384 290 3.6%


Waste management charges 1,195 1,310 115 9.6%


Supplementary rates and rate adjustments 5 2 -3 -60.0%


Interest on rates and charges 40 40 0 0.0%


Windfarms in lieu of rates 267 277 10 3.7%


Total rates and charges 9,601 10,013 412 4.3%


In developing the Strategic Resource Plan, rates and charges were identified as an important source of


revenue. Planning for future rate increases has therefore been an important component of the Strategic


Resource Planning process. The Fair Go Rates System (FGRS) sets out the maximum amount councils


may increase rates in a year. For 2018/19 the FGRS cap has been set at 2.25%. The cap is calculated on


the basis of council’s average rates and charges.


In 2016/17 Council applied for a rate cap exemption for the 2017/18 and 2018/19 financial years. The


Minister for Local Government approved this application and set Council's rate rise for 2017/18 and 2018/19


at 3.50%. Council has quarantined 1.50% of the rate increase in each year to boost capital expenditure on


the road network.


The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference to Council's


other sources of income and the planned expenditure on services and works to be undertaken for the


community.


To achieve these objectives while maintaining service levels and a strong capital expenditure program, the


average general rate will increase by 3.50% in line with the rate cap.


The 2018/19 rates will be levied on a revaluation of property values as at 1 January 2018. As a


consequence of the revaluation, the rate rise on each individual property will be different, with some


properties receiving a rate increase below the 3.5% average rate increase and some properties receiving a


rate increase above the 3.5% average rate rise. Some properties will actually pay less rates in 2018/19 than


they did in 2017/18. 


Council's waste management service is operated on a full cost recovery basis, and waste service charges


are set at a level that will recoup the full cost of the service.  In 2018/19 waste charges will increase by 9.2%.


This will raise total rates and charges for 2018/19 of $10.013 million.


4.1.1(a) The reconciliation of the total rates and charges to the Comprehensive Income Statement is


as follows:


Budget Change


*General rates are subject to the rate cap established under the FGRS
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Budget Budget


2017/18 2018/19


cents/$CIV cents/$CIV


General rate for rateable residential properties 0.4980 0.4228 -15.10%


0.4980 0.4228 -15.10%


General rate for rateable industrial properties 0.4980 0.4228 -15.10%


1.5937 1.3530 -15.10%


1.1952 1.0147 -15.10%


General rate for rateable farm properties 0.3984 0.3382 -15.11%


0.2490 0.2114 -15.10%


Budget Budget


2017/18 2018/19


$ $


2,980,660 2,790,500 -6.38%


131,190 117,900 -10.13%


55,370 173,000 212.44%


207,830 224,900 8.21%


654,480 662,400 1.21%


General rate for rateable farm properties 3,918,760 4,400,400 12.29%


17,660 15,200 -13.93%


7,965,950 8,384,300 5.25%


Budget Budget


2017/18 2018/19


General rate for rateable residential properties 2,915 2,960 1.54%


98 95 -3.06%


77 78 1.30%


336 331 -1.49%


702 710 1.14%


General rate for rateable farm properties 1,760 1,747 -0.74%


43 42 -2.33%


Total number of assessments 5,931 5,963 0.54%


Total amount to be raised by general rates


General rate for rateable vacant non-farm land properties less 


than two hectares


General rate for rateable non-farm vacant land properties of two 


hectares or more


General rate for rateable vacant non-farm land properties less 


than two hectares


4.1.1(b) The rate in the dollar to be levied as general rates under Section 158 of the Act for each type


or class of land compared with the previous financial year *


Type or class of land


4.1.1(c) The estimated total amount to be raised by general rates in relation to each type or class of


land, and the estimated total amount to be raised by general rates, compared with the previous


financial year


Type or class of land


Change


# The significant change in the rates raised from industrial properties results primarily from the construction


of a rateable electricity substation as part of the Ararat windfarm development.


4.1.1(d) The number of assessments in relation to each type or class of land, and the total number of


assessments, compared with the previous financial year


Change


ChangeType or class of land


4.1.1(e)  The basis of valuation to be used is the Capital Improved Value (CIV)


* The above rates in the dollar are indicative only as they are based on the rate book as at 21 March 2018.


These rates in the dollar will be recalculated in July 2018 using the actual rate book as at 1 July 2018, in


order to ensure compliance with the rate capping provisions of the Fair Go Rates System.


General rate for rateable non-farm vacant land properties of two 


hectares or more


General rate for rateable vacant non-farm land properties less 


than two hectares


General rate for rateable non-farm vacant land properties of two 


hectares or more


General rate for rateable residential properties


General rate for rateable commercial properties


General rate for rateable industrial properties #


Rate concession for rateable recreational properties 


Rate concession for rateable recreational properties 


General rate for rateable commercial properties


General rate for rateable industrial properties


General rate for rateable commercial properties


Rate concession for rateable recreational properties 
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Budget Budget


2017/18 2018/19


$ $


598,527,000 660,011,000 10.27%


26,344,000 27,888,000 5.86%


General rate for rateable industrial properties 11,118,000 40,916,000 268.02%


13,041,000 16,621,000 27.45%


54,759,000 65,283,000 19.22%


General rate for rateable farm properties 983,625,000 1,301,122,000 32.28%


7,093,000 7,209,000 1.64%


Total value of land 1,694,507,000 2,119,050,000 25.05%


Per Rateable 


Property


Per Rateable 


Property


Budget Budget


 Type of Charge 2017/18 2018/19 Change


$ $


Municipal Charge 0 0 0.00%


Budget Budget


2017/18 2018/19


$ $


Municipal Charge 0 0 0.00%


Per Rateable 


Property


Per Rateable 


Property


Budget Budget


2017/18 2018/19 Change


$ $


Disposal Charge Improved Property 188 205 9.04%


Disposal Charge Unimproved Property 52 57 9.62%


326 356 9.20%


Collection Charge Kerbside & Recycling 326 356 9.20%


Number of 


Services


Number of 


Services


Budget Budget


2017/18 2018/19 Change


Disposal Charge Improved Property 1,085 1,080 -0.46%


Disposal Charge Unimproved Property 2,194 2,191 -0.14%


1,355 1,371 1.18%


Collection Charge Kerbside & Recycling 1,315 1,336 1.60%


Total number of waste service charges 5,949 5,978 0.49%


4.1.1(j)  The number of waste service charges compared with the previous financial year


4.1.1(i) The rate or unit amount to be levied for each type of waste service charge under Section 162


of the Act compared with the previous financial year


Type of Charge


Type of Charge


Change


4.1.1(g) The municipal charge under Section 159 of the Act compared with the previous financial


year


Change


4.1.1(f) The estimated total value of each type or class of land, and the estimated total value of land,


compared with the previous financial year


Type or class of land


4.1.1(h) The estimated total amount to be raised by municipal charges compared with the previous


financial year


 Type of Charge


General rate for rateable commercial properties


General rate for rateable residential properties


General rate for rateable vacant non-farm land properties less 


than two hectares


General rate for rateable non-farm vacant land properties of two 


hectares or more


Collection Charge Kerbside, Green & Recycling


Collection Charge Kerbside, Green & Recycling


Rate concession for rateable recreational properties 
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Budget Budget


2017/18 2018/19


$ $


Disposal Charge Improved Property 203,980 221,400 8.54%


Disposal Charge Unimproved Property 114,088 124,887 9.47%


441,730 488,076 10.49%


Collection Charge Kerbside & Recycling 428,690 475,616 10.95%


1,188,488 1,309,979 10.22%


Budget Budget


2017/18 2018/19


$ $


General rates 7,965,950 8,384,300 5.3%


Municipal charge 0 0 0.0%


Waste service charges 1,188,488 1,309,979 10.2%


Rates and service charges 9,154,438 9,694,279 5.9%


Supplementary/(objections) general rates 5,000 2,176


Windfarms in lieu of rates 263,000 276,300


Interest on rates 40,000 40,000


9,462,438 10,012,755


Forecast


Actual Budget


2017/18 2018/19


$8,098,317 $8,384,300


              5,911               5,963 


$1,307.14 $1,406.05


3.50% 3.50%


$1,349.01 $1,406.05


$1,373.74 $1,421.82


$7,973,991 $8,384,300


Rates and service charges as per Comprehensive Income 


Statement


           The final level of valuation in the adopted Revaluation


Type of Charge Change


4.1.1(k) The estimated total amount to be raised by each type of waste service charge, and the


estimated total amount to be raised by waste service charges compared with the previous financial


year


Capped Average Rate


Maximum Allowable General Rates Revenue


Budgeted General Rates Revenue


Total amount to be raised by waste service charges


Council is fully compliant with the State Government’s Fair Go Rates System.


4.1.1(m) Fair Go Rates System Compliance


ChangeType of Charge


4.1.1(l) The estimated total amount to be raised by all rates and charges compared with the previous


financial year


Collection Charge Kerbside, Green & Recycling


Number of rateable properties


Base Average Rates


Maximum Rate Increase (set by the State Government)


4.1.1(n)  Any significant changes that may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates and 


There are no known significant changes which may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates and


charges. However, the total amount to be raised by rates and charges may be affected by:


           The making of supplementary valuations


           The variation of returned levels of value (e.g. valuation appeals)


           Changes of use of land such that rateable land becomes non-rateable land and vice versa


           Changes of use of land such that vacant land becomes non-vacant land and vice versa


           Changes of use of land such that residential land becomes business or farm land and vice versa


           Changes to the level of service provided to a property.


Total Rates
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4.1.1(o)  Differential rates


Rates to be levied


Non-farm vacant land properties less than two hectares


Non-farm vacant land properties of two hectares or more


Residential land


Commercial and Industrial Land


Vacant land in this class is any land wherever located within the Municipality that is two hectares or more in


size, on which no dwelling is erected, and which does not meet the definition of farm land as defined in the


Valuation of Land Act 1960 . 


The objective of this differential rate is to encourage development of vacant land.


The differential rate will be used to fund those items of expenditure outlined in the Council budget


documentation. The level of the differential rate is that which Council considers necessary to achieve those


objectives specified above.


The differential rate will be used to fund those items of expenditure outlined in the Council budget


documentation. The level of the differential rate is that which Council considers necessary to achieve those


objectives specified above.


· A general rate of 0.4228% (0.4228 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable commercial properties;


The rate and amount of rates payable in relation to land in each category of differential are:


Residential land is any land, wherever located within the Municipality which has a dwelling that can be


occupied for the principal purpose of physically accommodating persons, and does not have the


characteristics of Vacant Land, Farm Land, Commercial Land or Industrial Land.


Commercial and Industrial land is any land which is occupied for the principal purpose of manufacturing or


production of, or the trade in, goods or services.


· A general rate of 0.2114% (0.2114 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable recreational properties.


Each differential rate will be determined by multiplying the Capital Improved Value of each rateable land


(categorised by the characteristics described below) by the relevant percentages indicated above.


Council considers that each differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of


council functions. Details of the objectives of each differential rate, the types of classes of land, which are


subject to each differential rate and the uses of each differential rate, are set out below.


Vacant land in this class is any land wherever located within the Municipality that is less than two hectares in


size, on which no dwelling is erected, and which does not meet the definition of farm land as defined in the


Valuation of Land Act 1960 . 


The objective of this differential rate is to encourage development of vacant land.


· A general rate of 1.353% (1.353 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable rural/residential vacant land 


properties less than two hectares;


· A general rate of 1.0147% (1.0147 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable non-farm vacant land 


properties of two hectares or more;


· A general rate of 0.3382% (0.3382 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable farm properties;


· A general rate of 0.4228% (0.4228 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable residential properties;


· A general rate of 0.4228% (0.4228 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable industrial properties;
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Recreational Land


4.1.2 Statutory fees and fines
Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


Town planning fees 98 120 22 22.4%


Environmental health fees 35 40 5 14.3%


Fines 26 30 4 15.4%


Land information and building certificate fees 24 23 -1 -4.2%


Total Statutory fees and fines 183 213 30 16.4%


4.1.3 User charges
Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


Caravan park charges 189 200 11 5.8%


Aged care charges 151 172 21 13.9%


Animal registration charges 89 98 9 10.1%


Building charges 80 76 -4 -5.0%


Rental and function charges 67 73 6 9.0%


Delivered meals charges 60 51 -9 -15.0%


Swimming pool charges 41 41 0 0.0%


Goldfields Recreation Reserve venue hire charges 32 29 -3 -9.4%


Resource and information centre charges 22 24 2 9.1%


Transfer station waste disposal charges 16 16 0 0.0%


Community transport charges 11 9 -2 -18.2%


Planned activity group charges 6 6 0 0.0%


Other charges 51 63 12 23.5%


Total User charges 815 858 43 5.3%


Farm land is defined as any rateable land which meets the definition as described under the Valuation of


Land Act 1960. 


Farm Land


Cultural and Recreational land is any single rateable assessment used for recreational or cultural activities


including Golf Clubs, Bowls Clubs, Scout or Guide Halls, Masonic Halls, Historical Societies, and Heritage


buildings (not for profit).


The Valuation of Land Act 1960 , defines farm land as any rateable land:


(a)  that is not less than 2 hectares in area and 


(b) that is used primarily for grazing (including agistment), dairying, pig farming, poultry farming, fish


farming, tree farming, bee keeping, viticulture, horticulture, fruit growing or the growing of crops of any kind


or for any combination of these activities; and


(c)  that is used by a business


    (i)  that has a significant and substantial commercial purpose or character;


   (ii)  that seeks to make a profit on a continuous or repetitive basis from its activities on the land; and


  (iii)  that is making a profit from its activities on the land, or that has a reasonable prospect of making a 


profit from its activities on the land if it continues to operate.


Objective: Apply a discount to farm land properties as Council believes these properties pay


disproportionately higher rates in relation to income generated because of the higher land component.


Budget Change


Budget Change
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4.1.4 Grants 


Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


Grants were received in respect of the following :


Summary of grants


Commonwealth funded grants 5,711 6,809 1,098 19.2%


State funded grants 13,291 769 -12,522 -94.2%


Total grants received 19,002 7,578 -11,424 -60.1%


(a) Operating Grants


Recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Federal Assistance Grants - general purpose 1,616 3,312 1,696 105.0%


Federal Assistance Grants - local roads 1,026 2,103 1,077 105.0%


Commonwealth Home Support Program 338 375 37 10.9%


Recurrent - State Government


Aged care and senior citizens 194 143 -51 -26.3%


Maternal & child health 153 153 0 0.0%


Library 114 116 2 1.8%


Youth  28 12 -16 -57.1%


Other 28 32 4 14.3%


Total recurrent operating grants 3,497 6,246 2,749 78.6%


Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Moonambel water supply 180 0 -180 -100.0%


Roadside weeds and pests management 40 40 0 0.0%


Natural disaster 35 0 -35 -100.0%


Non-recurrent - State Government


Natural disaster 11,111 0 -11,111 -100.0%


Emergency planning 60 70 10 16.7%


Moonambel water supply 55 0 -55 -100.0%


Roadside weeds and pests management 48 48 0 0.0%


Recreation strategy 36 0 -36 -100.0%


Community resilience 33 41 8 24.2%


Beaufort framework plan 30 0 -30 -100.0%


L2P learner driver mentor program 19 19 0 0.0%


Other 39 11 -28 -71.8%


Total non-recurrent operating grants 11,686 229 -11,457 -98.0%


Total operating grants 15,183 6,475 -8,708 -57.4%


(b) Capital grants


Recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Roads to recovery 1,976 979 -997 -50.5%


Recurrent - State Government


Nil 0 0 0 0.0%


Total recurrent capital grants 1,976 979 -997 -50.5%


Budget Change
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4.1.4 Grants continued
Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


(b) Capital grants continued


Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Lexton community hub 500 0 -500 -100.0%


Non-recurrent - State Government


Lexton community hub 500 0 -500 -100.0%


Trawalla Road 291 0 -291 -100.0%


Township amenity 277 0 -277 -100.0%


Recreation projects 252 0 -252 -100.0%


Swimming pools 10 124 114 1140.0%


Other 13 0 -13 -100.0%


Total non-recurrent capital grants 1,843 124 -1,719 -93.3%


Total capital grants 3,819 1,103 -2,716 -71.1%


Grand total grants 19,002 7,578 -11,424 -60.1%


4.1.5 Contributions - cash
Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


Monetary - Operating 36 1 -35 -97.2%


Monetary - Capital 180 0 -180 -100.0%


Total Contributions - cash 216 1 -215 -99.5%


4.1.6 Other income
Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


Reimbursement - Flood insurance claim 291 0 -291 -100.0%


Interest on investments 143 141 -2 -1.4%


Reimbursement - State Revenue Office 41 42 1 2.4%


Legal fees - rates 30 30 0 0.0%


Reimbursement - Workcover wages 25 10 -15 -60.0%


Private works 16 46 30 187.5%


Other 6 3 -3 -50.0%


Total Other income 552 272 -280 -50.7%


4.1.7 Employee costs
Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


Wages and salaries 5,939 6,412 473 8.0%


Superannuation 562 561 -1 -0.2%


Fringe benefits tax 105 90 -15 -14.3%


WorkCover insurance premium 107 100 -7 -6.5%


Total Employee costs 6,713 7,163 450 6.7%


Budget Change


Budget Change


Budget Change


Budget Change
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4.1.8 Materials and services
Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


Contractors - Flood repairs 9,739 0 -9,739 -100.0%


Contractors 4,712 1,751 -2,961 -62.8%


Consumables 1,589 1,320 -269 -16.9%


Contracted service delivery 1,507 1,791 284 18.8%


Insurance 333 329 -4 -1.2%


Electricity and water 226 212 -14 -6.2%


Plant expenses 221 246 25 11.3%


Information technology 181 186 5 2.8%


Telecommunications 176 158 -18 -10.2%


Subscriptions and memberships 139 137 -2 -1.4%


Conferences and training 103 102 -1 -1.0%


Legal fees 84 76 -8 -9.5%


Advertising 77 83 6 7.8%


Stationery, postage, photocopying and printing 77 73 -4 -5.2%


Valuations 60 10 -50 -83.3%


Contributions and donations 46 47 1 2.2%


Fire services levy 15 16 1 6.7%


Total Materials and services 19,285 6,537 -12,748 -66.1%


4.1.9 Depreciation 
Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


Infrastructure 4,764 4,858 94 2.0%


Property 1,293 1,319 26 2.0%


Plant and equipment 645 658 13 2.0%


Total Depreciation 6,702 6,835 133 2.0%


4.1.10 Other expenses
Forecast


Actual


2017/18 2018/19


$’000 $’000 $’000 %


Councillors' allowances 156 159 3 1.9%


Operating lease rentals 76 74 -2 -2.6%


Auditors' remuneration - internal auditor 50 35 -15 -30.0%


Auditors' remuneration - external auditor # 40 35 -5 -12.5%


Internal audit committee 6 8 2 33.3%


Total Other expenses 328 311 -17 -5.2%


# Audit of the financial statements, performance statements and grant acquittals by the Victorian Auditor


General's Office (VAGO).


Budget Change


Budget Change


Budget Change
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5. Financial performance indicators


 Indicator Measure Actual Actual Budget Trend


2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 +/o/-


Adjusted underlying 


result


Adjusted underlying deficit / 


Adjusted underlying revenue
1 -40.3% -15.1% -10.4% -8.6% -4.0% -3.1% +


Liquidity


Working Capital
Current assets / 


current liabilities
2 309.3% 146.9% 150.1% 139.7% 137.8% 139.0% -


Unrestricted cash
Unrestricted cash / 


current liabilities
253.6% 63.4% 63.8% 61.7% 60.5% 59.3% -


Loans and 


borrowings


Interest bearing loans and 


borrowings / rate revenue
3 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% o


Loans and 


borrowings


Interest and principal repayments 


on interest bearing loans and 


borrowings / rate revenue


5.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% o


Indebtedness
Non-current liabilities / 


own source revenue
0.6% 0.6% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% o


Asset renewal
Asset renewal expenditure / 


depreciation
4 70.6% 110.9% 72.8% 76.8% 87.1% 88.3% +


Stability


Rates concentration
Rate revenue / 


adjusted underlying revenue
5 67.6% 33.5% 53.0% 52.5% 54.6% 54.6% -


Rates effort
Rate revenue / CIV of rateable 


properties in the municipality
0.54% 0.57% 0.47% 0.47% 0.50% 0.49% o


Efficiency


Expenditure level
Total expenditure / 


number of property assessments
$3,886 $5,569 $3,496 $3,806 $3,825 $3,866 +


Revenue level


Residential rate revenue / 


Number of residential property 


assessments


$986 $1,023 $943 $969 $996 $1,023 +


Workforce turnover


Number of permanent staff 


resignations and terminations / 


average number of permanent 


staff for the financial year


14.0% 13.6% 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% o


 +  Forecasts improvement in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator


The following table highlights Council’s current and projected performance across a range of key financial


performance indicators. These indicators may provide a useful analysis of Council’s financial position and


performance and should be used in the context of the organisation’s objectives.


 o  Forecasts that Council's financial performance/financial position indicator will be steady


N
o


te
s Strategic Resource Plan 


Projections


Key to Forecast Trend:


Operating position


Obligations


Forecast


  -   Forecasts deterioration in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator
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Notes to indicators


5 Rates concentration - Reflects extent of reliance on rate revenues to fund all of Council's on-going services.


Trend indicates Council's reliance on rate revenue will remain relatively stable throughout the forecast period.


1 Adjusted underlying result – One indicator of the sustainable operating result required to enable Council to


continue to provide core services and meet its objectives. Steady improvement in financial performance is


expected over the period, although continued losses means reliance on capital grants to fund capital expenditure.


2 Working capital - The proportion of current liabilities represented by current assets. Working capital is forecast


to decline slightly in later years but remain at an acceptable level.


3 Debt compared to rates - Council is forecast to remain free of long term debt throughout the four of the


Strategic Resource Plan, and has a policy to minimise loan borrowings and hence interest paid on loans. 


4 Asset renewal - This percentage indicates the extent of Council's renewal expenditure against its depreciation


charge (an indication of the decline in value of its existing capital assets). A percentage greater than 100


indicates Council is maintaining its existing assets, while a percentage less than 100 means its assets are


deteriorating faster than they are being renewed and future capital expenditure will be required to renew assets.


The asset renewal percentage is budgeted to improve steadily over the life of the Strategic Resource Plan.
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6. Capital works program


Capital works program
For the year ending 30 June 2019


New works


Capital Works Area
Project 


cost
New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Grants


Contri-


butions


Council 


cash


Asset 


Sales


$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $'000 $'000


PROPERTY


Land


Residential Land 


Development  - Beaufort 


Stage 4


334 334 -64 398


Total Land 334 334 0 0 0 0 0 -64 398


Land Improvements


Transfer Station Upgrades 56 56 56


Total Land Improvements 56 0 0 56 0 0 0 56 0


Buildings


Building Renewal Program 110        110        110 


Total Buildings 110 0 110 0 0 0 0 110 0


TOTAL PROPERTY 500 334 110 56 0 0 0 102 398


This section provides details on each capital works project that is funded in the 2018/19 budget.


Asset expenditure type Summary of funding sources
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Capital Works Area
Project 


cost
New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Grants


Contri-


butions


Council 


cash


Asset 


Sales


$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $'000 $'000


Water Bore Refurbishment 15 15 15


Heavy Plant Purchases 574 574 454 120


Minor Plant Purchases 11 11 11


Motor Vehicle Purchases 382 382 192 190


Total Plant, Machinery 


and Equipment
982 0 982 0 0 0 0 672 310


Furniture & Fittings 


Purchases


21 21 21


Total Fixtures, Fittings 


and Furniture
21 0 21 0 0 0 0 21 0


Information Technology 


Purchases


116 116
114 2


Total Computers and 


Telecommunications
116 0 116 0 0 0 0 114 2


Library Collection


Library Collection 


Purchases


52 52 52


Total Library Collection 52 0 52 0 0 0 0 52 0


TOTAL PLANT AND 


EQUIPMENT
1,171 0 1,171 0 0 0 0 859 312


Plant, Machinery and Equipment


Fixtures, Fittings and Furniture


Computers and 


Telecommunications


PLANT AND EQUIPMENT


Asset expenditure type Summary of funding sources
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Capital Works Area
Project 


cost
New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Grants


Contri-


butions


Council 


cash


Asset 


Sales


$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $'000 $'000


INFRASTRUCTURE


Roads


Gravel Road Resheets 1014 1014 1014


Dust Suppression GATT 


Seals


22 22 22


Forward Survey & Design 60 60 60


Reseals 748 748 748


Reseals - Extra Rate Cap 105 105 105


Major Patch Program 107 107 107


Sealed Road Shoulder 


Rehabilitation


54 54 54


Raglan-Elmhurst Road 


1.5km Reconstruction


450 369 81 450


Moonambel-Natte Yallock 


Road 2km Reconstruction


450 369 81 450


Kerb & Channel 


Rehabilitation


23 23 23


Total roads 3,033 0 2,849 184 0 900 0 2,133 0


Bridges


Bridges 93 & 94 


Landsborough-Elmhurst Rd


317 317 317


Repair Bridge Bearing 


Pads & Expansion Joints at 


4 Sites


206 183 23 79 127


Total Bridges 523 0 500 23 0 79 0 444 0


Footpath Rehabilitation 20 20 20


New Footpaths 5 5 5


Total Footpaths and 


Cycleways
25 5 20 0 0 0 0 25 0


Drainage


Drainage Project 2018-19 50 50 50


Total Drainage 50 0 50 0 0 0 0 50 0


Asset expenditure type Summary of funding sources


Footpaths and Cycleways
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Capital Works Area
Project 


cost
New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Grants


Contri-


butions


Council 


cash


Asset 


Sales


$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $'000 $'000


Playground Equipment 


Replacement


10 10 10


Hardcourt Renewal 77 77 77


Solar Lighting of Township 


Entrances


10 10 10


Avoca Pool Refurbishment 186 186 124 62
Total Recreational, Leisure 


and Community Facilities
283 0 273 0 10 124 0 159 0


TOTAL 


INFRASTRUCTURE
3,914 5 3,692 207 10 1,103 0 2,811 0


TOTAL NEW CAPITAL 


WORKS 
5,585 339 4,973 263 10 1,103 0 3,772 710


Summary


Property 500 334 110 56 0 0 0 102 398


Plant and Equipment 1,171 0 1,171 0 0 0 0 859 312


Infrastructure 3,914 5 3,692 207 10 1,103 0 2,811 0


TOTAL CAPITAL 


WORKS 2018/19
5,585 339 4,973 263 10 1,103 0 3,772 710


TOTAL CAPITAL 


WORKS 2017/18
7,162 236 6,471 353 102 3,613 50 2,988 511


Recreational, Leisure and 


Community Facilities


Asset expenditure type Summary of funding sources
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7. Schedule of fees and user charges


Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 


Note: Fees shown in red are set by Statute and are subject to change 


annually.


(Penalty Units and Fee Units are set by the Victorian Treasurer in April 


each year.  


Penalty Unit - 2017-2018 $158.57


Fee Unit - 2017-2018 $14.22


Aerial Photography Yes $22.00


Animal Offences
Domestic (Feral & Nuisance) Animals Regulations


10(1)- Failure to apply to register a dog or cat 0.5 No $79.29


20(1)- Registered dog or cat not wearing council identification marker 0.5 No $79.29


21- Unregistered dog or cat wearing council identification maker 0.5 No $79.29


22- Person other than owner removing, altering or defacing identification 


marker


0.5 No $79.29


23(2) - Dog or cat on private property after notice of objection served 0.5 No $79.29


24(1) - Dog at large or not securely confined to owner's premises during the 


daytime


1.5 No $237.86


24(1) - Dog at large or not securely confined to owner's premises during 


night time


2 No $317.14


25(1) - Cat at large or not securely confined to owner's premises in 


restricted municipal district


0.5 No $79.29


26(1) - Contravening council order relating to presence of dogs and cats in 


public places


1 No $158.57


27(1) - Greyhound outside owner's premises not adequately muzzle or not 


effectively controlled by chain, cord or leash.


1.5 No $237.86


32(1) - Dog or cat being a nuisance 0.5 No $79.29


32(4) - Not complying with order to abate nuisance 1.5 No $237.86


38(1) - Failure to ensure that dangerous dog is properly confined on 


owner's residential premises


2 No $317.14


38(2) - Failure to ensure that dangerous dog is properly confined on 


owner's non-residential premises


2 No $317.14


41E Failure to comply with requirement to muzzle or effectively control 


menacing dog


2 No $317.14


41G Failure to ensure that restricted breed dog is properly confined on 


owner's premises


1 No $158.57


63A Conducting a domestic animal business that does not comply with the 


relevant Code of Practice


2 No $317.14


29(6) Non serious injury caused by non-dangerous dog 2.5 No $396.43


29 (7)(8) Dog Rushing or chasing a person 1 No $158.57


41G Not confining a Restricted Breed Dog 1 No $158.57


12A(2) Advertising for sale without a microchip number 2 No $317.14


Animal Impounding
Impounding of Livestock Regulations 


s.25(e) A person must not impound livestock unless he or she is an 


authorised person


2 No $317.14


s.25(g) A person must not drive livestock from a person's land without 


proper authority


2 No $317.14


s.25A Livestock found trespassing after a notice has been served on the 


owner of the livestock under s.16A


2 No $317.14


s.25B Failure by an owner of livestock to comply with a notice served under 


s.16B


4 No $634.28
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7. Schedule of fees and user charges


Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 


Animal Registration
Cat Registration - Full


Cat General *** No $28.00


Cat registered with an Approved Association No $28.00


Cat kept for Breeding on registered premises No $28.00


Cat NOT included above No $84.00


Cat Registration - Pensioner Rate


Cat General *** No $15.00


Cat registered with an Approved Association No $15.00


Cat kept for Breeding on registered premises No $15.00


Cat NOT included above No $43.00


Dog Registration - Full


Dog General **** No $34.00


Farm Working dog (Primary Production Only) No $34.00


Dog Registered with an Approved Association/Approved Training No $34.00


Dog kept for Breeding on Registered Premises No $34.00


Dog Other (Including Microchipped) No $102.00


Dog Registration - Pensioner Rate


Dog General **** No $19.00


Farm Working dog (Primary Production Only) No $19.00


Dog Registered with an Approved Association/Approved Training No $19.00


Dog kept for Breeding on Registered Premises No $19.00


Dog Other (Including Microchipped) No $53.00


All of the above fees include a State Government Levy of $3.50 per dog 


and $2.00 per cat.


*** Cat General = Desexed and Microchipped or Over 10 years


*** Dog General = Desexed and Microchipped or Over 10 years


Compulsory Microchipping for all Newly Registered Dogs


Compulsory Microchipping  & Desexing for all Newly Registered Cats


a) All animals registered with a Council, for the time, must be microchipped 


as per Legislation under the Domestic Animal Act 1994


b) Desexing of Cats for first time registration is compulsory under Council's 


adopted Local Law No. 2 (6.5), except for cats that may be exempt under 


Section 10B of the Domestic Animal Act 1994.


c) Proof of microchipping and desexing is required when registering your 


animal.


d) Changes to Legislation under the Domestic Animals Act 1994 came into 


force in May 2012. The changes provide, after 11th April 2013, for the 


removal of reduced registration fee for any newly registered dog or cat that 


is microchipped.


Avoca Community Centre 
Meeting room - All Day Yes $46.00


Meeting room - Half Day Yes $33.00


Meeting room - Night Yes $33.00


Hall - All Day Yes $66.00


Hall - Half Day Yes $46.00


Hall - Night Yes $46.00


Allied Health Room - All Day Yes $33.00


Allied Health Room - Half Day Yes $33.00


Allied Health Room - Night Yes $33.00


Kitchen Extra if using full facilities i.e. Meal Yes $33.00


Community Groups Meeting/Dance Lessons (All Day) Yes $20.00
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7. Schedule of fees and user charges


Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 


Avoca Hall
Casual Use - Medium to Large - Reception, Concerts, Weddings, 


Dance, Cabaret, Ball, Conference, Shows, Meetings, Lectures, Land 


Sales etc.


Supper Room - Day OR Night Yes $20.00


Supper Room - Day AND Night Yes $26.00


Kitchen (Includes Supper Room) - Day OR Night Yes $52.00


Kitchen (Includes Supper Room) - Day AND Night Yes $66.00


Hall Only - Day AND Night Yes $78.00


Hall & Kitchen - Day OR Night Yes $91.00


Hall & Kitchen - Day AND Night Yes $131.00


Fete or Exhibitions


Hall Only Yes $105.00


Hall, Supper Room & Kitchen Yes $165.00


Casual Use - Small- Dance Lessons, Exercise Class, Rehearsals, 


Preparation, Decorations, Deb Practice


Hall Only Yes $20.00


Supper Room Yes $20.00


Regular Users - weekly up to monthly booking for a minimum period 


of 6 months


Kitchen (Includes Supper Room) - Day OR Night Yes $15.00


Hall Only - Day AND Night Yes $15.00


Avoca Baptist Church


Quarterly Hire Yes $831.00


Avoca Information Centre
Large Meeting Room -All Day Yes $59.00


Large Meeting Room - Half Day Yes $33.00


Small Meeting Room - All Day Yes $33.00


Small Meeting Room - Half Day Yes $20.00


Non Profit & Community Groups - Half Day Yes $10.00


Computer Room (Includes internet access) Yes $26.00


**** Tea & Coffee can be provided at fee of $1.15 per head 


Beaufort Community Centre
Meeting room - All Day Yes $46.00


Meeting room - Half Day Yes $33.00


Meeting room - Night Yes $33.00


Hall - All Day Yes $66.00


Hall - Half Day Yes $46.00


Hall - Night Yes $46.00


Allied Health Room - All Day Yes $33.00


Allied Health Room - Half Day Yes $33.00


Allied Health Room - Night Yes $33.00


Kitchen Extra if using full facilities i.e. Meal Yes $33.00


Community Groups Meeting/Dance Lessons (All Day) Yes $20.00


Beeripmo Centre
Meeting Space A (whole space ) Full Day Yes $158.00


Meeting Space A (whole space ) Half Day Yes $119.00


Meeting Space B & C (half space ) Full Day Yes $80.00


Meeting Space B & C (half space ) Half Day Yes $67.00


Local School & Community Groups received a discounted rate as 


follows:


Meeting Space A Yes $79.00


Meeting Space B & C Yes $40.00
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7. Schedule of fees and user charges


Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 


Beaufort Hall
Casual Use - Medium to Large - Reception, Concerts, Weddings, 


Dance, Cabaret, Ball, Conference, Shows, Meetings, Lectures, Land 


Sales etc.


Hall Only - Day OR Night Yes $66.00


Hall Only - Day AND Night Yes $79.00


Hall & Kitchen - Day OR Night Yes $92.00


Hall & Kitchen - Day AND Night Yes $131.00


Kitchen Only Yes $52.00


Fete or Exhibitions


Hall Only Yes $105.00


Hall & Kitchen Yes $165.00


Kitchen Only Yes $52.00


Casual Use - Small- Dance Lessons, Exercise Class, Rehearsals, 


Preparation, Decorations, Deb Practice


Hall Only Yes $20.00


Regular Users - weekly up to monthly booking for a minimum period 


of 6 months


Kitchen (Includes Supper Room) - Day OR Night Yes $15.00


Hall Only - Day AND Night Yes $15.00


Beaufort Resource Centre
Large Meeting Room -All Day Yes $60.00


Large Meeting Room - Half Day Yes $34.00


Small Meeting Room - All Day Yes $34.00


Small Meeting Room - Half Day Yes $20.00


Non Profit & Community Groups - Half Day Yes $10.00


Computer Room ( Includes internet access) Yes $26.00


**** Tea & Coffee can be provided at fee of $1.15 per head 


Bonds/Security Deposits
Hall Hire - Security Deposit No $263.00


Beaufort Hall Cleaning Bond No $105.00


Public Liability Insurance - Halls Yes $16.00


Building Control


Works Within the Shire
Class 1A - Dwellings - New (Inc. Garage & Verandah) Yes


     Up to $150,000 $1,810.00


     $150,001 -$200,000 $2,400.00


     $200,001 -$250,000 $2,710.00


     $250,001 -$300,000 $3,240.00


     >$300,000 By negotiation


Class 1A - Dwellings - Extensions/Alterations (Inc. Demolitions) Yes


     Up to $10,000 $665.00 maximum


     $10,001 -$20,000 $820.00


     $20,001 -$50,000 $1,130.00


     $50,001 -$100,000 $1,580.00


     $100,001 -$150,000 $2,020.00


     >$150,000 $2,020.00 + (Value - 


$150,000)/105
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Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 
Class 1A - Internal Alterations & Minor Works


     Up to $10,000 Yes $480.00 maximum


     $10,001 -$20,000 Yes $680.00


     $20,001 -$50,000 Yes $990.00


     $50,001 -$100,000 Yes $1,230.00


     >$100,000 $1,230.00 + (Value - 


$100,000)/110


Class 1B & 2-9 Residential & Commercial works other than Class 1A


     Up to $5,000 Yes


     $5,001 - $15,000 Yes


     $15,001 - $30,000 Yes


     $30,001 - $100,000 Yes


     $100,001 - $500,000 Yes


     $500,001 - $2M Yes


     Over $2M Yes


Class 10A/10B Garages/Carports/Pools/Fences etc.


     Up to $5,000 $510.00


     $5,001 -$10,000 $680.00


     $10,001 -$20,000 $820.00


     $20,001 -$50,000 $990.00


     $50,001 -$100,000 $1,230.00


     >$100,000 $1,230.00 + (Value - 


$100,000)/110


Pool Fence Only Yes $280.00


Additional Inspections


     Domestic $240.00


     Commercial $360.00


Building Other


Amendment and/or Extension of Building Permits, or Amendment of 


Approved Plans


No $240.00


Dispensation for Siting of Single Dwellings No $280.00


Building Notice No $640.00 minimum *


Building Order No $440.00 minimum *


 * - Subject to discretion of Municipal Building Surveyor


Temporary Structure Siting Approval No $440.00 minimum


Places of Public Entertainment (POPE) Occupancy Permit No Full cost recovery 


(minimum $440)


Subdivision Statements for Buildings - Regulation 503(2) No $280.00


Pool Safety Fence Inspection Yes $230.00


Provide Copy of Building Permit or Occupancy Permit (with owner's 


consent)


No $50.00 minimum


Provide Copy of Building Permit including plans (with owner's consent) No $88.00 minimum


Illegal Works/ Resolution of Works without a Permit
House/Dwelling Yes


Additions/Alterations Yes


Carports/Garages/Verandah Yes


Minor Alterations Yes


For Classes 10A and 10B works up to the value of $5,000, the Municipal Building Surveyor has the discretion


 to set the permit fee between a minimum of $200 and a maximum of $470.


For Classes 1A, 1B and 2-9, the Municipal Building Surveyor has the discretion to apply a permit fee discount 


of up to 10% for high quality plans and performance.


4(Value/2000+


Value)


+GST 


Minimum $860


Equivalent permit fee 


plus up to 50% penalty 


at the discretion of the 


Municipal Building 


Surveyor


41 Pyrenees Shire Council







PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL Budget - 2018/19


7. Schedule of fees and user charges


Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 


Building Miscellaneous
Private Inspections Yes $225.00 plus $0.84 per 


kilometre travelled


Security Deposit for Re-erected Dwellings No $5,000.00 maximum


Restump Yes


Regulation 326(1) (2) (3) or (4) Advise (Property Information) No 


Application for Demolition Consents - Section 29(A) No 


Property Information No 


Property Information  (over 10 years) No 


Lodgement Fees ( Nil for projects under $5,000) No 


Report & Consent No


BBC Levy ( All works over $10,001 +) No 


Debt Collection
Debt collection agency lodgement fee Yes $24.00


Domestic Works - Outside the Shire  Not available 


Community  Bus
Beaufort - 12 Seater Yes $76.00


Beaufort - 8 Seater Yes $55.00


Avoca - 12 Seater Yes $76.00


Avoca - 8 Seater Yes $55.00


Community Car
Avoca - travelling to Maryborough Yes $23.00


Avoca - travelling to Ballarat Yes $38.00


Avoca - travelling to Melbourne Yes $77.00


Community Transport 
HACC Clients - Avoca/Maryborough - flat rate Yes $14.00


Beaufort HACC Car - flat rate Yes $23.00


Fire Hazards Removal


Failure to kept property free of Fire hazards


Vacant Land - Under 1000 s.m Yes $497.00


Vacant Land - Under 1000 s.m to 1 Ha (10,000 s.m.) Yes $746.00


Vacant Land - More than 1 Ha (10,000 s.m.) to 2 Ha (20,000 s.m.) Yes $994.00


Vacant Land over 2 Ha & subject to size will be a minimum Yes $1,243.00


Residential sites ( with buildings) of less than 1 Ha Yes $746.00


Residential sites ( with buildings) of over 1 Ha & subject to size a minimum Yes $1,243.00


Commercial  and Farm sites Yes $1,243.00


Plus a Non-Compliance Infringement of - 10 Penalty Units 10 No $1,585.70


Failure to comply with the conditions of a Schedule 13 permit 10 No $1,585.70


Plus a Non-Compliance Fire Prevention Notice - 120 Penalty Units 120 No $19,028.40


The offence of failing to comply with conditions and restrictions in a Permit 


to Light a fire issued during the Fire Danger Period is:


$0.00


120 Penalty units or imprisonment for 12 months or both, as determined by 


the courts


120 No $19,028.40


The offence of lighting a fire on a day of Total Fire Ban is  240 Penalty Units 


or imprisonment for 2 years or both as determined by the courts.


240 No $38,056.80


Disabled Parking Permits Yes $6.50


The rates below are for grass cutting only. Additional charges may apply if there is significant quantities of


heavy plant growth or weeds that cannot be cleared with a conventional mower or small slasher. Additional


charges may also apply to remove other hazardous materials not including vegetation.
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Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 


Freedom of Information
FOI Application Fee No $28.40


FOI Search & Retrieval of Document Fee - per hour or part thereof No $21.30


FOI Photocopying - Black & White - A4 No $0.20


FOI Photocopying - Black & White - A3 No $0.40


FOI Photocopying - Colour - A4 No $0.40


FOI Photocopying - Colour - A3 No $0.80


FOI Supervised Inspection of documents No $5.30


Food Premises & Environmental Health
Septic Tank Application Fees - Installation No $380.00 


Septic Tank Application Fees - Alteration No $190.00 


Septic Tank Infringement Fines


Food Act, 1984


Food premises & Food vehicles


Premises selling food by retail in sealed packages only NIL


Renewal of Premises


Class 1 No $350.00 


Class 2 - Supermarkets No $380.00 


Class 2 - Others1 No $300.00 


Class 3 No $220.00 


Community Groups No $115.00 


New Premises - 150% of Renewal Fee


Transfer premises  - 50% of Renewal Fee


Inspection and Report No $210.00 


Inspection of Temporary/Itinerant Premises No NIL


Public Health & Wellbeing Act


Premises required to be registered Pursuant to Section 366c of the Health 


Act. (Hairdressers, Ear-Piercing, Tattooists)


Prescribed Accommodation Houses ( Premises which are able to be or are 


currently registered under both the Health Act and Food Act, e.g. Hotel, 


only one registration fee to apply)


Renewal of registration No $205.00 


New Premises - 150% of Renewal Fee


Transfer Premises - 50% of Renewal Fee


Premises with dual Registration No $85.00 


Caravan Parks & Moveable Dwellings Act


Fees are fixed by legislation No 3 year registration 


based on fee units set 


by State Govt. 


Transfer of Premises - fee units 5 No $71.10
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Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 


HACC - Planned Activity Group
Beaufort PAG - per session No $8.00 


Avoca PAG - per session No $8.00 


Outreach PAG - per session No $8.00 


Brokerage Clients - PAG (excl. excursion and external meal costs) - per day No $46.00 


HACC - Positive Aging Services
HACC - Domestic Assistance - per hour No $6.30 


HACC - Brokerage Domestic Assistance/Respite/Personal Care


Delivered during 7am-7pm Yes $49.00 


Delivered outside normal hours Yes $60.00 


Delivered Sat, Sun & public holidays Yes $71.00 


Travelling - per kilometre Yes $1.10 


HACC - DVA Domestic Assistance/Respite/Personal Care No $40.00 


HACC - Respite No $3.10 


HACC - Personal Care No $4.70 


HACC - Delivered Meals (Meals on Wheels) or Community Meal No $9.30


HACC - Brokerage Delivered Meals Yes $12.50 


HACC - Property Maintenance Yes up to 50% of cost


Community Shopping - per trip Yes $7.20


Community Transport - per trip Yes $25.50


Community Transport - per hour Yes $8.00


Intake Fee - existing client Yes $128.00


Intake Fee - new client Yes $180.00


Commonwealth Home Support Program
CHSP - Respite - per hour No $3.10 


CHSP - Domestic Assistance - per hour No $6.30 


CHSP - Personal Care - per hour No $4.70 


Travelling - per kilometre No $1.00 


FDC Educator Fee
Session Hire of Avoca Facility Yes $12.00


Land Information Certificate - Express
Immediate turnaround (<24 hours)


(Charge in addition to statutory certificate fee)


Yes $60.00


Land Information Certificate Charge 1.82 No $25.91


Library Services - (Beaufort & Avoca)
Fines - per day/per item up to $5.00 maximum Yes $0.30
Holds - maximum 30 per person per year Yes Free
Library Bags Yes $2.50
Library Card replacements Yes $2.00
Lost or damaged items plus Processing fee Yes Cost of replacement
Processing fee Yes $6.50
Intra Library Loans - Public Library Yes $3.00
Intra Library Loans - University  or National Libraries Yes $18.50
Debt collection charge Yes $15.00
Private Book Club - per club per year Yes $150.00
Library Book Club  - per person per year Yes $48.00
Book sales - prices upwards from Yes $0.50
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Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 


Local Laws No. 2 Environment 
Environment


Temporary Accommodation - Clause 5.2


Permit required to occupy Temporary Accommodation in a public place or 


on private land:


Fee: 1st year No $111.00


Fee: 2nd year No $221.00


Temporary Permit for Caravan  - Clause 5.2(3)


Fee: (applies to an application for extension of permit) No $56.00


Noise from Business & Industrial Premises - Clause 8.4


Permit required in a commercial, business, or industrial zone to emit 


amplified  sound or spruik form a premises:


No $31.00


Noise in a Public Place - Clause 8.5


Permit required to play musical instruments, use sound amplification 


equipment or deliver public addresses in a public place:


No $31.00


Handbills - Clause 8.6


Permit required to distribute handbills or printed material goods, gifts or 


advertising material in a public place:


No $31.00


Local Laws No. 3 Streets & Roads Fee Structure
Letter Boxes - Clause 5.2.2


Permit to erect a letter box on a road reserve: No $31.00


Horses On Reserves - Clause 6.2.1


Permit to ride or lead a horse or authorise another person to ride or lead a 


horse:


No $31.00


Parking of Vehicle over 6 Tonne - Clause 6.3.1


Permit to allow a vehicle over 6 tonne to be parked, kept, stored or 


repaired:


No $56.00


Discharge of Water - Clause 7.1.1


Permit to discharge water: No $56.00


Erect Advertising Sign - Clause 7.2.1


Permit to erect or place an advertising sign on a road or land under Council 


Control:


No $56.00


Roadside Trading - Clause 7.3.1


Permit to erect or place a vehicle, caravan, trailer, stall or similar structure 


on a road:


No $56.00


Trading to a person on a Road - Clause 7.3.2


Permit to sell or offer for sale goods and services from a property or public 


place:


No $56.00


Locating goods for Sale - Clause 7.3.7


Permit to place or display goods for sale: No $56.00


Outdoor Eating Facilities - Clause 7.3.10


Permit to establish an outdoor eating facility: No $56.00


Itinerant Trading - Clause 7.3.11


Permit for itinerant trading: No $56.00


Itinerant Trading - Clause 7.4.1


Permit to place a bulk rubbish container on a road: No $56.00


Street Parties - Clause 7.6.1


Permit to hold a street party, festival or procession on a road: No $31.00


Development of a road reserve - Clause 7.6.2


Permit to develop a road reserve: No $56.00
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Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 


Planning
Regulation 6 - Fees for amendments to planning schemes


6(1) Considering request & taking specified actions No $2,871.60


6(2) Considering submissions No $14232.70 - $38,014.40


6(3) Adopting amendment No $453.10


6(4) Approving amendment No $453.10


Regulation 7 - Applications for permits under sect 47


Class 1 - Use only No 


Class 2 - Develop of use Dwelling >$10,000-$100,000 No $188.20


Class 3 - Develop of use Dwelling >$100,000 No $592.50


Class 4 - Development < $10,000 No $1,212.80


Class 5 - Development > $10,001-$250,000 No $1,310.40


Class 6 - Development >$250,001-$500,000 No $1,407.90


Class 7 - Development >$500,001-$1,000,000 No $188.20


Class 8 - Development >$1,000,001-$7,000,000 No $404.30


Class 9 - Development >$7,000,001-$10,000,000 No $188.20


Class 10 - Development >$10,000,001-$50,000,000 No $1,080.40


Class 11 - Development >$50,000,001 plus No $1,456.70


Class 12 - To subdivide an existing building No $3,213.20


Class 13 - To subdivide into two lots No $8,189.80


Class 14 - Re-alignment or consolidate No $24,151.10


Class 15 - To subdivide land No $54,282.40


Class 16 - To remove restriction No $1,240.70


Class 17 - To create or vary restriction row No $1,240.70


Class 18 - To create, vary or remove an easement other than right of way 


or vary or remove a condition in the nature of an easement


No $1,240.70


Class 19 - Subdivide land (other than a class 9, class 16, class 17 or class 


18 permit)


No $1,240.70


Class 20 - To create, vary or remove a restriction within the meaning of the 


Subdivision Act 1988; or create or remove a right of way; or create, vary or 


remove an easement other than a right of way; or vary or remove a 


condition in the nature of an easement (other than a right of way) in a 


Crown grant


No $1,240.70


Class 21 - A permit not otherwise provided for in the regulation No $1,240.70


Amendments to permits under section 72 (Regulation 11) 


Class 1 - Amendment to a permit to change the use of the land allowed by 


the permit or allow a new use of land


No $1,240.70


Class 2 - Amendment to a permit (other than a permit to develop land for a 


single dwelling per lot or to use and develop land for a single dwelling per 


lot or to undertake development ancillary to the use of land for a single 


dwelling per lot) to change the statement of what the permit allows or to 


change any or all of the conditions which apply to the permit 


No $1,240.70


Class 3 - Amendment to a class 2 permit No $188.20


Class 4 - Amendment to a class 3 permit No $592.50


Class 5 - Amendment to a class 4 permit No $1,212.80


Class 6 - Amendment to a class 5 or class 6 permit No $1,310.40


Class 7 - Amendment to a class 7 permit No $188.20


Class 8 - Amendment to a class 8 permit No $404.30


Class 9 - Amendment to a class 9 permit No $188.20


Class 10 - Amendment to a class 10 permit No $1,080.40


Class 11 - Amendment to a class 11 permit No $1,456.70


Class 12 - Amendment to a class 12, 13, 14 or 15 permit No $3,213.20


Class 13 - Amendment to a class 16 permit No $1,240.70


Class 14 - Amendment to a class 17 permit No $1,240.70


Class 15 - Amendment to a class 18 permit No $1,240.70


Class 16 - Amendment to a class 19 permit No $1240.70 per 100 lots 


created 


Class 17 - Amendment to a class 20 permit No $1,240.70
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Description Units  GST  2018/19 Charge 


Incl. GST 
Class 18 - Amendment to a class 21 permit No $1,240.70


Non Statutory Planning Fee Schedule 


Notices in local Newspapers Yes As Quoted


A3 Notice Boards on site Yes $124.00


Letters to adjoining owners/occupiers Yes $5.00


Written Planning Advice Yes $124.00


Copies of Planning permits and plans Yes $169.00


First request for extension of time(under S.69of the P&E Act) Yes $169.00


Second request for extension of time(under S.69of the P&E Act) Yes $253.00


Subsequent requests for extension of time(under S.69of the P&E Act) Yes $379.00


Secondary Consent Amendment Yes $169.00


Certificate of Title Search Yes $98.00


Photocopying
A4 per copy - Black & White Yes $0.20


A4 per copy - Colour Yes $0.40


A3 per copy - Black & White Yes $0.40


A3 per copy - Colour Yes $0.80


Community Groups


A4 per copy - Black & White Yes $0.10


A4 per copy - Colour Yes $0.30


A3 per copy - Black & White Yes $0.20


A3 per copy - Colour Yes $0.60


Faxing/Emailing/Scanning


Fax sending - first page Yes $2.20


Fax sending - additional pages Yes $1.10


Fax receiving - per page Yes $0.20


Email/Scan - cost of confirmation report printout Yes $0.20


Private Works Yes Cost of Job + 45% + 


GST


Rates Searches Yes $60.00


Tender Documents
Hard Copy Yes $59.00


Electronic sent in PDF form on disk Yes $35.00


Electronic download from Tenderlink Yes $24.00


Texts/Books
Flowers of the fields Yes $16.50


Images of the Ripon Shire Yes $16.50


Valley of Finest Description Yes $27.50
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Incl. GST 


Road Opening Permit Yes $59.00 


On a road with a speed limit of more than 50Kmh


Minor works conducted by a utility or public transport provider, or a 


responsible road authority - traffic impact works conducted on any part of 


the roadway, pathway or shoulder


9.3 No $132.25


Minor works conducted by a utility or public transport provider, or a 


responsible road authority - traffic impact works NOT conducted on any part 


of the roadway, pathway or shoulder


6.0 No $85.32


Works other than Minor works conducted by a utility or public transport 


provider, or a responsible road authority - traffic impact works conducted on 


any part of the roadway, pathway or shoulder


43.1 No $612.88


Works other than Minor works conducted by a utility or public transport 


provider, or a responsible road authority - traffic impact works NOT 


conducted on any part of the roadway, pathway or shoulder


23.5 No $334.17


On a road with a speed limit of NOT more than 50Kmh
Minor works conducted by a utility or public transport provider, or a 


responsible road authority - traffic impact works conducted on any part of 


the roadway, pathway or shoulder


9.3 No $132.25


Minor works conducted by a utility or public transport provider, or a 


responsible road authority - traffic impact works NOT conducted on any part 


of the roadway, pathway or shoulder


6.0 No $85.32


Works other than Minor works conducted by a utility or public transport 


provider, or a responsible road authority - traffic impact works conducted on 


any part of the roadway, pathway or shoulder


23.5 No $334.17


Works other than Minor works conducted by a utility or public transport 


provider, or a responsible road authority - traffic impact works NOT 


conducted on any part of the roadway, pathway or shoulder


6.0 No $85.32


Waste 
Transfer Station Fees ( Beaufort, Avoca, Landsborough & Snake 


Valley)


Car/Boot Load (1/2m3 max) Yes $15.00


Utility or 6x4 Trailer (1.0m3 max) Yes $30.00


Small Truck or Tandem Trailers (2.0m3 max) Yes $60.00


Approved Greenwaste (separated) (1.0m3 max) Yes $15.00


Approved kerbside recyclables Yes No Charge


Tyres


Car Yes $10.00


Truck Yes $35.00


Tractor Yes $70.00


Rims Only Yes No Charge


Other


Mattresses Yes $30.00


Refrigerators & Freezers ( that have been degassed) Yes No Charge


(Note Council does not accept refrigerators or freezers that have not 


been degassed.)


Oil, Batteries, Scrap Steel, Car Bodies. Yes No Charge


Tip Vouchers


Domestic Waste - 12 Vouchers Yes $72.00


Green Waste - 4 Vouchers Yes $45.00
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